
Mayor 
James Kacsh 
 

Council Members 
Kristin Carpenter 
Tim Joyce 
David Allison 
Bret Bradford 
EJ Cheshier 
David Reggiani 
James Burton 
 

City Manager 
Randy Robertson 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Sarah Hoepfner 
Gabrielle Brown 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 5, 2014 @ 7:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

  AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the republic for 
which it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice for all.  
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Mayor James Kacsh, Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, David Allison, 
Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and James Burton  

 

  D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA…………………..……...………... (voice vote) 
 

  E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speaker

a. Steven Rothchild, PWSRCAC, update on dispersants………………………………………...… (page 1)
b. Donald Kurz, regarding live video streaming of Council meetings
c. Joanie Behrends, regarding Alaska Shield exercise, 2014

2. Audience comments regarding agenda items…………………………………......… (3 minutes per speaker)
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions (Harbor, HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 
4. Student Council Representative Report
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR……………………………………….…….…. (roll call vote) 
5. Ordinance 1113…...……………….……………………………………………………....…........... (page 13)

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing a lease for a 
portion of Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park, Plat 93-2, specifically a building 
known as the Prince William Sound Science Center and the south west 50 feet of the dock to the 
Prince William Sound Science and Technology Institute, an Alaska nonprofit corporation, doing 
business as Prince William Sound Science Center for the operation of the Prince William Sound 
Science Center – 2nd reading 

6. Resolution 02-14-05…………………………………………………………………………….…... (page 28)
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the appropriation 
from the general fund in the amount of $42,000 to the Cordova Community Medical Center 
(CCMC) to fund the cost of Task 200 (final documents) phase of the CT scanner project at 
Cordova Community Medical Center 

7. Resolution 02-14-06……………………………………………………………………………..….. (page 30)
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the appropriation 
from the general fund in the amount of $225,000 to the Cordova Community Medical Center 
(CCMC) to fund the cost of a CT scanner purchase and installation at Cordova Community 
Medical Center 

8. Resolution 02-14-07……………………………………………………………………………….... (page 32)
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a sole source contract with Arctic Information Technology in accordance with the 
attached statement of work to provide network management through the TotalCare program for the 
City of Cordova for FY2014 

9. Resolution 02-14-08……………………………………………………………………………….... (page 46)
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, directing the City Clerk to 
prepare and publish a certified copy of the foreclosure list of delinquent real property taxes for 
the year 2013 

10. Resolution 02-14-09………………………………………………………………………….……. (page 48)



A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a 10 year lease of property legally described as Lot 5, Block 1, South Fill Development 
Park Plat 85-9 with the North West Company (International) Inc. 

11. Council concurrence of Mayor’s appointment of the 2014 Election Board…………………..…… (page 61)
12. Record unexcused absences for Mayor Kacsh and Bradford from the January 15, 2014 Regular Meeting

 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
13. Regular Meeting Minutes 1-15-14………………………………..……….....…………................. (page 62)
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS  
14. Mayor’s Report
15. Manager’s Report

a. City Lobbyist, John Bitney, Juneau Legislative update……………………………………..…. (page 66)
16. City Clerk’s Report…………………………………..…………………………………........…….. (page 69)
17. Staff Reports - 4Q 2013 Reports

a. Miriam Dunbar, Library Director………………………………………..….………...…..…… (page 70)
b. Paul Trumblee, Fire Marshal, CVFD…..……………………………………..………….....…. (page 72)
c. Tony Schinella, Harbormaster……..………….………………………..…………………...….. (page 77)
d. Susie Herschleb, Park & Recreation Director……………………….……………………….… (page 78)
e. George Wintle, Chief of Police …………………..…………………………..…..….…...….… (page 82)
f. Laura Cloward, Information Services Director………………………………………..……..... (page 88)
g. Cathy Sherman, Museum Director………………………………………………………….…. (page 90)
h. Jon Stavig, Finance Director……………………..……………………….………..……….….. (page 94)
i. Samantha Greenwood, City Planner………….……………………………………….……….. (page 98)

 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
18. Letter 01-15-14 from State DCCED in re Cordova Population determination 2013 ………...…… (page 99)
19. Letter from 3rd grade of Ashford Academy to Mayor Kacsh………………………………..…… (page 100)
20. Letter from Ketchikan Mayor in re lawsuit concerning school funding 01-22-14……………..… (page 101)
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
21. Resolution 02-14-10………………………………………………………………………...……. (page 104)

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, supporting NVE’s proposal
#333 to the Board of Fish to be heard at the statewide King and Tanner Crab Board of Fish
meeting in Anchorage March 17-21, 2014 regarding a commercial Tanner Crab fishery in PWS

 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
22. Brian Wildrick request for extension of Performance Deed of Trust on…………... (voice vote)(page 106)

Lot 8 Block 2 South Fill Development Park
23. Joel Azure, NVE performance deed of trust proposal……………………………… (voice vote)(page 141)
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
24. Bulk mailer re letter writing to legislators about Cordova Center funding………….. (voice vote)(page 166)
25. Pending Agenda and Calendar……………………………………………………...…........…….. (page 171)
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
26. Council Comments
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
28. Attorney advice regarding City Performance Deeds of Trust - (materials under separate cover to Council)   

R. ADJOURNMENT  

∞∞∞∞ ∞∞∞∞ ∞∞∞∞ ∞∞∞∞ 
Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the 
government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by 
law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



Randy Robertson 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Randy, 

Andrew Smallwood <andrewsmallwoodfc@gmail.com > 
Wednesday, January 29, 2014 10:42 AM 
Randy Robertson 
Re: Update 

Always impressed when I see you out working in the field! 

v , My board authorised us to accept the lease as proposed so that can go forward. I will get you that formally in 
the next few days. 

The board also authorised us to make an offer on the new fill so we can discuss that when we meet. 

When would be convenient? 

Andrew 

13

cityclerk
Highlight



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    January 16, 2014 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      Ordinance 1113 
 

 
The following ordinance was on the agenda for first reading on December 4, 2014. After Council 
received information from the City Manager in executive session regarding his negotiations with the 
PWSSC on this lease, Council referred the ordinance to staff hoping to see it back when there was 
agreement to the terms they directed the City Manager to negotiate. On January 15, the ordinance was 
ready for a first reading although the PWSSC Board of Directors would be meeting on January 24 so 
that their final approval could be relayed to their executive director and then to the City Manager only 
timely enough for second reading. Council opted to make a slight change on January 15 by adding a 
fourth whereas that was in the body of the lease, into the body of the ordinance itself so that Council’s 
intent was more clear. This edit was deemed not significant and therefore, the ordinance is fit for 
public hearing, second reading and final approval tonight at the February 5, 2014 meeting. 
 
Recommended motion: Move to adopt Ordinance 1113. 
 
Required action:  Majority roll call vote. 
 
 
   

14



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1113 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AUTHORIZING A LEASE FOR A PORTION OF LOT 2, BLOCK 7A, TIDEWATER 
DEVELOPMENT PARK, PLAT 93-2, SPECIFICALLY A BUILDING KNOWN AS THE 

PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND SCIENCE CENTER AND THE SOUTH WEST 50 FEET OF 
THE DOCK TO THE PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 
INSTITUTE, AN ALASKA NONPROFIT CORPORATION, DOING BUSINESS AS 
PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND SCIENCE CENTER FOR THE OPERATION OF THE 

PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND SCIENCE CENTER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Cordova and the Prince William Sound Science and Technology 
Institute d/b/a Prince William Sound Science Center have worked together to maintain the Prince 
William Sound Science Center located in Cordova, and operated by the Prince William Sound 
Science and Technology Institute, and both parties desire to enter the lease for eight years, effective 
January 1, 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Prince William Sound Science Center will be operated on a nonprofit 
basis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the City of Cordova to make space available for 
the Prince William Sound Science Center under the terms and conditions provided in the lease 
referred to below. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lessor intends to utilize this tract of land after the termination of this 8 
year lease for expansion of the Cordova Small Boat Harbor facility. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, that 
 

Section 1.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Cordova City Code Chapter 5.22, the 
Council of the City of Cordova hereby authorizes the lease to the Prince William Sound Science 
and Technology Institute d/b/a Prince William Sound Science Center for a term of eight years, for a 
portion of Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park, Plat 93-2, specifically a building known 
as the Prince William Sound Science Center and the South West 50 feet of the dock. 
 

Section 2.  The form and content of the Lease between the City and the Prince William 
Sound Science and Technology Institute d/b/a Prince William Sound Science Center hereby are in 
all respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the City Manager is authorized, empowered 
and directed to execute and deliver the Lease to the Prince William Sound Science and Technology 
Institute d/b/a Prince William Sound Science Center on behalf of the City, in substantially the form 
and content now before this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions 
therein as they shall deem necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute 
conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions 
therein from the form and content of said document now before this meeting, and from and after the 
execution and delivery of said document, the City Manager is authorized, empowered and directed 
to do all acts and things and to execute all documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply 

Ord. 1113 
Page 1 of 2 15



 

with the provisions of the lease as executed. 
 

Section 3.  This ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of 
the City of Cordova, Alaska, and published within ten (10) days after its passage. 

 
 Section 4.    If one or more referendum petitions with signatures are properly filed within 
one (1) month after the passage and publication of this ordinance, the ordinance shall not go into 
effect until the petition or petitions are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient or, if any such 
petition is found legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved in an election by a majority of 
the qualified voters, voting on the question.  If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, this 
ordinance shall go into effect 30 days after its passage and publication. 
 
1st reading: December 4, 2013 – was on agenda got referred to staff 
 
Second 1st reading: January 15, 2014 
 
2nd reading and public hearing: February 5, 2014   
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014. 
 

      
        ______________________________ 
        Jim Kacsh, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 

    
______________________________ 

        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 
  

Ord. 1113 
Page 2 of 2 16



 

CITY OF CORDOVA 
Cordova, Alaska 

 
LEASE 

 
 

THIS LEASE (“Lease”) entered into by and between the CITY OF CORDOVA, an Alaska 
municipal corporation (“City”), and the PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 
INSTITUTE, an Alaska nonprofit corporation, doing business as Prince William Sound Science Center 
(“Lessee”), on ____ day of _____________ 2013. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, City owns a tract of land and all improvements thereon in Cordova, Alaska;  
 

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease a portion of that tract of land from City, and City desires to 
lease a portion of a tract of land to Lessee, on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council (“Council”) has approved the Lease from City to Lessee in 

accordance with Cordova City Charter §5-17 and the Cordova Municipal Code Chapter 5.22 (“Code” or 
“CMC”). 

 “WHEREAS, the Lessor intends to utilize this tract of land after the termination of this 8 year 
lease for expansion of the Cordova small boat harbor facility.” 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants of the parties 

hereto, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES   
 

The City hereby leases to Lessee that certain tract of land and the improvements located within 
the Cordova Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, and within the City of Cordova, 
more particularly described as: 

A portion of  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park, Plat 
93-2, specifically a building known as the Prince William Sound 
Science Center and the South West 50 feet of the dock, as set 
forth in Exhibit A, incorporated herein by reference (“Premises”). 

 
2. LEASE TERM 

 
A. Lease Term.  The Lease Term shall be eight (8) years, commencing on January 1, 2014 

(“Commencement Date”) and expiring on December 31, 2021, unless earlier terminated in accordance 
with the terms of this Lease.   

 
B.  Lease Termination The Lease may be terminated by either party at any time upon one 

hundred eighty (180) days written notice. 
 

 
3. RENT 

 
A. Base Rent.  The monthly rent during the Lease Term shall be Six Hundred Fifty Dollars 

($650.00) (“Base Rent”).  Base Rent is due on the first day of each calendar month during the Lease 
Term.  Lessee shall pay Base Rent to the City in lawful money of the United States without abatement, 
deduction or set-off for any reason whatsoever, at the address provided for notice to the City set forth in 
Section 19.E of this Lease, or at any other place that the City may from time to time direct in writing.  
Base Rent shall be paid promptly when due without notice or demand therefor.  The parties intend the 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 1 o f  11 
 17



 

Base Rent to be absolutely net to the City.  All costs, expenses, and obligations of every kind and nature 
whatsoever in connection with or relating to the Premises shall be the obligation of, and shall be paid by, 
Lessee.  
 

B. Additional Charges Without limiting in any way Lessee’s payment obligations, the City 
shall have the right, but not the obligation, at all times during the Lease term, to pay any charges levied or 
imposed upon the Premises that remain unpaid after the same have become due and payable, and the 
amount paid, plus the City’s reasonable expenses, shall be Additional Rent due from Lessee to City, with 
interest thereon at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the date of payment thereof by the City 
until repayment thereof by Lessee. 

 
C. Late Penalty Provision.  Rent not paid within ten (10) days after the due date shall be 

assessed a late charge of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent amount; such charge shall be considered 
liquidated damages and shall be due and payable as Additional Rent.  In the event the late charge 
assessment above exceeds the maximum amount allowable by law, the amount assessed will be 
adjusted to the maximum amount allowable by law. 

 
 D. Security Deposit.  Upon execution of this Lease, the City may require Lessee to deposit 
with the City an amount equal to two months’ rent (the “Security Deposit”).  The Security Deposit shall be 
held by the City as security for the faithful performance by Lessee of all of Lessee’s obligations under this 
Lease.   If Lessee fails to pay the Base Rent or a portion thereof, or otherwise defaults with respect to any 
provision of this Lease after notice and beyond the expiration of any applicable cure period, the City may 
use, apply, or retain all or any portion of the Security Deposit for:  
 
  (i)  the payment of any Rent, Additional Charges, or other sum in default;  
 
  (ii)  the payment of any other sum to which the City may become obligated by reason of 
Lessee's default; or  
 
  (iii)  to compensate the City for any loss or damage which the City may suffer thereby, 
including but not limited to any costs associated with moving and storage of Lessee’s personal property (if 
any) remaining on the Premises beyond termination of the Lease.  
 
The City may commingle the Security Deposit with funds held in the City’s own accounts, including 
accounts in which the City keeps other security deposits.  If Lessee performs all of its obligations under 
this Lease, the Security Deposit, or so much thereof as has not been used, applied, or retained by the 
City in accordance with this Section, shall be returned to Lessee, at the expiration of the Lease Term, and 
subject to Lessee relinquishing possession of the Premises, without payment of interest or other 
increment for its use, within 30 days after Lessee vacates the Premises.  
 

4. USES AND CONDITION OF PREMISES 
 
A. Authorized Uses.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to Lessee’s day to day 

operations and business.  The Premises shall not, without the City’s prior written consent, be used for any 
other purpose.   

B. Repairs and Maintenance.  Lessee must keep the interior of the building on the Premises  
in a neat and orderly state and the same condition as existed at the commencement of the Lease Term, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire or other casualty excepted.  Either party may, but neither 
party shall be required, to repair or maintain the foundation, pilings, roof, bearing walls, lines for general 
supply of electricity, water, sewer or other structural elements of the Premises.   
 

C. Inspections.  The City and its authorized representatives and agents shall have the right, 
but not the obligation, to enter the Premises at all reasonable times to inspect the use and condition of the 
Premises; to serve, post, or keep posted any notices required or allowed under the provisions of this 
Lease, including notices of non-responsibility for liens; and to do any act necessary for the safety or 
preservation of the Premises.  The City shall not be liable in any manner for any inconvenience, 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 2 o f  11 
 18



 

disturbance, loss of business, nuisance, or other damage arising out of the City’s entry onto the 
Premises, except for damage resulting directly from the acts of the City or its authorized representatives 
or agents.   
 

D. Compliance with Laws.  Lessee shall maintain and repair the Premises in compliance 
with all applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, rules, orders, permits, licenses, and other authorizations.  
Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Premises for any purpose prohibited by law or which would 
cause a cancellation or increase in premium of any insurance policy covering the Premises.  Lessee shall 
not cause or permit any Hazardous Material (as defined in Section 8.B of this Lease) to be brought upon, 
kept, or used in, on or about the Premises except for such Hazardous Material as is necessary to conduct 
Lessee’s authorized uses of the Premises.  Any such Hazardous Material brought upon, kept, or used in, 
on, or about the Premises shall be used, kept, stored, and disposed of in a manner that complies with all 
environmental laws and regulations applicable to Hazardous Material.  Lessee shall not cause or allow 
the release or discharge of any other materials or substances that are known to pose a hazard to the 
environment or human health. 
 

E. Lessee’s Acceptance of Premises.  Lessee has inspected the Premises to its complete 
satisfaction and is familiar with its condition, and the City makes no representations or warranties with 
respect thereto, including but not limited to the condition of the Premises or its suitability or fitness for any 
use Lessee may make of the Premises.  Lessee accepts the Premises AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL 
FAULTS.  No action or inaction by the Council, the City Manager, or any other officer, agent, or employee 
of the City relating to or in furtherance of the Lease shall be deemed to constitute an express or implied 
representation or warranty that the Premises, or any part thereof, is suitable or usable or any specific 
purpose whatsoever.  Any such action or inaction shall be deemed to be and constitute performance of a 
discretionary policy and planning function only, and shall be immune and give no right of action as 
provided in Alaska Statute 09.65.070, or any amendment thereto.  
 

F. Modifications and Alterations.  The Lessee shall not modify or make structural 
alterations or changes to the Premises without the City’s prior written consent, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
5. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING; SUBORDINATION 

 
Lessee shall not assign or otherwise transfer this Lease or any interest herein or sublet the 

Premises or any portion thereof, or permit the occupancy of any part of the Premises by any other person 
or entity, without the City’s prior written consent, which consent the City may withhold in its absolute 
discretion.  The City shall not be required to subordinate this Lease or the City’s interest in the Premises 
to the interest of any other person or entity. 
 

6. OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, UTILITIES, TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 
 

Subject to the limitations stated in Section 4B, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, 
be solely responsible for all operations, maintenance, utilities, taxes, and assessments on, for, and 
against the Premises.  Lessee agrees to pay before delinquency all charges levied against the Premises, 
including: (i) electric, sewer, and water utility service; (ii) heating (iii) telephone, facsimile, and Internet 
service; (iv) trash collection (v) regular cleaning;; (vi) snow removal; (vii) insurance for all buildings, 
structures, equipment, and personal property on the Premises; (viii) property taxes; (ix) public 
improvements; and (x) license, excise fees, and occupation taxes covering the business conducted on 
the Premises. 
 

7. LIENS 
 

Lessee will suffer no lien or other encumbrance to attach to the Premises, including without 
limitation mechanic’s or materialman’s liens, sales tax liens under CMC § 5.40.125, or property tax liens 
under CMC § 5.36.260.  If the City posts any notice of non-responsibility on the Premises, Lessee will 
ensure that the notice is maintained in a conspicuous place. 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 3 o f  11 
 19



 

 
8. INDEMNIFICATION  

 
A. General Indemnification.  Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City and its 

authorized representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all 
actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other 
costs or expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and 
consultant and expert fees) resulting from, arising out of, or related to Lessee’s occupation or use of the 
Premises or the occupation or use of the Premises by Lessee’s employees, agents, servants, customers, 
contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, or invitees, including but not limited to all claims and demands 
arising out of any labor performed, materials furnished, or obligations incurred in connection with any 
improvements, repairs, or alterations constructed or made on the Premises and the cost of defending 
against such claims, including reasonable attorney fees.  In the event that such a lien is recorded against 
the Premises, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense within ninety (90) days after being served with 
written notice thereof, protect the City against said lien by filing a lien release bond or causing the release 
of such lien. 
 

B. Environmental Indemnification.  Lessee has had full opportunity to examine the 
Premises for the presence of any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) and accepts the Premises 
AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS.  Lessee releases the City and its authorized representatives, 
agents, officers, and employees from any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, 
judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or expenses (including, without limitation, 
attorneys’ fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) arising during or after the 
Lease Term, that result from the use, keeping, storage, or disposal of Hazardous Material in, on or about 
the Premises by Lessee, or that arise out of or result from Lessee’s occupancy or use of the Premises or 
the use or occupancy of the Premises by Lessee’s employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees, or authorized representatives.  This release includes, without 
limitation, any and all costs incurred due to any investigation of the Premises or any cleanup, removal, or 
restoration mandated by a federal, state, or local agency or political subdivision, or by law or regulation.  
Lessee agrees that it shall be fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, storage, and 
disposal of Hazardous Material generated, kept or brought on the Premises by Lessee, its employees, 
agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees or authorized 
representatives.  

 
Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City and its authorized representatives, agents, 

officers, and employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, 
liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court 
costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, 
contingent or otherwise, arising in whole or in part from or in any way related to (i) the presence, disposal, 
release, or threatened release of any such Hazardous Material which is on or from the Premises, soil, 
water, ground water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons, animals, or otherwise; (ii) any 
personal injury or property damage arising out of or related to such Hazardous Material; (iii) any lawsuit 
brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such Hazardous Material; and 
(iv) any violation of any laws applicable to such Hazardous Material; provided, however, that the acts 
giving rise to the claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or 
expenses arise in whole or in part from the use of, operations on, or activities on the Premises by Lessee 
or its employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees, or 
authorized representatives.  

 
As used in this Lease, “Hazardous Material” means any substance which is toxic, ignitable, 

reactive, or corrosive or which is regulated by any federal, state, or local law or regulation, as now in force 
or as hereafter may be amended from time to time, relating to the protection of human health or the 
environment, as well as any judgments, orders, injunctions, awards, decrees, covenants, conditions, or 
other restrictions or standards relating to the same.  Hazardous Material includes any and all material or 
substances that are defined as “hazardous waste,” “extremely hazardous waste,” or a “hazardous 
substance” under any such law or regulation. 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 4 o f  11 
 20



 

 
9. INSURANCE 

 
Lessee shall procure and maintain, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, the following insurance 

policies with a reputable insurance company or companies satisfactory to the City: 
 
(1) Commercial general liability insurance in respect of the Premises and the conduct of Lessee’s 

business and operations, naming the City as an additional insured, with minimum limits of liability of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident or occurrence for bodily injury and death, and property 
damage for each occurrence;  

 
(2) Property insurance, insuring against loss or damage by fire and such other risks as are 

customarily included in the broad form of extended coverage, in an amount of coverage not less than the 
replacement value of the improvements on the Premises, if any, and on such terms as are satisfactory to 
the City; 

  
(3) Personal property insurance covering Lessee’s trade fixtures, furnishings, equipment, and 

other items of personal property of Lessee located on the Premises; and 
 
(4) Workers compensation insurance, and such other insurance as is required by law. 
 

All insurance required under this Lease shall contain an endorsement requiring thirty (30) days’ advance 
written notice to the City before cancellation or change in the coverage, scope, or amount of any policy.  
Prior to commencement of the Lease term, Lessee shall provide the City with proof of the insurance 
required by this Section 9. 
 

10. REMOVAL OF PROPERTY 
 

Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, at the option of the City, Lessee shall remove 
from the Premises, at Lessee’s sole expense, all property Lessee has placed or caused to be placed on 
the Premises.  Lessee shall repair any damage to the Premises caused by such removal and return the 
Premises as near as possible to its original condition as existed before such installation or improvement.  
All below surface installations, including pilings driven by Lessee or otherwise, shall become the property 
of the City upon this Lease’s termination.  All Lessee property that is not promptly removed by Lessee 
pursuant to the City’s request and in any event within ninety (90) days of the date of expiration or 
termination of this Lease may be removed, sold, destroyed, or otherwise disposed of in any manner 
deemed appropriate by the City, all at Lessee’s sole expense.  Lessee hereby agrees to pay the City for 
such reasonable net expenses incurred by the Lessor.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in 
this Lease, all petroleum, fuel, or chemical storage tanks installed in or on the Premises during the Lease 
Term shall remain the property of the Lessee and, upon expiration or earlier termination of the Lease and 
upon request of the City, Lessee shall remove any and all such tanks and any and all contaminated soil 
and other materials from the Premises, all at Lessee’s sole expense.   
 

11. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

A. Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default and a breach of 
this Lease by the Lessee: 

 
(i) The failure to make payment when due of any installment of Base Rent, Additional 

Charges, or of any other sum herein specified to be paid by the Lessee; 
 
(ii) The failure to pay any taxes or assessments due from the Lessee to the City and in any 

way related to this Lease, the Premises, any improvements, or the Lessee’s activities or business 
conducted thereon, including but not limited to any real property, personal property, or sales taxes; 

 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 5 o f  11 
 21



 

(iii) An assignment for the benefit of Lessee’s creditors or the filing of a voluntary or 
involuntary petition by or against Lessee under any law for the purpose of adjudicating Lessee a 
bankrupt, or for extending the time for payment, adjustment, or satisfaction of Lessee’s liabilities, or for 
reorganization, dissolution, or arrangement on account of or to prevent bankruptcy or insolvency, unless 
the assignment or proceeding, and all consequent orders, adjudications, custodies, and supervision are 
dismissed, vacated, or otherwise permanently stated or terminated within thirty (30) days after the 
assignment, filing or other initial event; 

 
(iv) The appointment of a receiver or a debtor-in-possession to take possession of the 

Premises (or any portion thereof) or of Lessee’s interest in the leasehold estate (or any portion thereof) or 
of Lessee’s operations on the Premises (or any portion thereof) by reason of Lessee’s insolvency; 

 
(v)  The abandonment or vacation of the Premises or any portion thereof; 
 
(vi) Execution, levy, or attachment on Lessee’s interest in this Lease or the Premises, or any 

portion thereof; 
 
(vii) The breach or violation of any statutes, laws, regulations, rules, or ordinances of any kind 

applicable to Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; or 
 
(viii) The failure to observe or perform any covenant, promise, agreement, obligation, or 

condition set forth in this Lease, other than the payment of rent, if such failure shall not be cured within 
ten (10) days after written notice has been given to Lessee.  Notices given under this subsection shall 
specify the alleged breach and the applicable Lease provision and demand that the Lessee perform 
according to the terms of the Lease.  No such notice shall be deemed a forfeiture or termination of this 
Lease unless the City expressly makes such election in the notice. 

 
B. Remedies.  If the Lessee breaches any provision of this Lease, in addition to all other 

rights and remedies the City has at law or in equity, the City may do one or more of the following:  
 

(i) Distrain for rent due any of Lessee’s personal property which comes into the City’s 
possession.  This remedy shall include the right of the City to dispose of Lessee’s personal property in a 
commercially reasonable manner.  Lessee agrees that compliance with the procedures set forth in the 
Alaska Uniform Commercial Code with respect to the sale of property shall be a commercially reasonable 
disposal. 

 
(ii) Re-enter the Premises, take possession thereof, and remove all property from the 

Premises.  The property may be removed and stored at Lessee’s expense, all without service of notice or 
resort to legal process, which Lessee waives, and without the City becoming liable for any damage that 
may result unless the loss or damage is caused by the City’s negligence in the removal or storage of the 
property.  No re-entry by the City shall be deemed an acceptance of surrender of this Lease.  No 
provision of this Lease shall be construed as an assumption by the City of a duty to re-enter and re-let the 
Premises upon Lessee’s default.  If Lessee does not immediately surrender possession of the Premises 
after termination by the City and upon demand by the City, the City may forthwith enter into and upon and 
repossess the Premises and expel Lessee without being deemed guilty in any manner of trespass and 
without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise be used for arrears of rent or breach of 
covenant; 
 

(iii) Declare this Lease terminated;  
 

(iv) Recover, whether this Lease is terminated or not, reasonable attorney’s fees and all other 
expenses incurred by the City by reason of the default or breach by Lessee;  
 

(v) Recover an amount to be due immediately upon breach equal to the sum of all Base 
Rentent, Additional Charges, and other payments for which Lessee is obligated under the Lease;  

 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 6 o f  11 
 22



 

(vi) Recover the costs of performing any duty of Lessee in this Lease; 
 

(vii) Collect any and all rents due or to become due from sublessees or other occupants of the 
Premises. 
 

12. SUBSIDENCE 
 

The City shall not be responsible for any washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling, or reliction to 
the Premises, or for any injury caused thereby to Lessee’s or any sublessee’s property, or that of any 
other person.  The City is not obligated to replace, refill, or improve any part of the Premises during 
Lessee’s occupancy in the event of such washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling, or reliction.  Lessee 
shall not be responsible for any such event, and shall not be required to repair any damage resulting 
therefrom. 

 
13. VACATION BY LESSEE  
 
Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Lessee shall peaceably vacate the 

Premises and the Premises shall be returned to the City by Lessee together with any alterations, 
additions, or improvements made after the Commencement Date, unless the City requests that they be 
removed from the Premises.  Upon such vacation, Lessee shall remove from the Premises any items of 
personal property brought on to the Premises.  Any such property not removed from the Premises within 
thirty (30) days of the expiration or termination of this Lease shall become the property of the City at no 
cost or charge to the City, and may be removed, sold, destroyed, or otherwise disposed of in any manner 
deemed appropriate by the City, all at Lessee’s sole expense.  Lessee hereby agrees to pay the City for 
such expenses.   

 
14. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

 
The City reserves the right to designate and grant rights-of-way and utility easements across the 

Premises without compensation to Lessee or any other party, including the right of ingress and egress to 
and from the Premises for the construction, operation, and maintenance of utilities and access, provided 
that Lessee shall be compensated for the taking or destruction of any improvements on the Premises.  
Lessee shall be responsible for requesting a rental adjustment to reflect any reduction in the value of the 
Premises.  
 

15. SIGNS 
 

No signs or other advertising symbols, canopies, or awnings shall be attached to or painted on or 
within the Premises without first obtaining the City Manager’s approval; provided, however, that this 
prohibition shall not apply to standard, directional, informational, and identification signs of two square 
feet or less in size.  At the termination of this Lease, or sooner, all such signs, advertising matter, 
symbols, canopies, or awnings, attached or painted by Lessee shall be removed from the Premises by 
Lessee at its own expense, and Lessee shall repair any damage or injury to the Premises, and correct 
any unsightly conditions caused by the maintenance or removal of said signs. 
 

16. HOLDING OVER 
 

If Lessee, with the City’s written consent, remains in possession of the Premises after the 
expiration or termination of the Lease Term for any cause, or after the date in any notice given by the City 
to Lessee terminating this Lease, such holding over shall be deemed a tenancy from month to month at 
the same rental amount applicable immediately prior to such expiration or termination, subject to 
adjustment in accordance with CMC § 5.22.040(c) or such successor provision of the code then in effect, 
and shall be terminable on 30 days’ written notice given at any time by either party.  All other provisions of 
this Lease except those pertaining to term and rent shall apply to the month-to-month tenancy.  If Lessee 
holds over without the City’s express written consent, Lessee is deemed to be a Lessee at sufferance and 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 7 o f  11 
 23



 

may be removed through a forcible entry and detainer proceeding without service on Lessee of a notice 
to quit.   
 

17. EMINENT DOMAIN 
 
If the whole or any part of the Premises shall be taken for any public or quasi-public use, under 

any statute or by right of eminent domain or private purchase in lieu thereof by a public body vested with 
the power of eminent domain, then the following provisions shall be operative. 
 

A. Total Taking.  If the Premises are totally taken by condemnation, this Lease shall 
terminate. 
 

B. Partial Taking. If the Premises are partially taken by condemnation, and the remaining 
space is suitable for Lessee’s uses, then this Lease shall continue and the rent as specified in Section 3 
above shall be abated in a proportion equal to the ratio that the portion of the Premises taken bears to the 
total Premises leased hereunder. 

 
C. Award.  Upon condemnation, the parties shall share in the award to the extent that their 

interests, respectively, are depreciated, damaged, or destroyed by the condemnation. 
 
18. COSTS 
 
Lessee shall be liable to and shall pay the City for the fees and costs incurred by the City in 

connection with the preparation, operation, and enforcement of this Lease.   
 
19. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Time Is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Lease and of each provision 

hereof. 
 

B. Entire Agreement.  This Lease represents the entire agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be amended except in writing executed by the City 
and Lessee. 
 

C. Governing Law and Venue.  This Lease shall be subject to the provisions of the Code 
now or hereafter in effect.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Alaska law 
and any action arising under this Lease shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Cordova, 
Alaska.   

 
D. Relationship of Parties.  Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to create 

the relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of any association between 
Lessee and the City.  Neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provisions contained in 
this Lease, nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to create any relationship between the City and 
Lessee other than the relationship of Lessee and landlord. 
 

E. Notice.  All notices hereunder may be hand-delivered or mailed.  If mailed, they shall be 
sent by certified or registered mail to the following respective addresses: 

 
TO CITY:     TO LESSEE: 

 
City of Cordova    Prince William Sound Science & Technology 
Attn: City Manager    Institute, d/b/a Prince William Sound Science  
P.O. Box 1210     Center 
Cordova, Alaska  99574   Attn: President 
      P.O. Box 705 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 8 o f  11 
 24



 

      Cordova, Alaska 99574 
 
or to such other respective addresses as either party hereto may hereafter from time to time designate in 
advance in writing to the other party.  Notices sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given when 
properly mailed, and the postmark affixed by the U.S. Post Office shall be conclusive evidence of the date 
of mailing. If hand-delivered, notice shall be deemed to have been made at the time of delivery. 

 
F. Captions.  Captions herein are for convenience and reference and shall not be used in 

construing the provisions of this Lease. 
 

G. No Waiver of Breach.  No failure by the City to insist upon the strict performance of any 
term, covenant, or condition of this Lease, or to exercise any right or remedy upon a breach thereof, shall 
constitute a waiver of any such breach or of such term, covenant, or condition.  No waiver of any breach 
shall effect or alter this Lease, but each and every term, covenant, and condition of this Lease shall 
continue in full force and effect with respect to any other existing or subsequent breach. 
 

H. Survival.  No expiration or termination of this Lease shall expire or terminate any liability 
or obligation to perform which arose prior to the termination or expiration. 
 

I. Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Lease is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force 
and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated. 
 

J. Successors and Assigns.  The terms, covenants, and conditions in this Lease shall 
inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the City and 
Lessee. 

 
K. Estoppel Certificates.  Either party shall at any time and from time to time, upon not less 

than ten (10) days’ prior written request by the other party, execute, acknowledge, and deliver to such 
party a statement certifying that this Lease is unamended and in full force and effect (or, if there has been 
any amendment, that the same is in full force and effect as amended and stating the amendments); that 
there are no defaults existing (or, if there is any claimed default, stating the nature and extent thereof); 
and stating the dates to which the rent and other charges have been paid in advance. 
 

L. Recordation of Lease.  The parties agree that this Lease shall not be recorded, but 
upon the request of either party, the other party will join the requesting party in executing a memorandum 
of lease in a form suitable for recording, and each party agrees that such memorandum shall be prepared 
and recorded at the requesting party’s expense. 
 

M. Authority.  Lessee represents that Lessee is a nonprofit corporation duly organized, 
validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Alaska, and is duly authorized to do 
business in the State of Alaska, and that Lessee has all necessary power and is duly authorized to enter 
into this Lease and to carry out the obligations of Lessee hereunder.  Prior to executing this Lease, the 
City may request that Lessee provide the City with a resolution of Lessee’s Board of Directors authorizing 
Lessee to enter into this Lease and to carry out its obligations hereunder as set forth above, and 
authorizing and directing the officer of Lessee whose name and signature appear at the end of this Lease 
to execute this Lease on Lessee’s behalf.   

 
N. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed to 

create any rights or benefits to any parties not signatories or successors or permitted assigns of 
signatories to this Lease. 

 
O. Interpretation.  The language in all parts of this Lease shall in all cases be simply 

construed according to its fair meaning and not for or against the City or Lessee as both City and Lessee 
have had the assistance of attorneys in drafting and reviewing this Lease. 
 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 9 o f  11 
 25



 

P. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so 
executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  

 
Q. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event that the City shall bring any suit or action to enforce this 

Lease or any term or provision hereof, and shall prevail in such suit or action, Lessee agrees that Lessee 
shall pay the City’s attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses incurred in connection with such suit or action. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be executed on the date first 

noted above. 
 
 
CITY:      CITY OF CORDOVA 
      an  Alaska m un icipal co rpo rat ion 

 
 

Dated:      By:       
Its:  City Manager 

 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 

City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
LESSEE: PRINCE WILLIAM SOUND SCIENCE AND 

TECHNOLOGY INSTITUTE 
an Alaska nonprofit corporation d/b/a Prince William 
Sound Science Center 
 
 
 

Dated:      By:       
      Its:       
  

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 10 of  11 
 26



 

Exhibit A 
Diagram of Premises 

Lease f o r  Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
  Page 11 of  11 
 27



Memorandum     

 
To:    Cordova City Council  
From:   Theresa Carté, CCMC Administrator  
Date:    January 22, 2014 
Re:   CT Scanner Resolution to fund Task 200: Final Documents 

 
 
CCMC has budgeted this year for the CT Scanner to be operational in November 2014.  The 
budget includes both the planned revenue from the additional services we will be providing and 
the expenses associated with its use. 
 
In order to be ready as quickly as possible to begin renovations and installation, we need to 
continue the work on the Architectural and Engineering Design process.  We completed Task 
100, Concept Design in July 2013.  The next step is the Final Documents. 
 
The Spark Design, LLC team will coordinate the completion of the construction documents 
package.  The Final Documents will be prepared for a design-bid-build delivery.  The package 
will consist of drawings and specifications.  Cordova Community Medical Center/City of 
Cordova will provide Division 00 and Division 01 of the specification for bidding and 
construction contract purposes to support this work. 
 
We would like the City Council to approve the payment for this next step in the CT Scanner 
project. 
 
Requested Motion:  I move to approve the “CT Scanner Resolution to fund Task 200: Final 
Documents to Spark Design, LLC” 
 
 
 

28



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 02-14-05 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION FROM THE GENERAL FUND IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $42,000 TO THE CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER 

(CCMC) TO FUND THE COST OF TASK 200 (FINAL DOCUMENTS) PHASE OF THE 
CT SCANNER PROJECT AT CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council and the City of Cordova Community Medical Center 

(CCMC) have had several discussions concerning the need to procure a CT scanner; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purchase and installation of a CT scanner at Cordova Community 
Medical Center would benefit the citizens of Cordova through increase diagnostic capability that 
could allow patients to receive treatment in Cordova and reduce the need to leave Cordova for 
services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the installation of a CT scanner requires careful planning including 

professional design services for building modifications and cost estimates necessary to the 
installation of a major item of specialized equipment in an active health facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, Spark Design, LLC has been contracted to provide the Design Services for 

the CCMC CT scanner project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sparks Design, LLC has completed Task 100 Concept Design and it is time 

to complete Task 200 Final Documents;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Cordova will provide $42,000 
for payment to Spark Alaska, LLC for the completion of Task 200 Final Documents for the 
CCMC CT Scanner project. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014. 

 
 
        ______________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
        ______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

29



Memorandum     

 
To:    Cordova City Council  
From:   Theresa Carté, CCMC Administrator  
Date:    January 22, 2014 
Re:    Resolution of support for CT Scanner 

 
 
CCMC has followed the City of Cordova’s request to pursue grant funding in the purchase and 
installation of the CT Scanner.  We are working with Rasmuson, Murdock, and USDA to 
acquire approximately $675,000 in support of this project.  The City of Cordova has already 
received $50,000 grant money from Providence Health & Services Alaska in support of the CT 
Scanner.  The total amount we are pursuing from grants is $725,000. 
 
As part of the Rasmuson Foundation’s grant application, they require that the City produce 
evidence of their in kind support for the CT Scanner project.  This must be done before the 
application due date in April.  They request this in an amount that is half of what we are asking 
them to contribute or the amount to make up the difference in cost of the project, whichever is 
greater.  We are asking Rasmuson for $375,000, which means half of that amount would be 
$187,500.  In this case, the amount that the City of Cordova needs to commit to the project is 
$225,000 which is the difference between the approximated total grant support ($725,000) and 
the total estimated project cost ($950,000). 
 
We would like the City Council to approve the resolution demonstrating the City of Cordova’s 
commitment of $225,000 to be paid during the course of this project.  The money does not need 
to be spent now; this is a commitment to spend, when necessary, in support of the project. 
 
Requested Motion:  I move to approve the “Resolution of support for CT Scanner”  
 
 
 

30



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 02-14-06 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION FROM THE GENERAL FUND IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $225,000 TO THE CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER 

(CCMC) TO FUND THE COST OF A CT SCANNER PURCHASE AND 
INSTALLATION AT CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cordova and Cordova Community Medical Center have been 

discussing the Cordova Community Medical Center purchasing a CT scanner; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purchase and installation of a CT scanner at Cordova Community 
Medical Center would benefit the citizens of Cordova through increase diagnostic capability that 
could allow patients to receive treatment in Cordova and reduce the need to leave Cordova for 
services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the installation of a CT scanner requires careful planning including concept 

drawings and projected cost for the purchase and installation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the success of the project receiving grant funding requires a financial 

commitment from the City of Cordova. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Cordova will provide $225,000 
in capital funds to support the planning, purchase, and installation of a CT scanner at Cordova 
Community Medical Center. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014. 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  City Council, Mayor 
FROM:  Randy Robertson, City Manager 
DATE:  January 28, 2014 
RE:  Arctic Information Technology, Inc. (Arctic IT) TotalCare Statement of Work 
 
Paragraph 5.12.150 of the Cordova Municipal Code states: 

A.  The city may procure supplies, services or construction without competition where the 
city manager determines in writing that one of the following circumstances applies:  

 1. Supplies, services or construction that reasonably meet the city's requirements are 
 available from only one vendor;  
 2. The supplies, services or construction have a uniform price wherever purchased; 
 3. The supplies, services or construction may be purchased from or through another 
 governmental unit at a price lower than that obtainable from private vendors;  
 4. The price of the supplies, services or construction is fixed by a regulatory authority; or  
 5. The contract is for professional services that the council by resolution determines to 
 procure without formal competition.  

B. The award of any contract under this section shall be subject to prior council approval in 
accordance with Section 5.12.040 

 
In accordance with subparagraph 5 of the above, I wish to invite the City Council to authorize 
entering into a sole source contract with Arctic IT, of Anchorage, Alaska, to perform TotalCare 
managed information technology services and associated work as set forth in the attached 
Statement of Work (Exhibit A).  Rationale for the sole source contract for the following reason:  
The contract is for professional services, and for nearly a decade the City of Cordova has had a 
professional services relationship with Arctic IT for information management and technical 
services; As the developer and installer of Cordova’s IT systems, Arctic IT has intimate 
knowledge of the city’s overarching IT architecture along with its capabilities, concerns and 
capacity; The leadership and technicians of Arctic IT have proven themselves reliable, cost-
conscious partners as the city’s systems mature and expand; No one within the city staff who 
supports this recommendation has any known financial, social or business relationships with 
Arctic IT; The overall cost for services (NTE: $86k) is well within those incurred in prior years 
based on incremental growth within Cordova’s IT systems and expanded services requested; The 
recommendation for sole source is for this fiscal year only. Subject to the status of the projected 
relocation of the Cordova City Hall, Museum and Library to the Cordova Center, the staff will 
generate and advertise a request for proposals to open market for IT services. Over the last six 
(6) months, contact has already been made with several local, statewide and regional IT service 
providers regarding bidding of Cordova Center IT services.    
 
A summary of the nature and quantity of the performance the city shall receive is set forth in the 
attached Scope of Work (Exhibit A). 

CITY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 
Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 
 
 
 

 

32

http://library.municode.com/HTML/16292/level2/TIT5REFI_CH5.12PU.html%23TIT5REFI_CH5.12PU_5.12.040COAPCO
mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


 
The time for performance is monthly services at the stated rates through December 2014. As 
noted above, The City of Cordova will be issuing an RFI for technology services for the Cordova 
Center followed by an IT services RFP subject to the status of relocating to the Cordova Center. 
 
Recommended action: Voice Vote.  
I move to approve Resolution 02-14-07.  
 
Thank you, 
 
Randy Robertson, City Manager 

33



  
 CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 02-14-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT 

WITH ARCTIC INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
ATTACHED STATEMENT OF WORK TO PROVIDE NETWORK MANAGEMENT 

THROUGH THE TOTALCARE PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF CORDOVA FOR FY2014 
 

WHEREAS, Arctic Information Technology (AIT) has provided information technology 
support services for the City of Cordova since 2006; and 

 
WHEREAS, AIT has an in-depth understanding of the City’s aging IT infrastructure and 

hardware and the challenges associated with maintaining operations, security, and backup processes in 
that environment; and 

 
WHEREAS, AIT’s current agreement with the City of Cordova will expire on December 31, 

2014, and AIT has submitted an amendment, as attached, that reduces the previously agreed-to costs in 
recognition of the City’s efforts to update the aging system as reflected in the approved FY2014 
budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cordova intends to submit a Request for Proposals during FY2014 for 

network management services for FY2015 and incorporate the result of said process into the City 
Council’s 2015 budget process and has made an effort to notify those companies that have expressed 
an interest in such RFP of the City’s intention; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5.12.150A of the Cordova Municipal Code, the City Manager 
has determined in writing that, due to AIT’s long history with the City, their specific knowledge of the 
City’s technology systems, software requirements, and support infrastructure, and TotalCare’s pro-
active security and systems monitoring practices, critical to support an aging infrastructure, the City 
Council agrees by passing this resolution that this professional services contract with Arctic 
Information Technology should be procured without formal competition. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter into a sole source contract with Arctic Information 
Technology for TotalCare network management services for fiscal year 2014.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       James Kacsh, Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

34



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 1 of 8  

 

Statement of Work 
 

This Statement of Work (“SOW”) is an addendum to the Arctic Information Technology, Inc. (AIT) Master Services 
Agreement.  AIT and City of Cordova (Client), intending to be legally bound, hereby amend the Master Services Agreement 
as follows: 
 
The terms of this Addendum are incorporated by reference into and made a part of the Master Services Agreement as if 
fully set forth therein.  This Addendum amends the Master Services Agreement and to the extent this Addendum directly or 
indirectly conflicts with the Master Services Agreement, this Addendum shall control and supersede.  Except for the 
amendments set forth in this Addendum, the terms and conditions of the Master Services Agreement remain unchanged 
and in full force and effect.  This Addendum and the Master Services Agreement shall collectively constitute the entire 
understanding between the parties with regard to the subject matter addressed herein, and revokes and supersedes all 
prior or simultaneous representations, discussions, negotiations, whether written or oral with regard thereto.  No 
amendment, change, waiver, or discharge of any obligation or term hereof shall be valid unless in writing signed by both 
parties.   

1. Definitions 
The definitions and references provided below are used throughout this SOW and serve to help AIT and our Client to 
understand the various services being provided as part of this SOW and those services that may be provided by AIT to 
Client under a different SOW to implement a specific technology by our professional services team.  

1.1.  PCs are computers such as desktop and laptop personal computers that are regularly accessed and used by 
individuals or users within the Client’s business. 

1.2.  Critical Error is an error that occurs when Primary Functionality of the Client IT System is inaccessible, 
unusable, inoperative or degraded or retarded to such an extent that Client operation is materially adversely 
affected and there is no Work Around or such System crashes or locks up or there is data loss or corruption. 

1.3.  Desktop Support (“DS”) is the process of supporting a Client employee computer system on site to resolve 
a reported issue that either cannot be addressed remotely or that requires some component of the computer 
to be replaced or maintained. 

1.4.  Device is network equipment including but not limited to routers, switches, firewalls, and wireless access 
points. 

1.5.  Downtime means that the Client IT System is inaccessible for fifteen (15) consecutive minutes or more, 
excluding (a) normal maintenance that is routinely scheduled pursuant to Section 2.9.1 of this SOW for 
purposes of updates to the Client IT System, (b) downtime caused by malfunction of Client’s or a third party's 
software or hardware, network service provider or Internet outages described in Section 2.9.2 or by Client’s 
negligence or misuse of the Client IT System; (c) security shutdowns undertaken pursuant to Section 2.9.3; 
and (d) downtime arising out of Force Majeure events described in MSA. 

1.6.  Help Desk (“HD”) is remote end user technical support and resolution for Client staff operating system and 
business application issues.  

1.7.  High Error is an error that occurs when (i) a Primary Functionality of the Client IT System is inaccessible, 
unusable, inoperative or degraded or retarded to such an extent that Client operation is materially adversely 
affected but a reasonable Work Around exists; or (ii) a Secondary Functionality of the Client IT System is 
inaccessible, unusable or inoperative and there is no Work Around. 

1.8.  Line-of-Business Applications (“LOB”) are software applications that provide specific functionality for a 
Client or type of business; e.g. accounting software, design software, or other industry specific software not 
widely used among multiple business types or communities. 

35



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 2 of 8  

1.9.  Low Error is an error that occurs when there is an issue of minimal impact to a Secondary Functionality of 
the Client IT System. 

1.10. Maintenance is comprised of the installation of updates, patches and other periodic tasks performed on 
Client systems.  

1.11. Managed Services (“MS”) is the remote management and care of Client computers, servers, operating 
systems, network devices, and supported business applications including the monitoring of these systems for 
availability and performance characteristics. The guiding principle of a managed service is to return what was 
working yesterday to its previous state if the system should fail. 

1.12. Medium Error is an error that occurs when a Secondary Functionality of the Client IT System is inaccessible, 
unusable, inoperative or degraded or retarded to such an extent that the Client operation is materially 
adversely affected but a reasonable Work Around exists. 

1.13. Network Operations Center (“NOC”) is the facility where AIT provides remote monitoring and management 
of Client network and systems infrastructure. 

1.14. Patch Management is defined as the remote installation of manufacturer recommended operating systems 
service packs and hot fixes to Client server(s) and workstation(s) computers on a regular defined schedule or 
as needed based on recommendations from the product manufacturer. 

1.15. Primary Functionality means the ability of the Client to access and use the full functionality of the Client IT 
System and without which, the Client IT System is inaccessible, unusable, inoperative or degraded or retarded 
to such an extent that Client operation is materially adversely affected. 

1.16. Professional Services (“PS”) is the engagement of a company such as AIT to upgrade and/or implement a 
new system, network, service, application or business process. 

1.17. Project Management (“PM”) management activities related to scheduling resources, providing quarterly 
business reviews, and defining the specific functions necessary to maintain adequate level of communication 
between AIT and Client. 

1.18. Secondary Functionality means functionality which supports the Primary Functionality of the Client IT 
System and failure of which results in an inability to access and use partial functionality of the Client IT System. 

1.19. Servers are computer systems operating in the Client’s business, operating either physically or virtually, that 
provide shared access, functionality or storage for PCs via a network connection. 

1.20. Technical Support means all of the services described in this Scope of Work. 

1.21. Unscheduled Downtime means Downtime resulting from a Critical Error. 

1.22. Update means to apply a patch or fix to hardware or software or its supporting data. This includes fixing 
security vulnerabilities and other bugs and improving the usability or performance. 

1.23. Upgrade means the replacement of a hardware, software or firmware with a newer or better version of the 
same product in order to bring the system up to date or to improve its characteristics. 

1.24. Work Around means a temporary resolution that restores the service and operation of the Client IT System 
to some reasonable level of functionality even if it is not possible to provide full functionality with the 
resolution. 

  

36



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 3 of 8  

2. Services 
The services outlined below, as indicated, will be provided to the Client during the Term of this SOW and at the 
rates detailed in the compensation section of this document. Projects and/or services deemed to be outside the 
scope of this SOW will be billable to the Client at the rates established in MSA.  

2.1.  Onboarding Process 

A systems and network discovery project will be conducted by AIT to ascertain the configuration and state of 
the existing network, network security and systems infrastructure in comparison to best practices; the 
discovery process will be used to identify and document Client goals relative to their computer network 
including known areas of concern.  

The final deliverable of this work effort will be an executive level report that includes documentation of the 
Client network and systems infrastructure including a recommended plan to make necessary systems, 
network and/or network security improvements based upon any risks identified by AIT during the onboarding 
process. 

The data gathered during the discovery project will be converted to documentation to be used for the future 
management of the Client computer environment and stored within the AIT portal; the data may include items 
such as system configuration, logical network diagrams, physical network diagrams, network addressing 
information, and server configuration work sheets. 

AIT will provide to Client communication templates that the Client may use to announce AIT as a provider of 
support services to their employees.  

2.2.  Systems and Network Monitoring 

Arctic Information Technology will install the “TotalCare” agent on each Windows system within the Client 
network to enable the collection and analysis of Client owned servers, server operating systems, server 
applications, workstations and other Devices identified as being critical to the Client business including those 
applications that are used to maintain aspects of the Client servers which may include data protection software 
and centralized anti-virus as a few examples.  

AIT will conduct testing to validate that Client PCs, Servers, and Devices are monitored.  Upon completion of 
this testing, AIT will notify Client that monitoring systems are in place and NOC will provide the following 
services as part of the monthly monitoring fees: 

2.2.1.  NOC will proactively monitor PCs, Servers, and Devices on the Client network that are critical to the 
Client’s business and resolve those alerts reported by the “TotalCare” agent to the NOC. 

2.2.2.  NOC will review the alerts and ascertain the best approach to resolve alerts based on the nature of the 
alert and assess the impact to Client business. 

2.2.3.  NOC will notify Client of failures that affect the availability of a PC, Server, or Device on the Client 
network and/or result in the inability of Client employees to work or access Client systems. 

2.2.4.  NOC will dispatch personnel to Client facility as necessary to resolve alerts. 

2.2.5.  NOC personnel will conduct regularly scheduled maintenance of PCs, Servers, and Devices covered 
under this SOW including the installation of manufacturer recommended operating system patches. 

2.3.  Systems and Network Operations 

AIT will conduct routine maintenance on Client owned servers and server operating systems including manual 
review of data protection systems; this may include updates provided by the hardware manufacturer or 
operating system service packs and hot fixes that are not suited for remote installation by the NOC. 

AIT will perform analysis on Client network server(s) being monitored by the NOC to understand trends in the 
data and make recommendations to the Client as necessary relative to changes needed in the systems and/or 
network infrastructure to resolve ongoing issues reported by the NOC.   

2.4.  Help Desk 

AIT staff will create trouble tickets for Client employees in the Client support portal and track all relevant 
information relating to the support case. AIT shall also provide on-line tracking of support request on issues 
relating to the Client IT System through a website.  AIT will also provide an emergency number providing 24-

37



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 4 of 8  

hour response for logging support issues that are identified as Critical Errors or High Errors. Client may 
designate up to 3 personnel who will be authorized to use the 24-hour response service. 

AIT will use its best efforts to resolve the Client employee problems as expeditiously as possible.  AIT will 
utilize remote support tools to assist Client employees whenever possible rather than dispatching personnel 
to Client site. Client trouble tickets that cannot be resolved remotely will be escalated to AIT personnel for 
onsite resolution at AIT’s discretion.  

2.5.  Limitation of Support 

TotalCare by AIT is a service that is meant to support common business applications, devices, and operating 
systems.  Client may have specific line-of-business applications, hardware or IT services that AIT, at its 
discretion, may not support under this SOW due to lack of familiarity, lack of manufacture support or 
requirement for specific skill, training or certification.  Unsupported applications, hardware and services will 
be documented as part of the onboarding process and may include software installed by the Client, with or 
without AIT’s knowledge, after the Client’s support service has commenced. 

AIT shall have no obligation to provide support services for any software or hardware unknown to AIT.  Further, 
AIT shall have no obligation to support any defect or failure of the Client IT System caused by the improper 
use of the Client IT System by Client or unauthorized personnel of Client, but will nevertheless use all 
reasonable efforts to provide the same if requested by Client, subject the terms for “As Requested” services 
in the MSA.   

2.6.  Updates 

AIT shall periodically install updates to supported software and hardware at no additional cost to Client.  For 
the avoidance of doubt, installation of upgrades, feature enhancements and other modifications or extensions 
to software or hardware are subject to additional charge in accordance with the terms for “As Requested” 
services in the MSA. 

2.7.  Desktop Support 

AIT will provide Client with on-site desktop support services in Anchorage without costs for travel time. Client 
systems outside of Anchorage will be supported via on-site support as negotiated with Client, subject to travel 
time and expenses as called for in the MSA, or the PC may be transported to AIT’s office in Anchorage at the 
Client’s expense. 

Circumstances may impact the delivery of this service; e.g., hardware related problems that require 
procurement of replacement equipment, inability of AIT to contact the employee reporting problem, or 
research is necessary to resolve the problem. 

2.8.  Status Reports 

AIT will conduct regular meetings with Client appointed contact on a mutually agreed upon schedule to provide 
Client insight into the status of their operational systems and network infrastructure; AIT will provide Client 
with reports on user requests, progress on implementation of improvements required as part of initial 
discovery, and insight into technology products that may improve Client business operations. 

2.9.  Service Level Objectives 

2.9.1.  Scheduled Maintenance.  AIT shall provide at least 24 hours advance notice for any scheduled 
maintenance that results in system restarts or other interruptions to service.  AIT will make all 
reasonable efforts to schedule such maintenance between the hours of 5:00 PM Alaska Time and 8:00 
AM Alaska Time.  It is understood by the parties that the number of scheduled maintenance 
occurrences will be kept to a minimum and within acceptable levels under industry standards, but that 
AIT may be required to perform more scheduled maintenance as necessary to meet requirements set 
forth by software, hardware, and other third party service vendors. AIT shall not be liable for Downtime 
resulting from the installation of patches or updates provided by the software or hardware vendor.  

2.9.2.  Network Service Provider; Internet Outages and Other Events.  AIT shall not be liable for Downtime 
resulting from network service provider outages, Internet outages or any other events or occurrences 
that are outside the reasonable control of AIT.  Client acknowledges that AIT does not and cannot 
control the flow of data to or from AIT's network, the Client’s network, and the Internet.  Such flow 
depends in large part on the performance of Internet services provided or controlled by third parties. 

38



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 5 of 8  

2.9.3.  Security Shut-Downs.  AIT may choose, at its sole discretion, but when possible in consultation with 
the Client, to interrupt or shut down service of the Client IT System due to circumstances reasonably 
believed by AIT to be a significant threat to the normal operation of the Client IT System, the AIT facility, 
or access to or integrity of Client data, in each case that are outside AIT's control.  In the event of such 
an interruption or shutdown, AIT will return Client IT System to normal operation as soon as reasonably 
possible.  AIT will use security measures at least equal to prevailing industry standards and as agreed 
upon and paid for by the Client, including, without limitation, firewall protection and backup copies of 
data.  

2.9.4.  Hardware Replacement.  AIT will not be liable for any delays in response or resolution of any error in 
the Client IT System that affects the Primary Functionality or Secondary Functionality due to the failure 
of a hardware manufacturer to provide hardware replacement parts or services. AIT will make a 
reasonable effort to provide a Work Around. If the hardware vendor is not able to fulfill its obligations in 
a timely manner and where that failure extends the response and resolution times, AIT and Client may 
agree to an alternate solution to resolve the hardware failure subject to additional charge in accordance 
with the terms for “As Requested” services in the MSA. In the event that the Client does not maintain 
current warranties and service contracts on any hardware covered by this Statement of Work, AIT shall 
not be obligated to provide support for the affected hardware. 

2.9.5.  Software Errors, Failures, and Malfunctions.  In the event that an error occurs with the Client software, 
AIT will not be liable for any delays in response or resolution as the result of a failure by the software 
vendor to provide a fix, update, correction, patch, information, Work Around or other resolution to the 
software error. AIT will make a reasonable effort to work with the software vendor to investigate the 
problem and only for software supported by AIT. Any additional support for custom software or 
unsupported software, regardless of the critical nature of the software to the Primary Functionality and 
Secondary Functionality, may be provided subject to additional charge in accordance with the terms 
for “As Requested” services in the MSA. In the event that the Client does not maintain current 
warranties and service contracts on any software covered by this Statement of Work, AIT shall not be 
obligated to provide support for the affected software. 

2.10. Priority Levels; Response and Resolution.   

Upon notification of an issue, AIT shall categorize all issues according to the priority levels set forth in this 
Section 2.10.  For each reported issue, AIT shall respond according to the response and resolution times set 
forth in this Section 2.10. 

2.10.1.  Critical Errors (Emergency).  AIT shall work diligently to identify the problem and will provide an 
estimated correction time for a Critical Error within 2 hours of notification. AIT will make reasonable 
accommodation to communicate the problem to Client and will begin implementation of a fix or a Work 
Around as soon as reasonably possible. Any Unscheduled Downtime shall be categorized as a Critical 
Error. 

2.10.2.  High Errors (Quick).  AIT shall work diligently to identify the problem and will provide an estimated 
correction time for a High Error within 4 hours of notification. AIT will make reasonable accommodation 
to communicate the problem to Client and AIT will begin implementation of a fix or a Work Around as 
soon as reasonably possible. Any Unscheduled Downtime shall be categorized as a Critical Error. 

2.10.3.  Medium Errors (Normal).  AIT shall work diligently to identify the problem and will provide an estimated 
correction time for a Medium Error within one (1) business day of notification. AIT will make reasonable 
accommodation to communicate the problem to Client and AIT will begin implementation of a fix or a 
Work Around as soon as reasonably possible. Any Unscheduled Downtime shall be categorized as a 
Critical Error. 

2.10.4.  Low Errors (Scheduled Maintenance).  AIT shall work diligently to identify the problem and will provide 
an estimated correction time for a Low Error within three (3) business days of notification. AIT will make 
reasonable accommodation to communicate the problem to Client and AIT will begin implementation 
of a fix or a Work Around in the next Scheduled Downtime of the Client IT System. 

  

39



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 6 of 8  

3. Relationship Management 
Our mutual success is driven by our ability to effectively work with each Client in a manner more akin to a partnership 
rather than a traditional vendor.  To this end, we recommend that the Client appoint an executive level sponsor and 
operational contact to support the initial implementation and ongoing management of the relationship between AIT and 
the Client.  Client may appoint a single individual to act as both the sponsor and operational contact if the two roles 
cannot be filled by different individuals within Client’s organization. 

3.1.  Client Executive Sponsor 

The following is the name and contact information of the Client appointed Executive Sponsor: 

Name:   

Office:   

Mobile   

Email:   

Address:   

   

 

3.2. Client Operational Contact(s) 

The following is the name and contact information of the Client appointed operational contact(s): 

Name:   

Office:   

Mobile   

Email:   

Address:   

   

 

3.3.  Client Billing Contact(s)  

The following is the name and contact information of the Client appointed billing contact(s): 

Name:   

Office:   

Mobile   

Email:   

Address:   

   

4. Assumptions 
Client acknowledges that the success of AIT may be affected by certain actions by Client. AIT is entering into this 
SOW based on the following assumptions: 

4.1.  Client will communicate to their staff the managed services relationship with AIT utilizing communications 
templates provided by AIT. Client will direct all employees to utilize AIT provided support systems, including 
the Client support portal, AIT help desk telephone number, and remote assistance tools used in our support 
processes.  

4.2.  Client will provide AIT personnel administrative access to devices and systems on the network during initial 
discovery and documentation phases.  

40



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 7 of 8  

4.3.  Client will provide AIT with a means of remote access to the corporate network and/or systems during the 
course of the project to enable AIT to provide remote support. In the event that Client does not have the ability 
to enable remote support, Client approves AIT making any required network changes to facilitate remote 
access to the corporate network. 

4.4.  Client will ensure that AIT personnel will have access to parking, office space, and telephone when at Client 
facilities. 

4.5.  Client will not make changes to the network or attached systems without approval of AIT personnel assigned 
to the Client account. 

4.6.  Client will ensure that Client resources are available during the course of the agreement for periodic status 
meetings as scheduled by AIT account manager. AIT may at times require access to additional Client 
personnel during the course of the managed services agreement. Access to these resources will be 
coordinated by the assigned Client operational contact. 

4.7.  Client understands that AIT will make best efforts and recommendations in regards to data protection 
technologies but cannot affect the manufacturers product from a warranty perspective or guarantee that it will 
be free of bugs or defects; the recoverability of data in the event of failure is subject to integrity of the media, 
success of backup procedures, and other factors outside the control of AIT; AIT makes no warranty that Client 
will be able to restore data as a result of AIT recommendations. 

4.8.  Client will make available all existing documentation relating to the systems, network, and/or applications 
currently deployed on the Client network that may be affected during the course of the services agreement.  

4.9.  Client and AIT will work collectively to ensure that long term network support goals established in the discovery 
process are put in place on a schedule that meets both Client and AIT expectations. 

4.10. Client will keep all Devices and software under manufacturer support, and/or software maintenance and 
support, during the term of this agreement to ensure that AIT personnel have access to required hardware 
components and/or application/operating system releases to resolve alerts. 

5. Terms 
5.1.  Term 

The initial term of this SOW is twelve months. Services will commence on the go-live date established and 
mutually agreed upon during the Onboarding Process. 

5.2.  Renewal 

This SOW will automatically renew for an additional twelve months if not cancelled by Client or AIT.  The term 
of this Agreement and Client's rights to use the services contained herein, shall continue unless Client notifies 
AIT in writing, giving at least 60 days’ notice to terminate the service. AIT may terminate the service after 
notifying Client in writing at least 60 days prior to termination. 

6. Payment and Fees 
6.1.  Services are billed in advance automatically.  AIT shall invoice Client for services by the 20th day of each 

month or the subsequent business day at AIT's rates set forth below the subsequent month.  Charges shall 
either be debited directly from Client’s bank via automated clearing house (ACH) transfer or charged to a 
credit card (VISA or MasterCard), as indicated below. 

 
Recurring Payments:  ACH Transfer (automatic monthly debit)     
          (3% Discount Applies)          (Client initial) 

 
     Credit Card (automatic monthly credit)     
                (Client initial) 

6.2.  ACH payments that are returned for non-sufficient funds and declined credit card charges will subject to a 
$35.00 service fee per attempt. 

6.3.  Services provided between the go-live date and the 20th day of the subsequent month shall be prorated for 
the actual number of days the service is used based upon the number of days in the month that the service 

41



TotalCare by AIT Scope of Work for City of Cordova Page 8 of 8  

starts. The setup fee and any prorated amount shall be debited or charged, per 6.1 above, along with the first 
month recurring charges. 

6.4.  The table below lists the monthly recurring charges (MRC) and other costs associated with the services called 
for in this SOW.  Billed quantities will be reviewed on an ongoing basis and adjusted monthly and applied to 
the next recurring invoice.  Client must inform AIT of any services to be removed from the agreement by the 
15th day of each month or the subsequent business day in order to adjust quantities. 

Description Qty MRC Amount
PCs 57 85.00$         4,845.00$         
Servers 5 179.00$       895.00$            

Sub-total 5,740.00$         
Pre-Paid Travel for QTR Visit 1,400.00$         

Monthly Recurring Charge Debited via ACH 7,140.00$         
-$                  

OR

Description Qty MRC Amount
PCs 57 87.50$         4,987.50$         
Servers 5 184.50$       922.50$            

Sub-total 5,910.00$         
Monthly Base Charge 1,443.50$         

Monthly Recurring Charge via Credit Card 7,353.50$         
-$                  

One-Time Setup Fee

Fees Debited via ACH

Fees Charged to Credit Card

One-Time Setup Fee  

7. Authorization 
7.1.  The representative executing this SOW on behalf of their respective companies represents that he/she is duly 

authorized to enter into this Agreement on its behalf, and each promises to indemnify and hold the other 
harmless from any and all costs and damages, including attorney's fees, incurred by reason of a lack of such 
authority. 

7.2.  By the signatures of their duly authorized representatives below, Client and AIT accept and approve this SOW.  
 

 City of Cordova  Arctic Information Technology, Inc. 

   

Signature  Signature 

   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

   

Title  Title 

   

Date  Date 

42



43



44



5.12.040 Council approval of contracts. 
No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than 
twenty-five thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum 
setting forth the following essential terms of the contract:  
 A. The identity of the contractor; 
 B. The contract price; 
 C. The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the 
 contract; and 
 D. The time for performance under the contract. 
(Ord. 1019 § 1, 2008: Ord. 874, 2000: Ord. 809 (part), 1998).  
(Ord. No. 1093, § 1, 1-4-2012)  
 
 
5.12.150 Sole source procurements. 
A. The city may procure supplies, services or construction without competition where the city 
manager determines in writing that one of the following circumstances applies:  

1. Supplies, services or construction that reasonably meet the city's requirements are 
available from only one vendor; 

2. The supplies, services or construction have a uniform price wherever purchased; 
3. The supplies, services or construction may be purchased from or through another 

governmental unit at a price lower than that obtainable from private vendors;  
4. The price of the supplies, services or construction is fixed by a regulatory authority; or 
5. The contract is for professional services that the council by resolution determines to 

procure without formal competition. 
B. The award of any contract under this section shall be subject to prior council approval in 
accordance with Section 5.12.040  
(Ord. 809 (part), 1998).  
 

45

http://library.municode.com/HTML/16292/level2/TIT5REFI_CH5.12PU.html%23TIT5REFI_CH5.12PU_5.12.040COAPCO


 

A MEMO FROM TINA HAMMER, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    January 27, 2014 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      Resolution 02-14-08 
 
 
The attached resolution directs the City Clerk to prepare and publish the foreclosure list for 
the 2013 delinquent property taxes and directs the City Attorney to file the necessary 
documents with the State of Alaska Superior Court.   
 
Recommended Motion:  Move to approve Resolution 02-14-08    
 
Staff Recommendation: Majority voice vote or approval of the consent calendar 
 

46



 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 02-14-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO PREPARE AND PUBLISH A CERTIFIED COPY OF THE 

FORECLOSURE LIST OF DELINQUENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2013 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cordova; 
 

Section 1:  The City Clerk shall, and is hereby directed to prepare a certified copy of the foreclosure 
list for the delinquent real property taxes, the portions due and payable for the year 2013. 

 

The list shall be in alphabetical order as to the name and shall include: 
 1.  Last known owner of record. 
 2.  Property description as stated on the assessment roll. 
 3.  Year and the amount due of delinquency. 
 4.  Statement that the list is available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office. 
 5.  Penalty and interest and other costs. 
 6.  Statement that list has been presented to the State of Alaska Superior Court for judgment. 
 

 Section 2:  The City Attorney is directed to present a petition for judgment and a certified copy of the 
foreclosure list in the State of Alaska Superior Court for judgment. 
 

 Section 3:  The City Clerk is directed to publish the foreclosure list for four (4) consecutive weeks in 
the Cordova Times, a newspaper of general circulation, distributed within the City, beginning on the day of 
filing of the petition for judgment and certified copy of the foreclosure list in Superior Court; and the City 
Clerk is further directed to mail to the last known owner of each property as his or her name and address 
appears on the list within ten (10) days after the first publication, a notice advising of the foreclosure 
proceedings in which the petition for judgment has been filed and describing the property and the amount 
due and payable on the foreclosure list. 
 

 Section 4:  During the publication of the foreclosure list and up to the time of transfer to the City of 
the property by the Superior Court, the Clerk shall allow a person to pay the taxes and/or portions due 
together with penalty, interest, and other costs and the City Clerk shall note such payment on the foreclosure 
list. 
 

 Section 5:  If a holder of a mortgage or lien on real property requests the City Clerk to send by 
certified mail a notice of a foreclosure list which includes a real property mortgage on which there exists a 
lien, the City Clerk shall comply with such requests and send such notice by certified mail. 
 

 Section 6:  The City Attorney is directed to proceed to obtain a judgment and decree that the liens for 
real property taxes shall be foreclosed in a timely manner and in accordance with applicable law and rule of 
court, together with costs and attorney fees allowable by the court. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014. 
 
        
        __________________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor 
             
            ATTEST:  
 
        __________________________________  
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk  
         

47



Memorandum 
To: City Council 

Thru: Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 
Date: January 28, 2014  

Re: Alaska Commercial Company, ground lease  

 

PART I.   GENERAL INFORMATION: 
  
File No.:   02-173-108 
    
Requested Action: Lease Lot 5, Block 1, South Fill Development Park 
 
Applicant:   The North West Company (International) Inc. 

   77 Main Street  
    Winnipeg, MB R3C 2R1 
  
Zoning:   Waterfront Commercial District  
   
Applicable Regulations: Section 5.22 Cordova Code regarding disposal of city property  
    Chapter 18.39 Waterfront Commercial  
 
PART II.  SITE DATA: 
 Lot 5, Block 1 is adjacent to other property also leased from the City by Alaska Commercial and is 
used for parking. This lot is 9,900 square feet, minus 1,800 square feet immediately adjacent to 
Nicholoff Way for public parking, leaving a total of 8,100 square feet available for this lease. 
 
PART III.   BACKGROUND: 
The lease has been in place since 2004 and was renewed in 2009 for an additional 5 years. The lease 
will start April 1, 2014 and expire March 31, 2024. In this lease there is an option for an additional 5 
years with City Council approval. The previous rent was $3037.50 per year or $759.38 per quarter.   
The new base rent will be six thousand, one hundred thirty-eight and 00/100 Dollars ($6,138.00) 
plus sales tax per year or one thousand, five hundred thirty-four and 50/100 Dollars ($1534.50) 
plus sales tax in four (4) quarterly installments. 
 
There have been no problems related to this lease; payments have always been timely and 
conditions of the lease have been met. 
 
PART IV.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the approval of resolution 02-14-09 
 
PART V.   RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 "I move to approve Resolution 02-14-09.” 
 

48



DRAFT 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 02-14-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 10 YEAR LEASE OF PROPERTY 

LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS LOT 5, BLOCK 1, SOUTH FILL DEVELOPMENT PARK PLAT 
85-9 WITH THE NORTH WEST COMPANY (INTERNATIONAL) INC. 

 
 WHEREAS, the current lease term with the North West Company (International) Inc. will 
commence on April 1, 2014, the new lease would carry their tenancy through March 31, 2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease area is generally described as Lot 5, Block 1, South Fill Development Park, 
Plat 85-9 containing 9,900 square feet, minus 1,800 square feet immediately adjacent to Nicholoff Way 
for public parking, leaving a total of 8,100 square feet available for this lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the annual rental rate will be six thousand one hundred thirty-eight and 00/100 
dollars ($6,138.00); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease between the North West Company (International) Inc. and the City of 
Cordova is hereto included as Attachment A. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Cordova 
hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to renew the lease on the property to the North West 
Company (International) Inc. in accordance with the terms in the Lease.  The form and content of the 
Lease now before this meeting is in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed by this resolution, 
and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Lease 
reflecting the terms in the Lease on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before 
this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as he shall deem 
necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of 
any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said 
documents now before this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said documents, the 
City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to execute all 
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Lease. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014 
        
  
       ________________________________  
       James Kacsh, Mayor  
 

 Attest: 
 

________________________________  
  Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

49



CITY OF CORDOVA 
Cordova, Alaska 

 
LEASE 

 
 

THIS LEASE (“Lease”) by and between the CITY OF CORDOVA (“Landlord”), a municipal 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Alaska (the “City”), and NORTH WEST 
COMPANY(INTERNATIONAL) INC.  doing business in Cordova, Alaska (“Tenant”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the City owns that certain parcel of land generally described as Lot 5, Block 1,South 
Fill Development Park Plat 85-9, contained 9,900 square feet, more or less, located within Cordova 
Recording District, Cordova Alaska, (referred to hereinafter as the “Premises”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Landlord wishes to retain the 1,800 square foot portion of this lot immediately 

adjacent to Nicholoff Way for public parking, leaving 8,100 square feet available for lease; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Landlord desires to lease this 8,100 square feet to Tenant, at fair market value; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, Tenant desires to lease the Premises from the City, and Landlord desires to lease 
the Premises to Tenant, on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council (“Council”) has approved the lease of the Premises from 

the City to Tenant  in accordance with the Cordova City Charter §5-17 and Chapter 5.22 of the Cordova 
Municipal Code (hereinafter referred to as the “Code” or “CMC”). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants of the parties 

hereto, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES   
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the City hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant 
hereby leases from the City, the Premises.  The Premises are herewith described as Lot 5, Block 1, South 
Fill Development Park, containing 9,900 square feet, more or less, minus 1,800 square feet immediately 
adjacent to Nicholoff Way for public parking, leaving a total of 8,100 square feet available for this lease. 
 
Lessee shall allow a 15 foot wide public easement along the entire easterly boundary of Lot 5 for a non-
parking, non-loitering, non-stationary public thoroughfare use and for short term, 5 minutes or less, 
loading and un-loading for the building operations currently being used by GCI and NAPA.   

 
 

2. LEASE TERM 
 
The term of this Lease shall be ten (10)) year, commencing on April 1, 2014.  The “Commencement 
Date”) and expiring ten (10) years later, on March 31, 2024, unless earlier terminated in accordance with 
the terms of this Lease. Lessor may grant Lessee one five-year extension upon request of Lessee and 
concurrence by the Cordova City Council 
 

3. RENT 
 

A.  Base Rent.  The rent during the term of this Lease shall be six thousand, one hundred thirty-
eight and 00/100 Dollars ($6,138.00) or one thousand, five hundred thirty-four and 50/100 Dollars 
($1534.50) in four (4) quarterly  installments (the “Base Rent”), which shall be due and payable in 

 
  Page 1 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 50



advance on the Commencement Date of this agreement. Base Rent shall be paid to the City in lawful 
money of the United States without abatement, deduction or set-off for any reason whatsoever, at the 
address provided for notice to the City set forth in Section 20.E of this Lease, or at any other place that 
the City may from time to time direct in writing.  Base Rent shall be paid promptly when due without notice 
or demand therefor.  The parties intend the Base Rent to be absolutely net to the City.  All costs, 
expenses and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever in connection with or relating to the 
Premises shall be the obligation of, and shall be paid by, Tenant.  As required by the CMC Section 
5.22.040(C), any lease having a term of more than two (2) years shall be subject to a rental adjustment to 
fair market value at intervals of no more than two (2) years, but no adjustment shall result in a reduction 
of rent. 
 

B.  Additional Charges.  In addition to the Base Rent, Tenant acknowledges and agrees that 
Tenant is obligated to pay and shall pay, before delinquency and without reimbursement, all costs, 
expenses and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever in connection with or relating to the 
Premises or the activities conducted on the Premises, including without limitation those costs, expenses 
and obligations identified in Section 7 and all other sums, costs, expenses, taxes (including 6% sales tax, 
which shall be paid by Tenant monthly at the same time Tenant makes its monthly payments of Base 
Rent to the City) and other payments that Tenant assumes or agrees to pay under the provisions of this 
Lease (the “Additional Charges”). 

 
Without limiting in any way Tenant’s payment obligations, the City shall have the right, but not the 

obligation, at all times during the Lease term, to pay any charges levied or imposed upon the Premises 
that remain unpaid after the same have become due and payable, and the amount paid, plus the City’s 
reasonable expenses, shall be additional rent due from Tenant to the City, with interest thereon at the 
rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the date of payment thereof by the City until repayment thereof 
by Tenant. 

 
C.  Late Penalty Provision.  Rent not paid within ten (10) days of the due date shall be assessed 

a late charge of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent amount; such charge shall be considered liquidated 
damages and shall be due and payable as additional rent.  In the event the late charge assessment 
above exceeds the maximum amount allowable by law, the amount assessed will be adjusted to the 
maximum amount allowable by law. 

 
 D.  Security Deposit.  Upon execution of this Lease, the City may require Tenant to deposit with 
the City an amount equal to two months’ rent (the “Security Deposit”).  The Security Deposit shall be held 
by the City as security for the faithful performance by Tenant of all of Tenant’s obligations under this 
Lease.   If Tenant fails to pay the Base Rent, or a portion thereof, or otherwise defaults with respect to 
any provision of this Lease, after notice and beyond the expiration of any applicable cure period the City 
may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Security Deposit for:  
 
  (i)  the payment of any rent or other sum in default;  
 
  (ii)  the payment of any other sum to which the City may become obligated by reason of 
Tenant's default; or  
 
  (iii)  to compensate the City for any loss or damage which the City may suffer thereby, 
including, but not limited to, any costs associated with moving and storage of Tenant’s personal property 
(if any) remaining on the Premises beyond termination of the Lease.  The City shall be free to commingle 
the Security Deposit with funds held in the City’s own accounts, including accounts in which the City 
keeps other security deposits.  If Tenant performs all of its obligations under this Lease, the Security 
Deposit, or so much thereof as has not been used, applied or retained by the City in accordance with this 
Section, shall be returned to Tenant, at the expiration of the term, and subject to Tenant relinquishing 
possession of the Premises, without payment of interest or other increment for its use, within 30 days of 
Tenant’s vacation of the Premises.  
 

4. USES AND CONDITION OF PREMISES 

 
  Page 2 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 51



 
A.  Authorized Uses.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to Tenant’s use as a private parking 

lot for the commercial business located on the adjoining Lots 4, 8 & 9, Block 1, South Fill Development 
Park.  The Premises shall not, without the prior written consent of the City, be used for any other 
purposes.  Tenant shall not construct or install, or cause to be constructed or installed on the Premises, 
any improvements or other permanent alteration of the Premises without the prior written consent of the 
City.  Tenant shall not conduct any enterprise or activity on the Premises that cannot be terminated on 
thirty (30) days’ notice., Landlord expressly reserves the right to terminate this lease in the event Tenant 
fails to operate said use for a period of eighteen consecutive months.  
 

B.  Inspections.  The City and its authorized representatives and agents shall have the right, but 
not the obligation, to enter the Premises at all reasonable times to inspect the use and condition of the 
Premises; to serve, post or keep posted any notices required or allowed under the provisions of this 
Lease, including notices of non-responsibility for liens; and to do any act or thing necessary for the safety 
or preservation of the Premises.  The City shall not be liable in any manner for any inconvenience, 
disturbance, loss of business, nuisance or other damage arising out of the City’s entry onto the Premises, 
except for damage resulting directly from the acts of the City or its authorized representatives or agents.   
 

C.  Compliance with Laws.  Tenant shall maintain and repair the Premises in compliance with 
all applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, rules, orders, permits, licenses and other authorizations.  
Tenant shall not use or permit the use of the Premises for any purpose prohibited by law or which would 
cause a cancellation of any insurance policy covering the Premises.  Tenant shall not leave the Premises 
unoccupied or vacant without the City’s prior written consent.  Tenant shall not cause or permit any 
Hazardous Material (as defined in Section 9.B of this Lease) to be brought upon, kept, or used in, on or 
about the Premises except for such Hazardous Material as is necessary to conduct Tenant’s authorized 
uses of the Premises.  Any such Hazardous Material brought upon, kept, or used in, on or about the 
Premises shall be used, kept, stored, and disposed of in a manner that complies with all environmental 
laws and regulations applicable to Hazardous Material.  Tenant shall not cause or allow the release or 
discharge of any other materials or substances that are known to pose a hazard to the environment or 
human health. 
 

D.  Tenant’s Acceptance of Premises.  Tenant has inspected the Premises to its complete 
satisfaction and is familiar with its condition, and the City makes no representations or warranties with 
respect thereto, including but not limited to the condition of the Premises or its suitability or fitness for any 
use Tenant may make of the Premises.  Tenant accepts the Premises AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL 
FAULTS.  No action or inaction by the Council, the City Manager, or any other officer, agent or employee 
of the City relating to or in furtherance of the lease of the Premises shall be deemed to constitute an 
express or implied representation or warranty that the Premises, or any part thereof, is suitable or usable 
or any specific purpose whatsoever.  Any such action or inaction shall be deemed to be and constitute 
performance of a discretionary policy and planning function only, and shall be immune and give no right 
of action as provided in Alaska Statute §9.65.070, or any amendment thereto.  
 

E.  The City many terminate this Lease for any or no reason upon thirty (30) days’ written notice 
to Tenant. 

 
5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
Tenant represents and warrants to the City that Tenant is not delinquent in the payment of any 

obligation to the City, and Tenant has not previously breached or defaulted in the performance of a 
material contractual or legal obligation to the City, which breach or default has not been remedied or 
cured. 

 
6. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING; SUBORDINATION 

 
Tenant shall not assign or otherwise transfer this Lease or any interest herein or sublet the 

Premises or any portion thereof, or permit the occupancy of any part of the Premises by any other person 

 
  Page 3 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 52



or entity, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent the City may withhold in its absolute 
discretion.  The City shall not be required to subordinate this Lease or the City’s interest in the Premises 
to the interest of any other person or entity. 
 

7. OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, UTILITIES, TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 
 

Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, be solely responsible for: (1) the maintenance 
and repair of the Premises and shall not commit or allow any waste upon the Premises; (2) obtaining any 
and all permits and approvals necessary for Tenant’s use of the Premises; (3) all utilities and services 
needed for Tenant’s use of the Premises; (4) all taxes and assessments levied against the Premises, and 
Tenant agrees to pay all such taxes and assessments as and when they become due, including but not 
limited to all utility bills and special assessments levied and unpaid as of the date of this Lease or 
hereafter levied for public improvements; (5) all licenses, excise fees, and occupation taxes with respect 
to the business and activities conducted on the Premises; (6) all real property taxes, personal property 
taxes, and sales taxes related to the Premises or Tenant’s use or occupancy thereof; and (7) any taxes 
on the leasehold interest created under this Lease.   
 

8. LIENS 
 

Tenant will suffer no lien or other encumbrance to attach to the Premises, including without 
limitation mechanic’s or materialman’s liens, sales tax liens under CMC §5.40.125, or property tax liens 
under CMC §5.36.260.  If the City posts any notice of non-responsibility on the Premises, Tenant will 
ensure that the notice is maintained in a conspicuous place. 
 

9. INDEMNIFICATION  
 

A.  General Indemnification.  Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City and its 
authorized representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all 
actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other 
costs or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and 
consultant and expert fees) resulting from, arising out of, or related to Tenant’s occupation or use of the 
Premises or the occupation or use of the Premises by Tenant’s employees, agents, servants, customers, 
contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees or invitees, including but not limited to all claims and demands 
arising out of any labor performed, materials furnished, or obligations incurred in connection with any 
improvements, repairs, or alterations constructed or made on the Premises and the cost of defending 
against such claims, including reasonable attorney fees.  In the event that such a lien is recorded against 
the Premises, Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole expense within ninety (90) days after being served with 
written notice thereof, protect the City against said lien by filing a lien release bond or causing the release 
of such lien. 
 

B.  Environmental Indemnification.  Tenant has had full opportunity to examine the Premises 
for the presence of any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) and accepts the Premises AS IS, 
WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS.  Tenant releases the City and its authorized representatives, agents, 
officers, and employees from any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, 
liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, 
court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) arising during or after the term of this 
Lease, that result from the use, keeping, storage, or disposal of Hazardous Material in, on or about the 
Premises by Tenant, or that arise out of or result from Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Premises or the 
use or occupancy of the Premises by Tenant’s employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees or authorized representatives.  This release includes, without 
limitation, any and all costs incurred due to any investigation of the Premises or any cleanup, removal, or 
restoration mandated by a federal, state, or local agency or political subdivision, or by law or regulation.  
Tenant agrees that it shall be fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, storage, and 
disposal of Hazardous Material generated, kept or brought on the Premises by Tenant, its employees, 
agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees or authorized 
representatives.  

 
  Page 4 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 53



 
Tenant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City and its authorized representatives, agents, 

officers, and employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, 
liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court 
costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, 
contingent or otherwise, arising in whole or in part from or in any way related to (i) the presence, disposal, 
release, or threatened release of any such Hazardous Material which is on or from the Premises, soil, 
water, ground water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons, animals, or otherwise; (ii) any 
personal injury or property damage arising out of or related to such Hazardous Material; (iii) any lawsuit 
brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such Hazardous Material; and 
(iv) any violation of any laws applicable to such Hazardous Material; provided, however, that the acts 
giving rise to the claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or 
expenses arise in whole or in part from the use of, operations on, or activities on the Premises by Tenant 
or its employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees, or 
authorized representatives.  

 
As used in this Lease, “Hazardous Material” means any substance which is toxic, ignitable, 

reactive, or corrosive or which is regulated by any federal, state or local law or regulation, as now in force 
or as may be amended from time to time, relating to the protection of human health or the environment, 
as well as any judgments, orders, injunctions, awards, decrees, covenants, conditions, or other 
restrictions or standards relating to the same.  “Hazardous Material” includes any and all material or 
substances that are defined as “hazardous waste,” “extremely hazardous waste,” or a “hazardous 
substance” under any such law or regulation. 
 

10. INSURANCE 
 
Lessee shall p rocure and  m ain t ain , at  Lessee’s so le cost  and  expense, t he f o llow ing 

po licies o f  insurance w it h  a reput ab le insurance com pany o r  com pan ies sat isf act o ry t o  
t he Cit y: 

 
(1) Com m ercial general liab ilit y insurance in  respect  o f  t he Prem ises and  t he 

conduct  o f  Lessee’s business and  operat ions, nam ing t he Cit y as an 
add it ional insured , w it h  m in im um  lim it s o f  liab ilit y o f  One Million  Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per  person  and  Tw o  Million Do llars ($2,000,00.00) per  
acciden t  o r  occur rence f o r  bod ily in jury and  deat h , and  a m in im um  lim it  
o f  liab ilit y o f  One Million  Dollars ($1,000,000.00) f o r  p roper t y dam age f o r 
each  occur rence;   
 

(2) Proper t y insurance, insur ing against  loss o r  dam age by f ire and such 
o t her  r isks as are cust om ar ily included  in  t he b road  f o rm  o f  ext ended 
coverage, in  an  am oun t  o f  coverage no t  less t han t he rep lacem en t  value 
o f  t he im provem en t s on t he Prem ises, if  any, and  on  such  t erm s as are 
sat isf act o ry t o  t he Cit y;  

 
 

(3) Personal p roper t y insurance cover ing Lessee’s t rade f ixt ures, f urn ish ings, 
equipm en t , and  o t her  it em s o f  personal p roper t y o f  Lessee locat ed  on 
t he Prem ises; and  
 

(4) Workers com pensat ion  insurance, and  such  o t her  insurance as is required  by 
law . 
 
All insurance required  under  t h is Lease shall con t ain  an  endo rsem en t  requir ing t h ir t y (30) 

 
  Page 5 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 54



days’ advance w r it t en  no t ice t o  t he Cit y bef ore cancellat ion  o r  change in  t he coverage, 
scope, o r  am oun t  o f  any po licy.  Pr io r  t o  com m encem en t  o f  t he Lease t erm , Lessee shall 
p rovide t he Cit y w it h  p roof  o f  t he insurance required  by t h is Sect ion  10. 
 
 

11. REMOVAL OF PROPERTY 
 

Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, at the option of the City, Tenant shall remove 
from the Premises, at Tenant’s sole expense, all property Tenant has placed or caused to be placed on 
the Premises.  Tenant shall repair any damage to the Premises caused by such removal and return the 
Premises as near as possible to its original condition as existed on the Commencement Date.  All 
property which is not promptly removed by Tenant pursuant to the City’s request and in any event within 
thirty (30) days of the date of expiration or termination of this Lease may be removed, sold, destroyed or 
otherwise disposed of in any manner deemed appropriate by the City, all at Tenant’s sole expense, and 
Tenant hereby agrees to pay the City for such expenses.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in 
this Lease, all petroleum, fuel, or chemical storage tanks installed in or on the Premises during the term of 
this Lease shall remain the property of the Tenant and, upon expiration or earlier termination of the Lease 
and upon request of the City, Tenant shall remove any and all such tanks and any and all contaminated 
soil and other materials from the Premises, all at Tenant's sole expense. 
 

12. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

A.  Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default and a breach of this 
Lease by the Tenant: 

 
(i) The failure to make payment when due of any installment of rent, Additional Charges or 

of any other sum herein specified to be paid by the Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure to pay any taxes or assessments due from the Lessee to the City and in any 

way related to this Lease, the Premises, any improvements, or the Lessee’s activities or business 
conducted thereon, including but not limited to any real property, personal property or sales taxes; 

 
(iii) An assignment for the benefit of Lessee’s creditors or the filing of a voluntary or 

involuntary petition by or against Lessee under any law for the purpose of adjudicating Lessee a 
bankrupt, or for extending the time for payment, adjustment, or satisfaction of Lessee’s liabilities, or for 
reorganization, dissolution, or arrangement on account of or to prevent bankruptcy or insolvency, unless 
the assignment or proceeding, and all consequent orders, adjudications, custodies, and supervision are 
dismissed, vacated or otherwise permanently stated or terminated within thirty (30) days after the 
assignment, filing or other initial event; 

 
(iv) The appointment of a receiver or a debtor-in-possession to take possession of the 

Premises (or any portion thereof) or of Lessee’s interest in the leasehold estate (or any portion thereof) or 
of Lessee’s operations on the Premises (or any portion thereof) by reason of Lessee’s insolvency; 

 
(v)  The abandonment or vacation of the Premises or any portion thereof; 
 
(vi) Execution, levy or attachment on Lessee’s interest in this Lease or the Premises, or any 

portion thereof; 
 
(vii) The breach or violation of any statutes, laws, regulations, rules or ordinances of any kind 

applicable to Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; or 
 
(viii) The failure to observe or perform any covenant, promise, agreement, obligation or 

condition set forth in this Lease, other than the payment of rent, if such failure shall not be cured within 
ten (10) days after written notice has been given to Lessee.  Notices given under this subsection shall 

 
  Page 6 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 55



specify the alleged breach and the applicable Lease provision and demand that the Lessee perform 
according to the terms of the Lease.  No such notice shall be deemed a forfeiture or termination of this 
Lease unless the City expressly makes such election in the notice. 

 
B.  Remedies.  If the Lessee breaches any provision of this Lease, in addition to all other rights 

and remedies the City has at law or in equity, the City may do one or more of the following:  
 

(i) Distrain for rent due any of Lessee’s personal property which comes into the City’s 
possession.  This remedy shall include the right of the City to dispose of Lessee’s personal property in a 
commercially reasonable manner.  Lessee agrees that compliance with the procedures set forth in the 
Alaska Uniform Commercial Code with respect to the sale of property shall be a commercially reasonable 
disposal. 

 
(ii) Re-enter the Premises, take possession thereof, and remove all property from the 

Premises.  The property may be removed and stored at Lessee’s expense, all without service of notice or 
resort to legal process, which Lessee waives, and without the City becoming liable for any damage that 
may result unless the loss or damage is caused by the City’s negligence in the removal or storage of the 
property.  No re-entry by the City shall be deemed an acceptance of surrender of this Lease.  No 
provision of this Lease shall be construed as an assumption by the City of a duty to re-enter and re-let the 
Premises upon Lessee’s default.  If Lessee does not immediately surrender possession of the Premises 
after termination by the City and upon demand by the City, the City may forthwith enter into and upon and 
repossess the Premises and expel Lessee without being deemed guilty in any manner of trespass and 
without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise be used for arrears of rent or breach of 
covenant; 
 

(iii) Declare this Lease terminated;  
 

(iv) Recover, whether this Lease is terminated or not, reasonable attorney’s fees and all other 
expenses incurred by the City by reason of the default or breach by Lessee;  
 

(v) Recover an amount to be due immediately upon breach equal to the sum of all rent, 
Additional Charges and other payments for which Lessee is obligated under the Lease;  

 
(vi) Recover the costs of performing any duty of Lessee in this Lease; 

 
(vii) Collect any and all rents due or to become due from subtenants or other occupants of the 

Premises. 
 

13. SUBSIDENCE 
 

The City shall not be responsible for any washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling or reliction to the 
Premises, nor for any injury caused thereby to the property of the Lessee or any sub-lessee, or that of 
any other person.  The City is not obligated to replace, refill, or improve any part of the Premises during 
Lessee's occupancy in the event of such washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling, or reliction. 

 
14. VACATION BY LESSEE  
 
Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Lessee shall peaceably vacate the 

Premises and the Premises shall be returned to the City by Lessee together with any alterations, 
additions or improvements made after the Commencement Date, unless the City requests that they be 
removed from the Premises.  Upon such vacation, Lessee shall remove from the Premises any items of 
personal property brought on to the Premises.  Any such property not removed from the Premises within 
thirty (30) days of the expiration or termination of this Lease shall become the property of the City at no 
cost or charge to the City, and may be removed, sold, destroyed or otherwise disposed of in any manner 
deemed appropriate by the City, all at Lessee’s sole expense, and Lessee hereby agrees to pay the City 
for such expenses.   

 
  Page 7 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 56



 
15. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

 
The City reserves the right to designate and grant rights-of-way and utility easements across the 

Premises without compensation to Lessee or any other party, including the right of ingress and egress to 
and from the Premises for the construction, operation and maintenance of utilities and access, provided 
that Lessee shall be compensated for the taking or destruction of any improvements on the Premises.  
Lessee shall be responsible for requesting a rental adjustment to reflect any reduction in the value of the 
Premises.  
 

16. SIGNS 
 

No signs or other advertising symbols, canopies, or awnings shall be attached to or painted on or 
within the Premises without approval of the City Manager first being obtained; provided, however, that this 
prohibition shall not apply to standard, directional, informational and identification signs of two square feet 
or less in size.  At the termination of this Lease, or sooner, all such signs, advertising matter, symbols, 
canopies or awnings, attached or painted by Lessee shall be removed from the Premises by Lessee at its 
own expense, and Lessee shall repair any damage or injury to the Premises, and correct any unsightly 
conditions caused by the maintenance or removal of said signs. 
 

17. HOLDING OVER 
 

If Lessee with the City’s written consent remains in possession of the Premises after the 
expiration or termination of the Lease term for any cause, or after the date in any notice given by the City 
to Lessee terminating this Lease, such holding over shall be deemed a tenancy from month to month at 
the same rental amount applicable immediately prior to such expiration or termination, subject to 
adjustment in accordance with CMC § 5.22.040(c) or such successor provision of the code then in effect, 
and shall be terminable on 30 days’ written notice given at any time by either party.  All other provisions of 
this Lease except those pertaining to term and rent shall apply to the month-to-month tenancy.  If Lessee 
holds over without the City’s express written consent, Lessee is deemed to be a tenant at sufferance and 
may be removed through a forcible entry and detainer proceeding without service on Lessee of a notice 
to quit.   
 

18. EMINENT DOMAIN 
 
If the whole or any part of the Premises shall be taken for any public or quasi-public use, under 

any statute or by right of eminent domain or private purchase in lieu thereof by a public body vested with 
the power of eminent domain, then the following provisions shall be operative. 
 

A.  Total Taking.  If the Premises are totally taken by condemnation, this Lease shall terminate. 
 

B.  Partial Taking. If the Premises are partially taken by condemnation, then this Lease shall 
continue and the rent as specified in Section 3 above shall be abated in a proportion equal to the ratio 
that the portion of the Premises taken bears to the total Premises leased hereunder. 

 
C.  Award.  Upon condemnation, the parties shall share in the award to the extent that their 

interests, respectively, are depreciated, damaged, or destroyed by the condemnation. 
 
19. COSTS 
 
Lessee shall be liable to and shall pay the City for the fees and costs incurred by the City in 

connection with the preparation, operation and enforcement of this Lease.   
 
20. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A.  Time Is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Lease and of each provision hereof. 

 
  Page 8 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 57



 
B.  Entire Agreement.  This Lease represents the entire agreement between the parties with 

respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be amended except in writing executed by the City and 
Lessee. 
 

C.  Governing Law and Venue.  This Lease shall be subject to the provisions of the Code now 
or hereafter in effect.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Alaska law and 
any action arising under this Lease shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Cordova, 
Alaska.   

 
D.  Relationship of Parties.  Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to create the 

relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of any association between 
Lessee and the City.  Neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provisions contained in 
this Lease, nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to create any relationship between the City and 
Lessee other than the relationship of lessee and Landlord. 
 

E.  Notice.  All notices hereunder may be hand-delivered or mailed.  If mailed, they shall be sent 
by certified or registered mail to the following respective addresses: 

 
TO CITY:     TO LESSEE: 

 
City of Cordova    The North West Company (International) Inc. 
Attn: City Manager    Attn: Rex Wilhelm, President, COO  
P.O. Box 1210     Attn: Walt Pickett, Vice President 
Cordova, Alaska  99574    77 Main Street  

       Winnipeg, MB R3C 2R1 
 
or to such other respective addresses as either party hereto may hereafter from time to time designate in 
advance in writing to the other party.  Notices sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given when 
properly mailed, and the postmark affixed by the U.S. Post Office shall be conclusive evidence of the date 
of mailing. If hand-delivered, notice shall be deemed to have been made at the time of delivery. 

 
F.  Captions.  Captions herein are for convenience and reference and shall not be used in 

construing the provisions of this Lease. 
 

G.  No Waiver of Breach.  No failure by the City to insist upon the strict performance of any term, 
covenant or condition of this Lease, or to exercise any right or remedy upon a breach thereof, shall 
constitute a waiver of any such breach or of such term, covenant or condition.  No waiver of any breach 
shall effect or alter this Lease, but each and every term, covenant and condition of this Lease shall 
continue in full force and effect with respect to any other existing or subsequent breach. 
 

H.  Survival.  No expiration or termination of this Lease shall expire or terminate any liability or 
obligation to perform which arose prior to the termination or expiration. 
 

I.  Late Payment.  In the event that any rent or other payment due under this Lease is not 
received by the City when due, a late fee of five percent (5%) per month of the principal amount due shall 
be due and payable until the full amount of rent or other payment is received by the City. 
 

J.  Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Lease is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and 
shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated. 
 

K.  Successors and Assigns.  The terms, covenants and conditions in this Lease shall inure to 
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the City and Lessee. 

 

 
  Page 9 o f  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 58



L.  Estoppel Certificates.  Either party shall at any time and from time to time, upon not less 
than 10 days’ prior written request by the other party, execute, acknowledge, and deliver to such party a 
statement certifying that this Lease is unamended and in full force and effect (or, if there has been any 
amendment, that the same is in full force and effect as amended and stating the amendments); that there 
are no defaults existing (or, if there is any claimed default, stating the nature and extent thereof); and 
stating the dates to which the rent and other charges have been paid in advance. 
 

M.  Recordation of Lease.  The parties agree that this Lease shall not be recorded, but upon the 
request of either party, the other party will join the requesting party in executing a memorandum of lease 
in a form suitable for recording, and each party agrees that such memorandum shall be prepared and 
recorded at the requesting party’s expense. 
 

N.  Authority.  Lessee represents that Lessee is a for-profit corporation duly organized, validly 
existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Washington, and is duly authorized by the 
State of Alaska to do business as a foreign corporation in the State of Alaska, and that Lessee has all 
necessary power and is duly authorized to enter into this Lease and to carry out the obligations of Lessee 
hereunder.  Prior to executing this Lease, Lessee shall provide the City with a certificate of authority 
issued by the State of Alaska, and shall provide the City with a resolution of Lessee’s Board of Directors 
authorizing Lessee to enter into this Lease and to carry out its obligations hereunder as set forth above, 
and authorizing and directing the officer of Lessee whose name and signature appear at the end of this 
Lease to execute this Lease on Lessee’s behalf.   

 
O.  Exhibits.  Exhibit A to this Lease is hereby specifically incorporated into this Lease. 
 
P.  No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed to 

create any rights or benefits to any parties not signatories or successors or permitted assigns of 
signatories to this Lease. 

 
Q.  Interpretation.  The language in all parts of this Lease shall in all cases be simply construed 

according to its fair meaning and not for or against the City or Lessee as both City and Lessee have had 
the assistance of attorneys in drafting and reviewing this Lease. 
 

R.  Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so 
executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  

 
S. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event that the City shall bring any suit or action to enforce this 

Lease or any term or provision hereof, and shall prevail in such suit or action, Lessee agrees that Lessee 
shall pay the City’s attorney’s fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with such suit or action. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be executed on the dates set 

opposite their respective signatures below. 
 
 

CITY:     CITY OF CORDOVA 
 
 

Dated:      By:       
Its:  City Manager 

 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 

City Clerk 
 
 

 
  Page 10 of  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LESSEE:     The North West Company (International) Inc.  
 
 
 

Dated:      By:       
      Its:       
 
 
 
 
 
Dated:      By:       
      Its:       
 

 
  Page 11 of  11 
F:\401777\198\00255449.DOCX 60



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    January 13, 2014 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      Appointment of 2014 Election Board members 
 

 
Below are the names of the individuals who have been selected to serve on the election board for the 
2014 General Election on March 4, 2014.   
 
Recommended motion: Move to concur with the Mayor’s appointment of the 2014 General Election 
board members as follows:    
 
Diana Rubio, as Chairperson 
Becky Chapek 
Becca Dodge 
Seawan Gehlbach 
Sue Muma 
Anne Schultz 
Jeannie Gilman 
Sue Shellhorn 
Ruth Steele 
Susan Bourgeois 
Tina Hammer 
 
Required action:  Majority voice vote or approval of the consent calendar. 
 
   

61



 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 15, 2014 @ 7:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

MINUTES 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Acting Vice Mayor EJ Cheshier called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:30 pm on January 15, 
2014, in the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Acting Vice Mayor EJ Cheshier led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Council members Tim Joyce and EJ Cheshier. Council Members Kristin 
Carpenter, David Allison, Dave Reggiani and James Burton were present via teleconference. Mayor 
James Kacsh and Council Member Bret Bradford were absent. Also present were City Manager Randy 
Robertson and City Clerk Susan Bourgeois.  
 

D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to approve the Regular Agenda.  
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Cheshier-yes; Burton-yes; Joyce-yes; Carpenter-yes; 
Allison-yes and Reggiani-yes. Motion passes. 
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - none 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speaker - Joel Azure, NVE performance deed of trust proposal – John Whissel was present in 
place of Joel Azure, he is the Director of Environmental and Natural Resources at the Native Village of 
Eyak. He presented a letter from Joel Azure basically asking for an extension in regard to the deed of 
trust. The project they had proposed hasn’t moved forward at the schedule they had hoped it would. They 
have not been successful in obtaining the grant funding that is necessary. Cheshier asked if there were 
Council questions; there were none but Cheshier asked how long of an extension they were asking for. 
Whissel said the request was for an additional three years. He continued that it’s realistic to anticipate 
funding within a year.  

2. Audience comments regarding agenda items – none. 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions 
Harbor – Burton said no meeting in January – next is February 
HSB – Cheshier said there was just an HSB meeting previous to this Council meeting and they looked at 
financials and did some credentialing and there will be a few resolutions brought before Council at the 
February 5 meeting that HSB is forwarding on to them.  
Parks and Rec – Carpenter said no meeting to report on. 
Planning and Zoning – Reggiani said P&Z had a meeting on January 7 and there were several agenda 
items tonight that were forwarded to Council form that meeting. Also, they elected a chair – Tom Bailer 
and a new Vice-Chair, John Greenwood.  
School Board – Bradford was not present, but it was stated that there was a school board meeting tonight.  
4. Student Council Representative Report – There was no student council rep present. 
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
Acting Vice Mayor EJ Cheshier informed Council that the consent calendar was before them. 
5. Resolution 01-14-04 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska adopting an 
alternative allocation method for the FY14 Shared Fisheries Business Tax program and certifying that this 
allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects of fisheries business activity in 
FMA 15: Prince William Sound 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 15, 2014 
PAGE 1 OF 4 62



 
6. Council waiving right to protest renewal of liquor licenses - Alaskan Hotel & Bar and Laura’s Liquor 
Shoppe 
Vote on Consent Calendar: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Carpenter-yes; Cheshier-yes; Joyce-yes; 
Allison-yes; Burton-yes and Reggiani-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/Joyce S/Burton to approve the Minutes. 
7.  Regular Meeting Minutes 12-18-13 
8.  Regular Meeting Minutes 1-02-14 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Joyce-yes; Allison-yes; Burton-yes; Cheshier-yes; 
Reggiani-yes and Carpenter-yes. Motion passes. 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 
9. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Kacsh was not present. 
10. Manager’s Report – Robertson reported that: 1) We are postured to discuss these performance deeds 
of trust tonight in executive session with our attorney on the line, Cortney Kitchen, but if Council believes 
it is too difficult with everyone on the phone, you may consider delaying until more of you are in the 
room. This is important as it is the first time we will handle this performance deed of trust issue and there 
are more pending that will come before you soon. 2) Update on Senator Stevens visit – he sent a thank you 
note – it was a good visit; 3) Mt Eccles playground – a report from Mr. Bailer says that it is progressing 
well – we will need several days of dry weather to complete it; 4) Jon Stavig is checking in on the 
snowpocalypse money about every two days; presently its moved from the audit desk to the pay desk and 
it’s looking like $313K  5) on New Year’s Day Bidarki experienced serious leaks through the roof and the 
gym floor is warped – insurance adjustor has already been here – we are working hard to ensure we have 
it up and functional in time for Ice Worm events; 6) Ms. Start will be here tomorrow from ADEC – our 
go-to person for the LT2 and Baler projects. He asked if there were Council questions. Joyce asked if he 
was dealing with the roof at Bidarki as well as the gym floor. Robertson said yes, of course he was, we 
have been up there and Hallquist, who is very experienced in roofing, completely resealed it with hot tar, 
it is a band-aid but we may use insurance money to help with that as well.  
11. City Clerk’s Report – Bourgeois said that the declaration of candidacy period is open for the General 
Election on March 4, 2014 and it closes February 4. So far she said Tom Bailer has declared for Council 
seat C, no one yet for Council seat B and David Allison and Sheryl Glasen have declared for the one 
open School Board seat. 
  

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
12. Council letter to Anchorage area legislators regarding AMHS funding 01-03-14 
13. Mayor thanks to M. Frohnapfel for interest in P&Z Commission 01-03-14 
14. Mayor thanks to J. Betts for interest in Harbor Commission 01-03-14 
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  
15. Ordinance 1113 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing a lease 
for a portion of Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park, Plat 93-2, specifically a building known as 
the Prince William Sound Science Center and the south west 50 feet of the dock to the Prince William 
Sound Science and Technology Institute, an Alaska nonprofit corporation, doing business as Prince 
William Sound Science Center for the operation of the Prince William Sound Science Center – 1st reading 
M/Joyce S/Burton to adopt Ordinance 1113 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, authorizing a lease for a portion of Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park, Plat 93-2, 
specifically a building known as the Prince William Sound Science Center and the south west 50 feet of 
the dock to the Prince William Sound Science and Technology Institute, an Alaska nonprofit corporation, 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 15, 2014 
PAGE 2 OF 4 63



 
doing business as Prince William Sound Science Center for the operation of the Prince William Sound 
Science Center. 
Joyce asked if this has been agreed to and everyone is happy. Robertson said that is not the case. The 
PWSSC Board meets January 24 and Ms. Hoffman and Mr. Smallwood said they may have a response 
back from the board after that meeting. They realize that per Council’s direction we are moving forward 
with passing the ordinance with the lease as is. Reggiani said he thought the fourth whereas that Council 
added to the lease language should also be added as a whereas in the ordinance to further express 
Council’s intent.  
M/Joyce S/Burton to amend the ordinance by inserting the fourth whereas from the lease also as the 
fourth whereas in the ordinance. 
Vote on motion to amend: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Carpenter-yes; Joyce-yes; Cheshier-yes; 
Burton-yes; Reggiani-yes and Allison-yes. Motion passes. 
Vote on main motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Reggiani-yes; Allison-yes; Cheshier-yes; 
Carpenter-yes; Joyce-yes and Burton-yes. Motion passes. 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
16. Update of active and inactive City committees 
City Clerk Bourgeois said that 2 of the committees that had been listed on the “Pending Agenda” page 
were removed because the authorizing resolutions of those committees had said they were in force until 
they presented their final report to Council (E-91 RFP Committee and Public Services Building Design 
Committee had both done so). The other three committees: Fisheries Advisory, Cordova Center and 
Trails, per their authorizing resolutions are in force until such time that Council deems them no longer 
needed. At this time, Council opted to keep those three committees active. 
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
17. Acceptance of Planning & Zoning Commission Resolution 14-02 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to accept resolution 14-02 from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Burton asked if this sale would limit public access to shell beach. City Planner Greenwood said it would 
not.  
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Cheshier-yes; Carpenter-yes; Burton-yes; Allison-
yes; Reggiani-yes and Joyce-yes. Motion passes. 
 

18. Council decision on property disposal, portion ATS 220 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to dispose of approximately 1,900 square feet of ATS 220, (19 X 100) located on 
the West side of Lot 1, Block 1 of the Cordova Industrial Park for not less than fair market value as 
outlined in chapter 5.22.060A  method 1 (direct negotiation), including the following special condition: 
that the land will be surveyed and incorporated into the existing Lot 1 Block 1 Cordova Industrial Park, 
by a plat which will be recorded at the State of Alaska Recorder’s Office.  
Joyce, for the record, said that method one is direct negotiation with the proposer as opposed to putting 
this lot out for bid or proposal. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Reggiani-yes; Cheshier-yes; Carpenter-yes; Joyce-
yes; Allison-yes and Burton-yes. Motion passes. 
 

19. Council decision on property disposal, Lot 5, Block 2 South Fill 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to dispose of a portion of Lot 5, Block 2, South Fill Development Park for not less 
than fair market value as outlined in chapter 5.22.060A by method 1 (direct negotiation). 
City Clerk Bourgeois mentioned that there had been an error on the memo in the packet. The vote at the 
P&Z commission was listed as a 7-0 vote but in fact it had been 6-1 with McGann dissenting. She wanted 
that clear for the record. Also the legal is incorrect in the suggested motion – it is Lot 5 Block 2 not Block 
1, South Fill.  

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 15, 2014 
PAGE 3 OF 4 64



 
Cheshier mentioned that this is the AC property (part of their parking lot). 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bradford). Joyce-yes; Burton-yes; Cheshier-yes; Reggiani-yes; 
Carpenter-yes and Allison-yes. Motion passes. 
 

20. Pending Agenda and Calendar 
Bourgeois said that P&Z Commission has changed its regular meeting in February to February 4 instead 
of February 11.  
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
Tom Bailer of 304 Orca Inlet Drive mentioned the school playground project and how the workers were 
excited in the beginning, good weather and then today they were like drowned rats and asked if the 
weather was always this awful. He said the City has a really good staff now and Mr. Hallquist has been a 
really good addition; he really knows construction. So, when they bring you these projects, (you know we 
have the baler coming up and other things) if you can expedite these things and get your questions 
answered ahead of the meeting, it is crucial to get these projects out during the good building season – 
makes a huge difference on the quality and craftsmanship. As far as Bidarki roof, the wrong material was 
used to patch it in the past and Hallquist was right on it, recognized that right away and got it patch 
correctly, quickly. Those kinds of personnel can really save this community some money. 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
21. Council Comments 
Reggiani thanks EJ Cheshier for running the meetings tonight; did a great job. 
Carpenter ditto EJ, thanks for holding down the fort. 
Joyce yes, agreed, good job Mr. Senior Council member. Also he wants to reiterate thanks to hospital 
staff for some of the money they have been able to bring into the community. Some went toward exercise 
equipment, wellness at Bidarki.  
Cheshier agreed that was to be his final comment as well, a big deal for our community. 
Cheshier called for a short recess before entering executive session. With no objection, the meeting was 
recessed at 8:27 pm. At 8:33 pm Council was back in regular session. 
 

Q.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
22. Attorney advice regarding City Performance Deeds of Trust 
  (materials under separate cover to Council) 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to enter into an executive session to discuss a matter the immediate knowledge of 
which would clearly have an adverse effect on the finances of the government, specifically attorney 
advice regarding performance deeds of trust. 
With no objection, Council entered the executive session at 8:34 pm. The regular session was reconvened 
at 8:44 pm.  
Council entered executive session at 8:34 pm and regular session was reconvened at 8:44 pm. Joyce said 
he would recommend that the City Manager and the City Clerk put an executive session item back on the 
agenda for the February 5 meeting for further discussions on this same matter. Council concurred. 
 

R.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/Reggiani S/Joyce to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:44 pm 
Hearing no objection, the meeting was adjourned. 
 

Approved: February 5, 2014 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 15, 2014 
PAGE 4 OF 4 65



City of Cordova 
Legislative Report – January 30, 2014 
Prepared by John Bitney 
 
Summary 
The Second Regular Session of the 28th Alaska Legislature convened January 21, 2014.  After one 
week, it appears the upcoming weeks will be focused around three general topics: 

1) Governor Parnell has put forth an agreement with the three major North Slope oil/gas 
companies to move forward on developing a natural gas pipeline.  The agreement outlines a 
project with the State of Alaska owning 20-25% of the pipeline, and includes legislation for 
“enabling contracts” to establish fiscal terms.  The agreement, legislation, and policy 
decisions are complex and will focus a great deal of time and attention by legislators. 

2) There are numerous bills related to public education, and most school districts are facing 
significant budget shortfalls.  During his State of the State speech, Governor Parnell 
expressed his support for a Constitutional amendment to allow the state to establish a system 
of funding vouchers for private schools.  General consensus is that education funding, the 
constitutional amendment, graduation examinations, school district health insurance, and 
curriculum will be a major part of the adjournment negotiations. 

3) The Capital Budget is always a major factor.  This session the talk is tougher than recent 
past years due to a projected $2 billion shortfall between revenues & expenditures.  
Governor Parnell’s Capital Budget proposal totals $430 million in General Funds, which 
compares to $1.3 billion spent last session.  While spending is anticipated to be much lower 
than past years, Capital Budget funding will be debated in the context of election year 
pressures, healthy state savings accounts (approx. $15-$20 billion), and numerous ongoing 
projects that require funding for completion.  The final budget will be higher than the 
amount proposed by the Governor. 

 
These are the major issues anticipated to dominate the discussion and interactions within the 
Legislature this session.   
 
A list of bills (sorted by subject) that may be of some interest is shown below. 
 
Municipal Government 
HB19, registration of motor vehicles, by Rep. Bill Stoltze (R-Chugiak).  Currently in House Rules 
Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2019&session=28 
 
HB28, fire and emergency medical services, by Rep. Eric Feige (R-Chickaloon).  Currently in 
Senate Labor & Commerce Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2028&session=28 
 

66

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2019&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2028&session=28


HB181, mining license revenues and revenue sharing, by Rep. Neil Foster (D-Nome).  Currently in 
House Community & Regional Affairs Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20181&session=28 
 
HB193, municipal taxation of tobacco productions, by Rep. Lance Pruitt (R-Anchorage).  Currently 
in Senate Finance Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20193&session=28 
 
HB275, electronic publication of certain municipal notices, by Rep. Mike Hawker (R-Anchorage).  
Currently in the House Community & Regional Affairs Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20275&session=28 
 
Oil/Gas/Natural Resource Management/Development 
HB77, land use permitting, land exchanges, and permitting of water rights and reservations, by 
Governor Parnell.  Currently in the Senate Rules Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2077&session=28 
 
SB138, relating to a North Slope natural gas pipeline, by Governor Parnell.  Currently in the Senate 
Resources Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20138&session=28 
 
Education 
HB27, student counts, unreserved school operating fund balances and restrictions on school district 
money, by Rep. Eric Feige (R-Chickaloon).  Currently in House Finance Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2027&session=28 
 
HB120, pupil transportation funding, by Rep. Lynn Gattis (R-Wasilla).  Currently in House Finance 
Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20120&session=28 
 
SB89, tax credits for educational facilities, by Senator Mike Dunleavy (R-Mat-Su).  Currently in 
Senate Education Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2089&session=28 
 
SB90, school district health insurance, by Senator Mike Dunleavy (R-Mat-Su).  Currently in Senate 
Finance Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2090&session=28 
 
SB92, municipal tax credit for tuition, by Senator John Coghill (R-Fairbanks).  Currently in Senate 
Education Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2092&session=28 

67

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20181&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20193&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20275&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2077&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20138&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20%2027&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20120&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2089&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2090&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2092&session=28


 
SB139, increasing the BSA for K-12 education, student assessments, charter schools, vocational 
schools, and education tax credits, by Governor Parnell.  Currently in the Senate Education 
Committee. 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20139&session=28 
 
HJR1/SJR9, constitutional amendment for private school funding, by Rep. Wes Keller & Senator 
Mike Dunleavy 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HJR%20%201&session=28 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SJR%20%209&session=28 
 
Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) 
With an unfunded liability of over $12 billion, Alaska’s public employee pension funds are a 
growing budget concern.  Governor Parnell has requested $3 billion in his budget to help pay down 
this unfunded liability.  Since 2008, municipal contributions to PERS are capped in state law at a 
rate of 22.5%, and school district contributions to TRS are capped at 12%. 
 
HB152, PERS termination costs, by Rep. Steve Thompson (R-Fairbanks).  Currently in House 
Labor & Commerce Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20152&session=28 
 
HB174/SB48, PERS contributions by municipalities, by the House Community & Regional Affairs 
Committee and Senator Donald Olson (D-Golovin).  Currently in House Labor & Commerce 
Committee and Senate Finance Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20174&session=28 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2048&session=28 
 
Fisheries 
HB18, establishing a priority for personal use fisheries, by Rep. Bill Stoltze (R-Chugiak).  Currently 
in the House Fisheries Committee 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?session=28&bill=HB18 
 
HB204, relating to product development tax credits for salmon and herring products, by Rep. Alan 
Austerman.  Currently in the House Fisheries Committee. 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?session=28&bill=HB204 
 
SB71, relating to file date for quarterly payment of fishery resource landing tax, Senator Peter 
Micciche (R-Soldotna).  Currently in the Senate Finance Committee. 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?session=28&bill=SB71 

68

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20139&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HJR%20%201&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SJR%20%209&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20152&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=HB%20174&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?bill=SB%20%2048&session=28
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?session=28&bill=HB18
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?session=28&bill=HB204
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/get_bill.asp?session=28&bill=SB71


 

 
  
 
CITY CLERK’S REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

February 5, 2014 Regular Council Meeting 
 

Date of Report: January 27, 2014 
 

Things I need feedback on or am reporting to Council on: 

• I am still advertising for 3 Parks and Rec seats – please talk to your constituents and drum up interest 

in serving on this important City commission 

• I am requesting leave for a few upcoming Fridays (trips to Anchorage for Doctor’s appointments and 

wrestling) unless I hear any resistance, I will be away from the office on these days: Mar 14, 28 & 

Apr 4, 11, 18, 25 & May 1, 2 – I have enough vacation time and will ask Tina to be there each of 

those days 
 

Things the Clerk’s Office has been working on: 

• 2014 Election prep and advertising is underway; in 2014 we will be electing 2 Council members 

(seats B & C – currently Joyce and Allison) and 1 school board member (currently Morse), and 

voting on 1 ballot prop, the initiated ordinance regarding trapping; Allison is termed out and 

cannot run for Council, Joyce is not termed out, School Board has no term limits so Morse can run as 

well; mark your calendars, Election Day is Tuesday March 4, 2014 

• So far, declared candidates are: Seat B: Tim Joyce; Seat C: Tom Bailer; School Board: David 

Allison, Sheryl Glasen 

• Signed paychecks/other AP checks 

• Prepared agenda and packet for special meeting 1-23-14, public hearing and regular mtg on 2-5-14  

• Assisted with several agenda items including: CCMC resolutions for CT scanner, Arctic IT resolution 

& memo, Election Board appointments, Board of Fish resolution, Performance deeds of trust items  

• Attended Department Head meetings on January 21 & January 28  

• Catching up on minutes  

• Deputy Clerk is diligently entering all the changes for 2014 tax roll, while also sending delinquent 

notices to 2013 taxpayers who are late on payments to the City 

• Deputy Clerk prepared foreclosure resolution in anticipation of beginning 2013 foreclosure process 

for delinquent homeowners of 2013 property taxes 

 

City of Cordova,  
Office of the City Clerk 
Cordova, AK  99574 
602 Railroad Avenue * PO Box 1210 

Phone: 907.424.6248 
Fax: 907.424.6000 
Cell: 907.253.6248 
E-mail: cityclerk@cityofcordova.net 

 
69



To: Mayor and City Council 
Through: City Manager Randy Robertson 

Subject:  2013 4th Quarter Report from the Cordova Public Library 

Date: January 2, 2014 
From:  Miriam Dunbar, Library Director, Cordova Public Library 

 
During October through December 2013: 

 Visitation:  4913   Circulation:  2432 

 Interlibrary Loans:  66   Listen Alaska:  309 checkouts 

 Internet Use:  1290 sessions  Wifi Use:  774 sessions 

 Materials Added:  302   Materials Deleted:  1,554 

(includes McNaughton leased books) 

 

 Staff continued heavily weeding, thinning Junior Fiction and some Non-Fiction (700’s and Easy).  161 boxes of 

discarded books (about 4900 pounds) have been sent to Better World Books for them to sell or give to 

communities that need books. 

 Story time for Little Ones is continuing to be popular.  It is twice a week and includes reading aloud, art and 

puppets. On November 15, Barbara Brown visited and read from her new book Hanukkah in Alaska which features 

a moose in the backyard. 

 After School Art is held every Friday in the meeting room.  It will be on hiatus during the month of January while 

Paula Payne is traveling in Australia. 
 Trick or Treat for Books brought 308 people, so almost all of the 150 new books were given away.  They were 

purchased by the Friends of the Cordova Public Library from money raised from our used book sales. 
 Outreach to Senior Citizens is continuing with positive results.  Books, magazines, and music are being brought to 

twelve CCMC residents to enjoy each week. 

 OWL Project videoconferencing equipment was used on October 9 for Don Rearden’s talk on the magic of books 

and reading from his novel, The Raven’s Gift.  Another videoconference was held on December 10, “Understanding 

the Affordable Care Act”.  We are planning to have a videoconference geared for children in February. 

 ListenAlaska, the online service for audio and e-books to which we subscribe, is continuing to gain popularity 

(circulation this quarter was 309, whereas 2012 4th quarter was only 143).  We held training for the public on 

October 23, and continue to assist people when they encounter problems with the program. 

 Destiny Library System— All CPL received on-site training from a Follett trainer on November 4 which was very 

helpful.  Both CSD librarians, an NVE staff member, and a PWSSC employee also attended.  This training was 

financed by our successful Interlibrary Cooperative Grant from the Alaska State Library. 

 Inventory of our collection has been done on several sections, and we will continue to do so.  We currently have 

23,320 items in our collection. 

 Early Literacy Station— We received an OWL grant for $2622 for this computer system designed for children 2-8 

years old.  It is preloaded with educational games and is not connected to the internet.  We enlarged our Junior 

Fiction area so that we there is a suitable place for young children to use the new system. 

 Library Board met on December 9, 2013.  Next meeting is set for March 10, 2014. 

 Holiday Giving Tree-- new children’s books were collected and then distributed by the Salvation Army.  Three 

library employees also helped the Salvation Army on Distribution Day. 

 70



 

On Halloween, 308 people came to Trick or Treat 

for Books, where each child could pick out a new 

book purchased by the Friends of the Cordova 

Public Library.   

On November 4, Follett trainer Ginger Parker 

gave all the library staff and other community 

members training on our new library system.  

The Destiny System has been working very 

well, and patrons can log onto it from any 

computer logged into the internet.  

Guest author Barbara Brown read from her new 

book Hanukkah in Alaska on November 15.  Our 

newly enlarged Junior Fiction area now has the 

Early Literacy Station, a computer designed for 2-8 

year olds. 

 

71



CORDOVA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Quarterly Report 

The final quarter of 2013, CVFD responded to 36 calls for Fire, Rescue and EMS for a total of 211 
member hours. Including emergency calls, the Volunteers of the department participated in the regular 
Thursday night meeting, public education and other activities associated with the emergency service for 
a quarter total of 1518 member hours. 

This quarters training and activities included  Ambulance inventory, child car seat training, Hose loads, 
Vehicle extrication, station visits, Budget prep, fire and life safety inspection, Halloween party, Hose 
testing, Drivers training, ETT Training, Dispatch Training, EMS Training, Fire Behavior and Engine 
maintenance, Explorer Training, City Employee CPR Training, Grant writing, Christmas tree light and Fire 
Dept Christmas Party. 

 

Please See Attached Activity reports 

 

72



Monthly Activity 10-13 A
tte

nd
an

ce

H
ou

rs

To
ta

l 
M

an
 H

ou
rs

Date Thursday Meetings
10/10 10 4 40
10/17 Car Seat Training 9 2.5 22.5
10/17 Hose Loads Tripple Teir 18 3 54
10/17 Officers Meeting 6 1 6
10/24 Vehicle Extrication/ KED Training 18 3 54
10/24 Ambulance Inventory 8 1 8

Total 69 14.5 185.5
Date Public Education Taught

10/15 School/ Classroom  Vist to the Station 3 2 6

Total 3 2 6
Date Other Activities

10/14 Budget Prep for CVFD 2 6 12
10/21 Fire & Life Safety Inspection PWSC Canery Creek Location 1 6 6
10/26 MDA Fill the Boot 8 5 40
10/29 Explorers Night Ropes & Knots 14 3 42
10/29 Halloween Bag Fill 14 1 14
10/31 Halloween Setup/ Clean Up 15 5 75
10/31 Joanie B EMS Prep 1 55 55
10/13 Hose Testing 3 40 120

Total 58 121 364
Date Fire Runs

10/7 13-40 MVA w/ Injuries 12 2 24
10/18 13-041 Service Call Ammonia Smell 1 1 1

Total 13 3 25

Date Amb. Runs
10/6 13-138 ALOC (Confussed Mental) 3 2 6
10/7 13-139 MVA w/ Injuries 6 2 12
10/7 13-140 MVA w/ Injuries 5 2 10

Total 14 6 28

157 146.5 608.5Total hours for the month of October 

Ambulance Inventory/ EMS Night 

73



Monthly Activity 11-13 A
tte

nd
an

ce

H
ou

rs

To
ta

l 
M

an
 H

ou
rs

Date Thursday Meetings
11/7 Drivers Training, Bldg. Construction, CCMC 9 3 27

11/14 Business Meeting 19 3 57
11/21 Canceled do to weather
11/28 Thanksgiving

Total 28 6 84

Date Public Education Taught
11/23 EMS Ambulance Tour 1 1.5 1.5

Total 29 1.5 1.5

Date Other Activities
11/4 Tramua 101 Training 9 5.5 49.5

11/11 Radio In a Box Prep 1 5 5
11/14 Alzheimers Training Night 15 1 15
11/16 National Ski Patrol/ EOC Refresher/ ETT Training 11 8 88
11/19 Explorers Night 11 1.5 16.5
11/20 High Performance CPR prep 2 2.5 5
11/24 Radio In a Box Prep 1 2.5 2.5
11/25 Radio In a Box Orientation for Dispatch 7 3.5 24.5
11/26 Radio in a box & EVAC Prep 1 8 8
11/27 Radio in a Box Maint. 1 4.5 4.5
Nov Joaine B. ETT Class & EMS Capt Duties  1 73.5 73.5

Total 60 115.5 292
Date Fire Runs

11/19 13-042 Duty Officer Service Call 1 1 1
11/20 13-043 Hazmat Spill / Leak / Odor in the Area 2 2 4
11/28 13-044 Automated Alarm 17 1 17

Total 20 4 22
Date Amb. Runs

11/6 13-142 Man with Internal Bleeding 3 1 3
11/7 13-143 MEDAVAC 3 2 6
11/7 13-144 Broken Hip 4 2 8
11/7 13-145 MEDAVAC 3 2 6

11/14 13-146 Man Fallen 4 1 4
11/17 13-147 Seizure 4 1 4
11/22 13-148 Transport to Emergency Room 3 1 3
11/22 13-149 Transport from  Emergency Room to Residence  3 1 3
11/22 13-150 MEDAVAC 4 4 16
11/23 13-151 Vomiting/ Stomach Pains 3 2 6
11/29 13-152 Deceased Patient 3 2 6

Total 37 19 65

174 146 464.5Total hours for the month of Nov 

74



Monthly Activity 12-13 A
tte

nd
an

ce

H
ou

rs

To
ta

l 
M

an
 H

ou
rs

Date Thursday Meetings
12/5 EMS Station Night IV'S, Peds, Zoll, Scavenger Hunt 13 2.5 15.5

12/19 22 2.5 55
12/26 Fire Behavior/ Engine 1 & 4 10 3 30

Total 45 8 100.5
Date Public Education Taught

12/4 CPR City Employees 1 5 5
12/11 CPR City Employees 1 5 5
12/18 CPR City Employees 1 5 5

Total 3 15 15
Date Other Activities

12/3 Explorers Topic Ladders 10 1.5 15
12/4 Council Meeting and Grant Preperation 3 5 15
12/4 Portable Radio in a Box Manual Construction 1 6 6
12/5 Grant Writing 3 5 15
12/5 Engine 3 Chritsmas Parade Preperation 5 1 5
12/5 Engine 3 Decorate 3 1 3
12/6 Tree Lighting 23 3 69

12/14 Fire Department Christmas Party Setup 8 2 16
12/14 Christmas Party 27 3.5 94.5
12/16 Sue Farzan Disaster Prep Work/ Help setup FFI 1 2 2
12/17 Sue Farzan Safety Duties, MSDS Prep 1 5 5
12/18 Sue Farzan Safety Duties, MSDS Prep 1 8 8
12/30 Sue Farzasn Safety Duties MSDS Prep/ Clean Station 1 5 5

Total 87 48 258.5
Date Fire Runs

12/15 13-045 HAZMAT Incident/ Fuel Odor in the Area 2 1 3
12/16 13-046 Automated Alarm Trident Seafoods ( False Alarm) 2 1 3
12/17 13-047 Cvil Assist Residential Smoke Alarm Sounding 1 1 1
12/21 13-048 Automated Alarm Elementry School 1 1 1
12/26 13-049 Automated Alarm Ocean Beauty ( False Alarm) 9 1 9
12/27 13-050 HAZMAT Incident/ Fuel leaking into heating system 1 1 1
12/27 13-051 Automated Alarm Ocean Beauty ( False Alarm) 7 1 7

Total 23 7 25

Date Amb. Runs
12/1 13-153 Medical Transport to ER 3 1 3
12/6 13-154 Altered level of Consciousness  3 1 3
12/6 13-155 Medical Transport 3 2 6
12/9 13-156 Unknown Medical/ Unable to get balance 3 1 3
12/11 13-157 Medical Transport 3 2 6
12/20 13-158 Trauma to the Mouth 3 1 3

High Performance CPR King County Medic One Model 

75



12/20 13-159 Medical Transport 3 1 3
12/20 13-160 Altered level of Consciousnes/ ER Assist 3 4 12
12/20 13-161 Medical Transport 2 2 4
12/29 13-162 Altered level of Consciousness  (ETOH) 3 1 3

Total 29 16 46

187 94 445Total hours for the month of June 

76



TO: City Manager
FROM: Harbormaster Schinella
DATE:      12/31/2013
RE: Quarterly Activity Report/Oct-Dec. 2013

Exclusive Slips Assigned 695 out of 715 Total Slips 96% Occupancy (as of 12/31/13)
    Oct     Nov      Dec    Total

Vessels Charged Daily Rate 3 3 12 18
Vessels Charged Monthly Rate 0 0 0 0
Vessels In Impound Status 1 0 0 1
Vessel Lifts 10 7 0 17
Port Arrivals:

Shoreside 1 1 2 4
Samson 1 1 1 3

Used Oil Collected (Oct-Dec) 2200  Gals
Used Oil Collected(Jan-Dec.) 26827 Gals
Used Oil Delivered (Oct-Dec) 3650  Gals
Used Oil Delivered (Jan-Dec) 20100 Gals

Vessels Towed 2
Vessels Pumped 3
Vessel Bilges Pumped 2
Vessel Sewage Tanks Pumped 0

GENERAL ACTIVITIES
* Electrical repairs
* Vehicle repairs
* Painted break room and bathroom
* Assisted CEC in installing 3 Wi-Fi antenna's in the harbor
* Conducted approximately 30 burns with the Smart ash burner
* Delivered used oil
* Winterized harbor water system
* Repaired 30 dock lights
* Rewired break room, Boiler and shop heater to meet OSHA requirements
* Rewired 3 stage dock crane
* Made repairs to Travelift
* Harbormaster attended Alyeska oil spill drill in Oct
* Harbormaster and Admin Asst attended Harbormaster Conference in Oct
* Repaired spalling on concrete floats

77



78



79



80



81



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To:   Mayor and City Council 
 
Through:  City Manager Randy Robertson  
 
From:   Chief of Police George Wintle  
 
Subject:   4th Quarter 2013 Police Report 
 
Date:     January 7, 2014  
 
 
PERSONNEL: 
 
Officers Greg Rubio and Derrickk Torgerson graduated from the Sitka Alaska State Trooper Training Academy as 
of November 15th 2013. The police department is now fully staffed with six full time Police Officers including the 
Chief of Police. Scheduling is now set with the Officers to work 8 hour shifts with 7 day a week, 24 hour coverage 
of the city. The Cordova Police Department Communications Officer status currently has one opening and is 
currently being advertised. Because of this vacancy, dispatchers are working 12 hour shifts accumulating two hours 
of overtime on each shift.  
 
PATROL 
 
The Cordova Police Department received a total of 356 calls for service during the 4th Quarter of 2013. From these 
calls for service a total of 63 investigative cases were generated and a total of 13 arrests were made.  
 
From the months of October 1st through December 31st 2013 there were 25 citations issued, while 40 offenders were 
issued warnings for minor violations. Please see the attached forms indicating the overall increase in activity with 
both citations and warnings.  
 
Dispatch:   
 
Kara Johnson was released from her position as communications clerk on December 22, 2013. The Application 
Process for a replacement has begun.  
 
JAIL:  
 
There were a total of 13 arrests made servicing a total 28 hours of served time. 
 
DMV:   
 
I have attached an annual spreadsheet showing the totals for our DMV office and would like to bring to your 
attention the amount of money being allocated and dispersed to the state. When factoring the amount of money we 
are paying for an employee to work at the DMV office and the amount of rent being paid, the city is losing money. 
We did perform 70 motor vehicle tests and 8 motorcycle road tests during this year of 2013.  
  

CITY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of Chief of Police 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 
Phone: (907) 424-6100 
Fax: (907) 253-6120 
Email: policechief@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 
 
 
  

82

mailto:policechief@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


TRAINING: 
 
Greg Rubio and Derrickk Torgerson completed training at Police Academy in Sitka, Alaska. In November, Officer 
Nate Taylor attended SART (Sexual Assault Response Team) training in Kenai Alaska with other members of the 
Cordova SART team. Training was made available to dispatchers and officers on the use of the “Radio in a Box” 
portable communications system. A training session was later conducted with city hall employees who evacuated 
the building and moved to the US Forest Building. The police department was timed in the event and was able to 
have communications in place and functioning within 14 minutes. 
 
PUBLIC RELATIONS 
 
Halloween safety bags were handed out during Halloween celebrations. The TIPS line 424-8477 (TIPS) was 
established allowing callers to receive up to a $5000 dollar reward if the information they provide leads to the arrest 
of an individual and the caller wishes to be identified. One caller was rewarded $500 for their information which led 
to a juvenile possessing marihuana. The Police department also participated in The City’s cleanup project that 
occurred every Wednesday. During the Christmas holiday, the police department delivered gifts and food boxes for 
the Salvation Army with one employee dressing up as Santa and his helper dressing as an elf. The police department 
also provided traffic safety during the annual Christmas tree lighting ceremony on Main Street. Several police 
personnel employees assisted in the city wide cleanup which occurred each Wednesday morning for several weeks 
in an attempt to beautify the city.  
 
PROJECTS / EQUIPMENT: 
 
In this 4th Quarter purchases were made to improve the animal shelter and impound lot gate. The department is 
continuing to wait on the construction on our department’s door replacements for the interview room and dispatch 
door which is being administered by Mr. Hallquist. Future projects were discussed in detail with Mr. Robertson and 
a timeline presented to accomplish those tasks. The police department’s video/audio recording cameras and 
surveillance equipment was finally upgraded by the TekMate Company and is now working correctly.  Four new 
computer CPU’s were replaced due to old operating systems and put in place by Mrs. Cloward which improved 
performance for these older machines. A large connex box container was set in place at the city auto pound where 
oversized property and evidence can be stored securely. Property which was being stored in the back of the city hall 
was transferred to the connex box for safe keeping and storage. Radar units that are in the city patrol vehicles were 
removed and sent out for testing and certification. Those units have now been returned to the patrol units and are 
working properly.  
 
 
 
 
 
Chief George Wintle 
Cordova Police Department 
 
 
 

83



December 24, 2013

Quarter 2012 2013

1st Quarter 1 21
2nd Quarter 73 52
3rd Quarter 36 39
4th Quarter 9 25
Total 119 137

2012-2013

Citations  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2012-2013 CPD CITATIONS 

2012

2013

84



December 24, 2013

Quarter 2012 2013

1st Quarter 0 59
2nd Quarter 53 38
3rd Quarter 23 80
4th Quarter 46 40
Total 122 217

2012-2013

Warnings   

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2012-2013 CPD WARNINGS 

2012

2013

85



 2013 ANNUAL TOTALS
DMV

MONTH NUMBER OF 
TRANSACTIONS TOTAL FEES STATE 

AMOUNT
CITY 

AMOUNT WALK-INS CALLS
TOTAL 

CUSTOMER 
CONTACTS

DAYS 
OPEN

JANUARY 154 $7,373.00 $5,201.20 $2,171.80 12

FEBRUARY 139 $6,728.00 $4,792.20 $1,935.80 12

MARCH 196 $10,466.00 $7,500.20 $2,965.80 18

APRIL 218 $9,131.00 $6,374.90 $2,756.10 340 100 440 16

MAY 391 $23,135.00 $16,529.90 $6,604.20 668 132 800 19

JUNE 306 $21,306.00 $15,681.90 $5,624.10 473 75 548 16

JULY 303 $18,666.00 $13,566.80 $5,099.20 476 88 564 16

AUGUST 366 $18,563.00 $13,151.70 $5,411.30 562 118 680 19

SEPTEMBER 250 $12,522.00 $8,846.80 $3,675.20 420 66 486 12

OCTOBER 250 $10,220.00 $7,052.90 $3,167.10 357 69 426 16

NOVEMBER 168 $9,764.00 $6,812.90 $2,951.10 259 74 333 13

DECEMBER 131 $6,801.00 $4,923.60 $1,877.40 195 35 230 11

TOTALS 2872 $154,675.00 $110,435.00 $44,239.10 3750 757 4507 180

86



 2013 ANNUAL TOTALS
DMV

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

MAY

JUNE

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

DAYS OPEN

TOTAL CUSTOMER CONTACTS

CALLS

WALK-INS

CITY AMOUNT

STATE AMOUNT

TOTAL FEES

NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS

87



MEMORANDUM  
 
TO:  CITY COUNCIL, Through  
 CITY MANAGER 
FROM: Laura Cloward, Information Services Director 
DATE: January 8, 2014 
SUBJECT: Q4 2013 Department Report 
 
This memo summarizes activities and accomplishments of the Information Services Department (Information 
Technology and PIO/Marketing) during the fourth quarter of 2013. 
 
Advertising 
Sixty-six (66) total advertisements were placed in The Cordova Times during the quarter, equivalent to 14.78 
pages of content. Public Notice items included Requests for Proposal, Invitations to Bid, Job Openings, and 
Legal Notices. Public information campaigns in the newspaper included, City Events/Special Services, “Atta-
Boys”/Thanks, “What Do City Services Cost/Where Does Your Money Go?”, and General Information for the 
public. 
 
Public Information Campaigns (submitted to local and regional media as appropriate) 
Information included disaster drill information/associated City Hall facility closure. 
 
Web Site 
The below chart depicts the monthly traffic on the web site. 

  
 
The following additions/enhancements were made on the City’s website during the period: 

• New page highlighting a variety of community calendars 
• New page promoting community organizations 
• Section for City Manager’s Year in Review that can serve as a “blog” area for the Manager. 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
13

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

3

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

Ap
ril

 2
01

3

M
ay

 2
01

3

Ju
ne

 2
01

3

Ju
ly

 2
01

3

Au
gu

st
 2

01
3

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
01

3

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

3

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

3
5,240 3,249 1,546 3,780 3,548 3,366 3,173 3,160 2,591 2,619 2,425 2,792 

88



• Bidarki and Pool Schedules can now be uploaded and maintained by Parks and Rec Staff 
• Section highlighting the documents and public meetings related to the 2014 budget process 
• Section highlighting Cordova’s recycling program 
• Added recognized holidays and Workman’s Comp forms to the employee resources page 

  
IT (Network and Systems) 
During the quarter, the City completed its migration of email from the local server to Microsoft’s Office 365 
cloud-based solution. This was the first step in the process of replacing the City’s aged server and soon-to-be 
obsolete XP systems.  
 

• Future projects include developing a solid IT policy for users and a server replacement that will 
facilitate remote access, better sharing capabilities to increase the efficiency of the City’s electronic 
processes, and front-load technologies that will be full transportable to the Cordova Center. 

• Future planning efforts include developing a Request for Information geared towards technology 
services, equipment, and support to the new Cordova Center facility.   

89



Cordova Historical Museum 

4th QUARTER 2013 
 

 Visitation:  1320 (See attached Museum Attendance) 

 Exhibits:  “The Old and the New” 

 Programs: CHS Annual Dinner – “Fishing the Flats;” “E.A. Hegg, 

Photographer;”  Annual Heritage Cookie Fest 

 School Class Visits:  “Tlingit Dance Paddles and Canoes;” “Contemporary 

Alaskan Art” 

 Projects: 
o Dismantled Darkened Waters exhibit.  Darkened Waters: Plans went awry with 100+ 

mile an hour winds!  ‘Darkened Waters was an exhibit created by the Pratt museum 

in homer after the 1989 Exxon Valdez Oil Spill. The exhibit travelled across the 

country for ten years before it was revamped for the 1999 anniversary and sent 

back out again.  Its final venue was in Kansas, where it went into storage.  The Pratt 

Museum no longer wanted the exhibit and offered it to a number of museums. No 

entity wanted it (I believe the sale price was $75,000).  Finally the Cordova Historical 

Society agreed to take it, move it back here with the caveat that we could 

cannibalize it.   

 

The exhibit, when set up, utilizes 15,000 square feet of floor space.  (The entire 

Cordova Center is 34,000 sq. ft.)  The Society never intended to display it in total, 

but we were after the research that accompanied it and a number of the artifacts 

and accessories. Most of these are not even in those cases out back. We already 

have them within the collections storage area of the museum.   

 

The exhibit is also outdated and a tad slanted in its interpretation.  The Society used 

a number of the images and some of the content to create our 20th anniversary 

panel exhibit that stores nicely in one fine crate!  We have however decided to 

make an effort to repurpose and recycle the ugly black crates and the plywood 

panels they contain.  There are 26 crates and together they weigh 11,000 pounds.   

 

o Completed and submitted two grants. One to Museums Alaska for an 

exhibit/conservation project; and one to the Office of History and Archaeology for 

landscaping and historic interpretation in the area adjacent to the Pioneer Igloo 

and the Cordova Center. Awarded grant for Collections Management from 

Museums Alaska for refurbishing the old mining case creating drawers for artifact 

display and improving archival conditions. 

 

 

o The Cordova Historical Society Annual Dinner held on Saturday 19th.  105+ dinners 

were served. $5509 was raised to be used as a match for museum grant 

applications.  Copper Spike Business Award went to Jim Holley/AML for their 

assistance in relocating the museum’s offsite storage collection.  Copper Spike 

Volunteer of the Year Award went to Virginia Lacy. Staff spent time cleaning the 

Pioneer, sending thank you’s and submitting an article to the Cordova Times.  

90



Cordova Historical Museum 

 

o Completed Cordova Historical Society 2014 election ballots; now have 264 CHS 

members. The new board members will be seated in January. 

 

o Received Rasmuson Art Acquisition Initiative photograph from Milo Burcham.  

Completed paperwork to Museums Alaska and Rasmuson foundation. Wrote 

article for Cordova Times. 

 

o Completed the technology upgrade!  All new laptops up and running; new quasi-

server up and running. All printers running! Wireless system in place. Past Perfect 

Software up and running.  Funding was provided through the Alaska State Museum 

Grant-in-Aid program.  

 

o Boy Scout troop visited the museum to learn about ‘collections.’  We toured the 

museum and then played the museum treasure hunt game. Provided historic 

photos of Filipino events in Cordova for the fund-raiser. Worked on final 2013 

newsletter for Cordova Historical Society and Museum.  Intern Lauren Bearman was 

onsite and completed a large portion of the digitization of photo collection. 
Supplied Harbor with historic photos of Cordova boat harbor. 
 

o This quarter’s cultural curriculum classes focused on the Tlingit influences and 

heritage in our region. Students learned how Tlingit Natives created dugout 

canoes, dance paddles and button robes. Students made their own dance 

paddles and were challenged to find the five dance paddles created by 

Cordovan Mike Webber in their school. School class visits. Survived painting project 

with 100 kids from kindergarten to 5th grade! 

 

o Completed welcome banners for the upcoming Sobriety Celebration. Completed 

Ski Hill MOU and prepared for signature; worked with Finance Director to complete 

ski hill electric billing paperwork for leases. Worked with Refuse Department on 

Recycling PR and responses to comments on Facebook postings. Provided preview 

for department heads of ‘Today in America’ segment; provided presentation for 

department heads on Unalaska Municipal Facilities; assisted with Employee 

Holiday Event planning and notice for paychecks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



Cordova Historical Museum 

 

 

 

  Over 100 Cordova Historical Society 

members enjoyed seafood lasagna, salad, garlic bread and decadent brownies 

for the annual dinner. Held in the Pioneer Igloo, this year’s theme was “Fishing 

the Flats Now and Then.” 

 
 

 

  

 

92



Museum Attendance 
  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr Total 
1981          2483  

1982          2928 

1983          2618 

1984          1973 

1985          1414 

1986   221    682   1004   209  2116 

1987          1677 

1988   262    645   1326   345  2578 

1989   238   629   1270   374  2511 

1990   411   765   1534   415  3125 

1991  445       936   1355   308   3044 

1992  443    509   1857   705   3514 

1993  281  1078   1481   406   3246 

1994  608  1255   1726   452   4041 

1995  458   882   2067   548    3955 

1996  905  1897   2358   741   5901 

1997  634   1216  2896   936   5682 

1998  1047  4330  6502   906  12,785* 

1999  1288  3948  4890   853  10,979* 

2000  1076  1562  2931   740   6,309 

2001  1185  2484  3777   934   8380 

2002  1242  2343  4176  1155   8916 

2003  1590   2461  4111   963   9125 

2004  1839  3063  4907   1206   11,015 

2005  1834  3071  5216  1508   11,629 

2006  2355  2953  6,189  1771  13,268 

2007  1919  3613  4166  1442  11,140 

2008  2092  3210  4919  1476  11,697 

2009  1543  2436  3618  1138    8735 

2010  1121  1866  2735  1051    6773 

2011  1569  2275  3314    862    8020 

2012  1268  2128  2329  1068    6783 

2013    952  1868  2868  1320    7008 

2014  
 
 
 
*Norwegian Cruise Lines 
School classes began coming to the museum in the first quarter of 1996 — Beginning 
in the fall of 1997 we had a full slate of school classes K-6 visiting once a month Sept-
May — Keeps the year-round attendance up. 

93



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
Through: Randy E. Robertson, City Manager 
 
From:   Jon K. Stavig, Finance Director 
 
Date:  January 28, 2014 
 
RE:  Quarterly Finance Department Report 
 
 
Following are the traditional two page financial fund summary reports for year-to-date ended December 31, 
2013. 
 
The first page is a fund summary for the general fund only.  The second page includes all funds including 

enterprise funds.  I have excluded Fund 426, the Cordova Center Fund, and instead included a separate report to 

show all expenditures through December 31, 2013 for Fund 426 as it distorts the two page summary report. 

 

4th Quarter Sales Tax is slowly coming in and I should have an accurate picture receipted funds by the Council 

Meeting on the 5th. 

 

Budget Booklet is in the works and should be completed shortly. 

 

The City’s account balances as of January 28, 2014 are as follows; 

 

  Combined Central Treasury Accounts $4,930,484.01 

   (FNBA & UBS balances) 

  Combined Permanent Fund Accounts $9,690,574.57 

   (UBS balances) 

 

All to report from the Finance Dept. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jon K Stavig 

 

94



CITY OF CORDOVA
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/28/2014     04:24PM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

TAXES 5,390,589.62 5,390,589.62 5,718,500.00 327,910.38 94.3
LICENSES & PERMITS 15,960.00 15,960.00 16,300.00 340.00 97.9
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL 2,792,988.12 2,792,988.12 3,066,537.64 273,549.52 91.1
LEASES & RENTS 183,008.01 183,008.01 171,020.00 (      11,988.01) 107.0
LAW ENFORCEMENT 342,841.31 342,841.31 333,900.00 (       8,941.31) 102.7
D. M. V. 88,703.96 88,703.96 92,500.00 3,796.04 95.9
PLANNING DEPARTMENT REVENUE 13,085.56 13,085.56 29,000.00 15,914.44 45.1
RECREATION DEPT REVENUE 80,802.00 80,802.00 77,000.00 (       3,802.00) 104.9
POOL REVENUE 25,265.50 25,265.50 34,200.00 8,934.50 73.9
SALE OF PROPERTY 1,409.00 1,409.00 6,500.00 5,091.00 21.7
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 492,043.80 492,043.80 492,043.75 (     .05) 100.0
OTHER REVENUE 52,164.06 52,164.06 225,000.00 172,835.94 23.2
STATE DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSME 960,099.00 960,099.00 976,276.00 16,177.00 98.3

10,438,959.94 10,438,959.94 11,238,777.39 799,817.45 92.9

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 14,862.26 14,862.26 19,788.16 4,925.90 75.1
CITY CLERK 251,040.69 251,040.69 246,211.61 (       4,829.08) 102.0
CITY MANAGER 325,752.31 325,752.31 399,368.41 73,616.10 81.6
FINANCE 393,562.11 393,562.11 423,517.81 29,955.70 92.9
PLANNING DEPARTMENT EXPENSE 211,750.24 211,750.24 210,763.46 (      986.78) 100.5
PLANNING COMMISSION 6,140.36 6,140.36 8,500.00 2,359.64 72.2
DEPTARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLE 72,215.98 72,215.98 76,825.96 4,609.98 94.0
LAW ENFORCEMENT 837,456.46 837,456.46 892,295.09 54,838.63 93.9
JAIL OPERATIONS 214,556.15 214,556.15 231,298.95 16,742.80 92.8
FIRE & EMS 303,208.28 303,208.28 320,000.18 16,791.90 94.8
DISASTER MANAGEMENT DEPT. 6,443.97 6,443.97 7,500.00 1,056.03 85.9
INFORMATION SERVICES 543,901.39 543,901.39 472,652.75 (      71,248.64) 115.1
FACILITY UTILITIES 189,371.24 189,371.24 156,300.00 (      33,071.24) 121.2
PW ADMINISTRATION 128,473.68 128,473.68 122,272.32 (       6,201.36) 105.1
FACILITY  MAINTENANCE 267,602.94 267,602.94 211,713.28 (      55,889.66) 126.4
STREET MAINTENANCE 550,689.80 550,689.80 619,784.04 69,094.24 88.9
SNOW REMOVAL 70,469.76 70,469.76 79,650.00 9,180.24 88.5
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 330,564.91 330,564.91 299,779.39 (      30,785.52) 110.3
PARKS MAINTENANCE 103,740.55 103,740.55 103,904.25 163.70 99.8
CEMETERY MAINTENANCE DEPT. 6,745.92 6,745.92 8,275.00 1,529.08 81.5
RECREATION - BIDARKI 382,280.49 382,280.49 406,073.52 23,793.03 94.1
POOL 312,394.07 312,394.07 284,467.98 (      27,926.09) 109.8
SKI HILL 66,471.54 66,471.54 58,400.00 (       8,071.54) 113.8
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 524,680.72 524,680.72 352,745.00 (       171,935.72) 148.7
LONG TERM DEBT SERVICE 1,628,261.16 1,628,261.16 1,699,924.00 71,662.84 95.8
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 978,592.07 978,592.07 978,592.07 .00 100.0
TRANSFERS TO OTHER ENTITIES 2,753,538.86 2,753,538.86 3,101,983.16 348,444.30 88.8

11,474,767.91 11,474,767.91 11,792,586.39 317,818.48 97.3

95



CITY OF CORDOVA
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/28/2014     04:25PM       PAGE: 2

REVENUE

101 GENERAL FUND 10,438,959.94 10,438,959.94 11,238,777.39 799,817.45 92.9
104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 1,176,531.59 1,176,531.59 1,210,007.93 33,476.34 97.2
203 FIRE DEPT. VEHICLE ACQUISITION 65,927.76 65,927.76 10,000.00 (      55,927.76) 659.3
205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 33,621.00 33,621.00 33,000.00 (      621.00) 101.9
401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 765,664.02 765,664.02 854,970.00 89,305.98 89.6
410 CHIP SEAL C.I.P. 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 100.0
435 HOSPITAL REPAIR PROJECT 848,515.50 848,515.50 1,028,155.00 179,639.50 82.5
502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 1,202,292.24 1,202,292.24 1,037,570.41 (       164,721.83) 115.9
503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 703,938.37 703,938.37 731,830.00 27,891.63 96.2
504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 770,831.60 770,831.60 735,270.00 (      35,561.60) 104.8
505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 865,509.81 865,509.81 942,625.00 77,115.19 91.8
506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 39,613.02 39,613.02 61,167.25 21,554.23 64.8
602 HARBOR & PORT PROJECTS 1,044,025.64 1,044,025.64 103,235.00 (       940,790.64) 1011.3
603 SEWER PROJECTS 104,857.00 104,857.00 709,857.00 605,000.00 14.8
604 WATER PROJECTS 12,935.20 12,935.20 .00 (      12,935.20) .0
605 SOLID WASTE PROJECTS 284,000.00 284,000.00 1,506,000.00 1,222,000.00 18.9
654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT 8,624.73 8,624.73 3,605,000.00 3,596,375.27 .2
702 HARBOR FUND DEP'N RESERVE 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0
703 SEWER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100.0
704 WATER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100.0
705 REFUSE FUND DEP'N RESERVE FUN 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0
805 LANDFILL FUND 51,166.72 51,166.72 25,000.00 (      26,166.72) 204.7
911 E-911 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 1,484.78 1,484.78 .00 (       1,484.78) .0

18,818,498.92 18,818,498.92 24,232,464.98 5,413,966.06 77.7

EXPENDITURES

101 GENERAL FUND 11,474,767.91 11,474,767.91 11,792,586.39 317,818.48 97.3
104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 466,787.93 466,787.93 466,787.93 .00 100.0
203 FIRE DEPT. VEHICLE ACQUISITION 6,794.75 6,794.75 .00 (       6,794.75) .0
205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 1,926.89 1,926.89 .00 (       1,926.89) .0
401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 492,078.96 492,078.96 994,735.50 502,656.54 49.5
410 CHIP SEAL C.I.P. 40,286.05 40,286.05 50,000.00 9,713.95 80.6
435 HOSPITAL REPAIR PROJECT 531,713.36 531,713.36 1,028,155.00 496,441.64 51.7
444 SHIPYARD FILL PROJECT 12,650.00 12,650.00 .00 (      12,650.00) .0
502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 1,039,299.66 1,039,299.66 1,037,570.41 (       1,729.25) 100.2
503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 769,928.39 769,928.39 731,830.00 (      38,098.39) 105.2
504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 686,926.35 686,926.35 735,270.00 48,343.65 93.4
505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 965,172.58 965,172.58 942,625.00 (      22,547.58) 102.4
506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 35,259.60 35,259.60 57,255.25 21,995.65 61.6
602 HARBOR & PORT PROJECTS 362,385.00 362,385.00 103,235.00 (       259,150.00) 351.0
603 SEWER PROJECTS 7,145.00 7,145.00 709,857.00 702,712.00 1.0
605 SOLID WASTE PROJECTS 285,579.02 285,579.02 1,506,000.00 1,220,420.98 19.0
654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT 427,758.05 427,758.05 3,605,000.00 3,177,241.95 11.9
702 HARBOR FUND DEP'N RESERVE 103,235.00 103,235.00 103,235.00 .00 100.0
703 SEWER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 104,857.00 104,857.00 104,857.00 .00 100.0
705 REFUSE FUND DEP'N RESERVE FUN 284,000.00 284,000.00 284,000.00 .00 100.0

18,098,551.50 18,098,551.50 24,252,999.48 6,154,447.98 74.6

96



CITY OF CORDOVA
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

CORDOVA CENTER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  27/28/2014     04:27PM       PAGE: 1

PHSE I - FROM CITY MONEY

426-401-52180 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 596,043.68 596,043.68 38,600.00 (       557,443.68) 1544.2
426-401-52185 CORDOVA CENTER REA 175,653.89 175,653.89 .00 (       175,653.89) .0
426-401-70100 INTEREST EXPENSE 8,543.50 8,543.50 .00 (       8,543.50) .0
426-401-70110 ADMINISTRATION 3,465.06 3,465.06 .00 (       3,465.06) .0
426-401-70130 CONSTRUCTION 900,777.12 900,777.12 .00 (       900,777.12) .0
426-401-70140 CONSTRUCTION MANAGMENT 17,692.70 17,692.70 .00 (      17,692.70) .0
426-401-70160 ART 5,220.00 5,220.00 .00 (       5,220.00) .0

TOTAL PHSE I - FROM CITY MONEY 1,707,395.95 1,707,395.95 38,600.00 (     1,668,795.95) 4423.3

PHSE II - FROM CITY MONEY

426-402-70110 ADMINISTRATION 1,943.07 1,943.07 .00 (       1,943.07) .0
426-402-70140 CONSTRUCTION MANAGMENT 27,700.00 27,700.00 .00 (      27,700.00) .0

TOTAL PHSE II - FROM CITY MONEY 29,643.07 29,643.07 .00 (      29,643.07) .0

PHSE II - DCCED 14-DC-043

426-472-70160 ART 5,220.00 5,220.00 .00 (       5,220.00) .0

TOTAL PHSE II - DCCED 14-DC-043 5,220.00 5,220.00 .00 (       5,220.00) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,742,259.02 1,742,259.02 38,600.00 (     1,703,659.02) 4513.6

97



Planning Department  
 
 

Memorandum 
To:   City Council, Randy Robertson, City Manager 
From:           Samantha Greenwood, City Planner  
Date:  January 22, 2014 
RE:  Quarterly Report, 4th Quarter 2013 
 
 
The following is a summary of the activities the Planning Department has been involved 
in during the 4ht quarter period. 
 

• Clarified and directed access to Block 3, USS 2764.  (Fleming Spit) Access has to 
be granted through public ATS lands the city has the ability to direct and 
determine where and how developed the access is. The city may change the 
access point at any time.  Staff believes that the road that is currently used as an 
access is the best option at this time. Letter has been sent to land owners. 

• P&Z developed and sent CIP priorities to City Council 
• Working with Copper River Watershed invasive wed agreement 
• Worked with Copper River Watershed on proposed bios wale on Center Drive –

after research and discussion location eliminated 
• Worked wit nPW on personal property on ROWs specifically in Industrial area 

clean up in areas has occurred and snow dumps are being used by streets 
• Coordinating and working on city clean up days 
• Comp Plan training arranged and occurred planning for comp plan update 
• Worked with Su and ADOT on Whitshed road ROW relating to plats 
• Worked with NVE on sidewalk grant application 
• Attended Forest service plan revision meeting 
• Have completed lease and performance deed of trust spreadsheet and calendar 

notification. Provided finance with all original leases for billing purposes  
• Worked with Streets and created GIS layer for roads identifying road type and 

length created estimated cost of paving and priority list for roads and parking 
areas 

• Worked with PW and police to locate and  identify cars being stored in ROW 
police tagged to be moved 

• Ocean Beauty purchase of Lot 1 Block 1 is waiting on title report and will close 
by end of January 

• Provided resolution for Sheridan Alpine reimbursement of insurance money 
• Worked with P&Z on chapter 3 P&Z duties edits 
• 5 building permits issued total value $612,000 

 
  

98



99



100



101



102



103



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK 

DATE:  January 28, 2014 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 02-14-10 

The attached resolution was requested to be placed before Council by Mayor Kacsh. He will introduce 
it and will ask for Council to suggest edits that they would like to see made to this resolution or else he 
would like to see passage as is written. The entire Board of Fish proposal book can be found 
here: http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2013-2014/2013-
2014_proposal_book.pdf 

Recommended Motion:  Move to approve Resolution 02-14-10. 
Staff Recommendation:  Majority voice vote. 

104

http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2013-2014/2013-2014_proposal_book.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2013-2014/2013-2014_proposal_book.pdf


CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 02-14-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 
ALASKA, SUPPORTING NVE’S PROPOSAL #333 TO THE BOARD OF FISH 

TO BE HEARD AT THE STATEWIDE KING AND TANNER CRAB BOARD OF 
FISH MEETING IN ANCHORAGE MARCH 17-21, 2014 REGARDING A 

COMMERCIAL TANNER CRAB FISHERY IN PWS 

WHEREAS, crab stocks in Prince William Sound are on the rebound; and 

WHEREAS, commercial crab fishing used to be an integral part of Cordova’s 
economy; and 

WHEREAS, twenty-seven years have elapsed since Prince William Sound had a 
commercial crab fishery; and 

WHEREAS, the Native Village of Eyak has proposed, in its proposal #333, that a 
commercial Tanner Crab fishery be held in PWS with a 53’ boat length limit and a 
maximum of 20 pots for a season that would last from March 1 to April 30; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cordova, its businesses and citizens would benefit 
greatly from the economic activity surrounding a commercial crab fishery. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska does hereby support NVE’s proposal #333 being heard before the Board 
of Fish at its statewide King and Tanner Crab meetings from March 17-21, 2014. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2014. 

______________________________ 
James Kacsh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

105



Memorandum 
To: City Council 
From: City Planner 

Date: January 21, 2014 

Re:   Brian Wildrick DBA Harborside Pizza Extension of the Performance Deed of Trust 

PART I.   GENERAL INFORMATION 

File No.: 02-473-144 
Requested: Extension of the Performance Deed of Trust 
Applicant: Brian Wildrick 

PO Box 1606 
Cordova, AK  99574 

Zoning: Water Front Commercial  

PART II.   HISTORY 

7/27/2007  Brian Wildrick’s proposal for lease with option to purchase was chosen from two 
applications. It was approved and recommended to Council by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

8/23/2007  Council passed Resolution 08-07-32 approving a lease with option to purchase. 
8/29/2007  Original lease with option to purchase was signed. 
12/05/2007  Brian Wildrick sent a letter requesting to exercise his option to purchase the 

property that he was currently leasing. 
1/9/2008  Wildrick’s request to purchase was heard at city council. A motion was made for 

the City Manager to negotiate a sale of Lot 8, Block 2 to Wildrick. A motion to 
amend the motion to include “and to get a letter of pre-approval from a 
conventional lending institution prior to sale” was brought forth and passed 7-0.  

2/20/2008  Jim Goossens (City Planner at the time) and Brian Wildrick were at the city 
council meeting on 2/20/08. Jim Goossens stated that Wildrick was no longer 
trying to buy the property; he could not get pre-approved financing as required by 
the City Council at the 1/9/2008 meeting. He would like to request an amendment 
to his lease so that he could put a mobile pizza kitchen up instead of a building. 
He asked that the lease with option to purchase be for 5 years, this would allow 
him to get through the start up phase to improve his chances for financing.    

3/17/2008  The second lease with option to purchase was signed with an amendment for a 
mobile kitchen. 

8/27/2009  The amended lease was renewed which was now set to expire on 8/29/2011. 
Another renewal option for 2 years on 8/30/2011 was written in to the lease. 

12/15/2010  Regular Council Meeting - Brian Wildrick wrote a letter requesting to exercise his 
option to purchase the property he is leasing. He also asked that his rent payments 
be applied toward a down payment. Below are the approved minutes from the 
December 15, 2010 City Council meeting.  

106



5/4/2011 Regular City Council Meeting - Mark Lynch (City Manager at the time) addressed 
his concerns with refunding the lease amount and then his solution if Council chose 
to move that way (memo from Mark Lynch attached). The approved minutes from 
the May 4th meeting are below.

107



5/20/2011  Regular City Council meeting- the amendment to provide Mr. Wildrick a $20,000 
credit for his lease payments as direct by city council at their May 4, 2011 meeting 
was passed. The ordinance to sell the property was passed at this meeting. The 
approved minutes are below. 

6/1/2011 Public Hearing and Regular City Council meeting - the ordinance was voted on 
and passed at the regular meeting and there were no comments at the public 
hearing. 

108



01/21/14 A letter was received from Mr. Wildrick asking to activate the extension of his 
performance deed of trust. The performance deed of trust, the purchase agreement 
and attachments are included. I highlighted the sections referring to timeframes of 
performance deed of trust and the criteria to extend the performance deed of trust.  

III. ACTION

Staff is asking for guidance on how to proceed with the request to extend the performance deed of 
trust.   

109



110



April 28, 2011 
Memo to City Council 
Re:  Harborside Pizza 

I received the attached letter from Brian Wildrick on April 27, 2011. In this letter Mr. Wildrick asks for three 
specific alternative solutions. He asks for it to be applied to closing costs, for the City to defer tax payments, or 
to reduce the purchase price of the property. He also suggests he would be open to Council applying “this 
amount in some form.” 

His option of applying to closing costs would be approximately $2000. 

His option concerning property tax deferment or exemption does not meet the requirements set forth in sections 
(B)(1) or (B)(2) of City Code 5.36.037 “Economic development property exemptions” which reads: 

A. The assessed value of property used for economic development, as defined in this section, may be exempt 

from city property taxes, under the conditions listed in this section.  

B. "Property used for economic development," as used in this section, means that part of real or personal 

property, as determined by the city assessor, that:  

1. Has not previously been taxed as real or personal property by the city;

2. Is used in a trade or business that is not already in existence within the city and such use will:

a. Create employment in the city; and

b. Generate sales outside of the city of goods or services produced in the city; or

c. Materially reduce the importation of goods or services from outside the city.

3. Has not been used in the same trade or business in another municipality in at least six months before

the application for deferral or exemption is filed; this paragraph does not apply if the property was used in the 

same trade or business in an area that has been annexed to the municipality within six months before the 

application for deferral or exemption is filed and this paragraph does not apply to inventories. 

His option to reduce the sale price is not allowable under City Code section 5.22.050(A) “Disposal for fair 
market value” which reads: 

Except as this chapter provides otherwise, all disposals of interests in city real property shall be for fair market 

value. The city may accept in exchange for an interest in city real property any consideration of sufficient value 

not prohibited by law.  

After review of Mr. Wildrick’s letter the only remaining option that I find viable is the direct refund of a portion 
of his lease payments, which could be accomplished by passage of a Resolution at a future meeting.  

Thank you 

Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CITY OF CORDOVA 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 
Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

111

mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


CORDOVA RECORDING DISTRICT 
\>.i;I ]fl,.52..¥( 

Recording requested by and 
after recording, return to: 

Thomas F. Klinkner, Esq. 
BIRCH HORTON BITTNER & CHEROT 
1127 W. 7th Avenue 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

A 
L 
A 
s 
K 
A 

2011-000272-0 
Recording Dist: 306 - Cordova 
8/4/2011 8:23 AM Pages: 1 of 9 

II \I II I Ill Ill llllll llll llll I llllll llllll lllll\111111111111111111111111111111111111 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 

This PEFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST (this "Deed of Trust") is made this J.1td 
day of August, 2011 (the "Effective Date"), by BRIAN R. WILDRICK (the "Truster''), 
whose address is 645 G Street, Suite 732, Anchorage, Alaska 99501, to PACIFIC 
NORTHWEST TITLE OF ALASKA (the "Trustee"), whose address is 3201 C Street, 
Suite 110, Anchorage, Alaska 99503, for the benefit of the CITY OF CORDOVA (the 
"Beneficiary"), whose address is P.O. Box 1210, Cordova, Alaska 99574. 

1. GRANT. In consideration for the acceptance by Trustee of the trust 
hereunder, and of other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, and in order to secure the obligations of Trustor 
described herein, Truster hereby grants, bargains, sell and conveys to Trustee, in trust, 
with the power of sale, all of Trustor's estate, right, title, and interest in and to the 
following property: 

Lot Eight (8), Block Two (2), SOUTH FILL DEVELOPMENT PARK, 
according to Plat No. 86-2 filed in the Cordova Recording District, Third 
Judicial District, State of Alaska. 

Together with all improvements now or hereafter erected on the property, and all 
easements, rights, appurtenances and rents, all of which shall be deemed to be and 
remain a part of the property covered by this Deed of Trust (collectively, the "Property"). 

2. COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF 
CONSTRUCTION; OPERATIONAL OBLIGATIONS. On or before the date three (3) 
years after the Effective Date, Trustor shall substantially complete construction of the 
building on the Property (the "Building"). Upon written request of Truster received by 
Beneficiary not less than six (6) months before the expiration of the three (3) year period 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401777\ 168\001994 76.DOCX 

Page 1 of9 

112

planner
Highlight

planner
Highlight

planner
Highlight



to attain substantial completion, Beneficiary may extend the period to attain substantial 
completion by up to an additional two (2) years if it finds that Truster h~s made 
satisfactory progress toward substantial completion. For purposes of this Section 2 and 
Section 7 .2 hereof, the term "substantially complete" shall mean the stage of progress 
of construction when the Building is sufficiently complete so that the Truster can use the 
Building for its intended purposes. 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Truster shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local laws affecting the Property, neither commit nor permit any illegal act thereon 
or waste thereof, and shall keep all improvements on the Property in good working 
condition and repair. 

4. WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF TRUSTOR. Truster warrants, 
covenants and agrees as follows: 

4.1 Warranties 

4.1.1 Truster has full power and authority to grant the Property to 
Trustee. 

4.1.2 Truster has undertaken his obligation under this Deed of Trust 
primarily for commercial, industrial or business purposes, and not primarily for personal, 
family or household purposes. 

4.2 Preservation of Lien. Truster will preserve and protect the priority of this 
Deed of Trust as a first lien on the Property unless the Beneficiary subordinates its 
interest in writing. 

4.3 Construction. Truster shall commence and complete construction of the 
Building, and will otherwise fulfill all of their covenants and obligations to Beneficiary 
relating in any way to such construction, in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Deed of Trust. 

4.4 Right of Inspection. Truster shall permit Beneficiary, or its agents, at all 
reasonable times, to enter upon and inspect the Property for purposes of ensuring 
Truster's compliance with this Deed of Trust. 

4.5 Further Assurances. Truster will, at his own expense, from time to time 
execute and deliver any and all instruments of further assurance and do any and all 
such acts, or cause the same to be done, as Trustee or Beneficiary deem necessary or 
advisable to grant to Trustee the Property or to carry out more effectively the purposes 
of this Deed of Trust. 

4.6 Legal Actions. Truster will appear in and defend any action or 
proceeding before any court or administrative body purporting to affect the security 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017771188100199478.DOCX 

Page 2 of 9 

113

planner
Highlight



hereof or the rights or powers of Beneficiary or Trustee; and will pay all costs and 
expenses, including cost of evidence of title, title insurance premiums, and any fees of 
attorneys, appraisers, environmental inspectors, and others, incurred by Beneficiary or 
Trustee, in a reasonable sum, in any such action or proceeding in which Beneficiary or 
Trustee may appear and in any suit brought by Beneficiary or Trustee to foreclose this 
Deed of Trust and in any nonjudicial foreclosure of this Deed of Trust. 

4.7 Taxes. Assessments and Other Liens. Truster will pay with interest, not 
later than the due date, all taxes, assessments, encumbrances, charges and liens on 
the Property or any part thereof which at any time appear to be or are alleged to be prior 
and superior hereto, including without limitation any tax on or measured by rents of the 
Property, this Deed of Trust, or any obligation or part thereof secured hereby. 

4.8 Expenses. Truster will pay all costs, fees, and expenses reasonably 
incurred by Beneficiary or Trustee in connection with this Deed of Trust. 

4.9 Sale, Transfer or Encumbrance of Propertv. Subject to Section 7 
hereof, Truster shall not, without the prior written consent of Beneficiary, which consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, sell, transfer or otherwise convey the Property or 
any interest therein, further encumber the Property or any interest therein, cause or 
permit any change in the entity, ownership, or control of Truster or agree to do any of 
the foregoing. Consent to any one such occurrence shall not be deemed a waiver of 
the right to require consent to any future occurrences. 

5. DEFAULT. In the event Truster fails to commence or substantially 
complete the construction of the Building within the times set forth in Section 2 hereof, 
or if Truster violates any other term of this Deed of Trust, Beneficiary may declare 
Truster to be in default of this Deed of Trust without any notice or demand of any kind, 
both of which are hereby expressed waived. 

6. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT. 

6.1 Foreclosure of Deed of Trust. Upon the occurrence of any event of 
default under this Deed of Trust, all sums secured hereby shall become immediately 
due and payable, without notice or demand at the option of Beneficiary, and Beneficiary 
may cause the Property to be sold by foreclosing this Deed of Trust in any manner then 
permitted by law. Trustee may act as agent for Beneficiary in conducting any such sale. 

6.2 Liquidated Damages. Truster agrees that Beneficiary has sold the 
Property to Truster for SIXTY THOUSAND ($60,000.00), and that part of the 
consideration for the sale was Truster's completion of the Building, which benefits the 
public interest, including without limitation the economy of the City of Cordova. The 
parties understand the impracticality and difficulty of fixing Beneficiary's actual damages 
in the event of Truster's default, and the parties therefore agree that TWENTY 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017771188100199478.DOCX 

Page 3 of9 

114



THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) represents a reasonable estimate of the actual 
damages that Beneficiary would incur. This amount shall be the amount stated in any 
notice of default and sale that Trustee shall record as the amount due and owing to 
Beneficiary for Truster's breach of his obligation under this Deed of Trust. 

6.3 No Waiver. By accepting payment of any sum secured hereby after its 
due date, Beneficiary does not waive its right either to require prompt payment when 
due of all other sums so secured or to declare an event of default for failure to do so. 

6.4 Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies accorded by this Deed 
of Trust shall be in addition to, and not in substitution of, any rights or remedies 
available under now existing or hereafter arising under applicable law, in equity, or 
otherwise. All rights and remedies provided for in this Deed of Trust or afforded by law 
or equity are distinct and cumulative and may be exercised concurrently, independently 
or successively. The failure on the part of Beneficiary to promptly enforce any right 
hereunder shall not operate as a waiver of such right and the waiver of any default shall 
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent or other default. 

7. TRUSTEE. 

7.1 General Powers and Duties of Trustee. At any time or from time to 
time, upon an event of default, without liability therefor and without notice and without 
affecting the liability of any person for the payment of the indebtedness secured hereby, 
and upon written request of Beneficiary, payment of its own fees and presentation of 
this Deed of Trust, Trustee may: 

7.1.1 Join in any subordination or other agreement affecting this Deed of 
Trust or the lien or charge thereof; or 

7.1.2 Reconvey, without warranty, all or any part of the Property. 

7.2 Reconvevance. Upon the Truster's satisfactory performance of the 
obligations set forth in Section 2 hereof, Beneficiary shall request Trustee to reconvey 
the Property. Trustee shall reconvey the Property without warranty to the person or 
persons legally entitled to it. Such person or persons shall pay any recordation costs. 
Beneficiary may charge such person or persons a fee for reconveying the Property. 

7.3 Powers and Duties on Default. Upon written request therefor by 
Beneficiary specifying the nature of the default, or the nature of the several defaults, 
and the amount or amounts due and owing, Trustee shall execute a written notice of 
default and of its election to cause the Property to be sold to satisfy the obligation 
secured hereby, and shall cause such notice to be recorded and otherwise given 
according to law. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\40177711881001994 78 .DOCX 

Page 4 of 9 

115



Notice of the sale shall have been given as then required by law and not less 
than the time then required by law having elapsed after recordation of such notice of 
default, Trustee, without demand on Trustor, shall sell the Property at the time and 
place of sale specified in the notice, as provided by statute, either as a whole or in 
separate parcels and in such order as it may determine, at public auction to the highest 
and best bidder for cash in lawful money of the United States, payable at the time of 
sale. Trustor agrees that such a sale (or a sale pursuant to judicial foreclosure) of all 
the Property as real estate constitutes a commercially reasonable disposition thereof. 
Trustee may postpone the sale of all or any portion of the Property, and from time to 
time thereafter may postpone such sale, as provided by statute. Trustee shall deliver to 
the purchaser its deed and bill of sale conveying the Property so sold, but without any 
covenant or warranty, express or implied. The recital in such deed and bill of sale of 
any matters or facts shall be conclusive proof of the truthfulness thereof. Any person 
other than Trustee, including Trustor or Beneficiary, may purchase at such sale. 

After deducting all of the costs, fees and expenses of Trustee and of this trust, 
including the cost of title search and title insurance and reasonable attorneys' fees in 
connection with the sale, Trustee shall apply the proceeds of sale to payment of all 
sums secured hereby in such order as Beneficiary may determine; and the remainder, if 
any, to the party or parties entitled thereto. 

7.4 Acceptance of Trust. Trustee accepts this trust when this Deed of Trust, 
duly executed and acknowledged, is made a public record as provided by law. 

7.5 Reliance. Trustee, upon presentation to it of an affidavit signed by 
Beneficiary setting forth facts showing a default by Trustor under this Deed of Trust, is 
authorized to accept as true and conclusive all facts and statements therein, and to act 
thereon hereunder. 

7.6 Replacement of Trustee. Beneficiary may, from time to time, as 
provided by statute, appoint another trustee in place and stead of Trustee herein 
named, and thereupon Trustee herein named shall be discharged and the trustee so 
appointed shall be substituted as Trustee hereunder, with the same effect as if originally 
named Trustee herein. 

8. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. 

8.1 Covenants and Agreements. Trustor hereby covenants and agrees as 
follows: 

8.1.1 Trustor will not cause or permit any Hazardous Substance to be 
brought upon, kept, used or generated by Trustor, his agents, employees, contractors or 
invitees, in the operation of the Property unless the use or generation of the Hazardous 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017771188\001994 78.DOCX 

Page 5 of9 

116



Substance is necessary for the prudent operation of the Property in the ordinary course 
of Truster's business and operations and in compliance with all Environmental Laws. 

8.1.2 Truster will at all times and in all respects use their best efforts to 
comply with all Environmental Laws. Truster's duty of compliance with Environmental 
Laws includes without limitation the duty to undertake the following specific actions: 
(1) Truster will, at his own expense, procure, maintain in effect and comply with all 
conditions of any and all permits, licenses and other governmental and regulatory 
approvals required by all Environmental Laws, including without limitation permits 
required for discharge of (appropriately treated) Hazardous Substances into the ambient 
air or any sanitary sewers serving the Property; and (2) except as discharged into the 
ambient air or a sanitary sewer in strict compliance with all applicable Environmental 
Laws, any and all Hazardous Substances to be treated and/or disposed by Truster will 
be removed and transported solely by duly licensed transporters to a duly licensed 
treatment and/or disposal Building for final treatment and/or disposal (except when 
applicable Environmental Laws permit on-site treatment or disposal in a sanitary 
landfill). 

8.1.3 At any time, and from time to time, if Trustee so requests, Truster 
shall have any environmental review, audit, assessment and/or report relating to the 
Property theretofore provided by Truster to Trustee updated, at the sole cost and 
expense of Truster, by an independent environmental consultant selected by Truster 
and not objected to by the Trustee in writing within 30 days after receipt of notification of 
Truster's selection. 

8.1.4 Truster will, at his sole expense, take all actions as may be 
necessary or advisable for the clean-up of Hazardous Substances on or with respect to 
the Property, including without limitation all removal, containment and remedial actions 
in accordance with all applicable laws, and shall further pay or cause to be paid all 
clean-up, administrative and enforcement costs of governmental agencies with respect 
to Hazardous Substances on or with respect to the Property if obligated to do so by 
contract or by law. Truster will immediately notify the Trustee should Truster 
(1) become aware of any actual or potential liability with respect to Hazardous 
Substances stored, disposed or released in, on or about the Property, (2) receive any 
notice of, or become aware of, any actual or alleged violation with respect to the 
Property of any federal, state or local statute, ordinance rule, regulation or other law 
pertaining to Hazardous Substances, (3) receive any written request for information or 
for an inspection of the Property by any governmental authority with respect to any 
Hazardous Substances or Environmental Laws, or (4) become aware of any lien or 
action with respect to any of the foregoing. Trustee may require from Truster 
assurances that Truster is taking all actions as may be reasonably required for the 
clean-up of Hazardous Substances in or with respect to any of the Property; provided, 
that for all purposes under this Section, Truster shall, upon the Trustee's request 
therefor, provide the Trustee with, and the Trustee shall be fully protected in relying 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017771188\00199478.DOCX 

Page 6 of 9 

117



upon, without further investigation or further duty to determine whether any removal, 
containment and/or remedial actions are satisfactory, either (A) the written approval of 
such actions by any independent environmental consultant selected by Truster and not 
objected to in writing by Trustee or Beneficiary within 30 days after receipt of notification 
of Truster's selection; or (B) written notice from Truster that he is contesting in good 
faith any such requirement by appropriate legal proceedings. 

8.2 Definitions. As used in this Section 8: 

8.2.1 "Environmental Laws" means all laws and regulations, now or 
hereafter in effect, with respect to Hazardous Substances, including without limitation 
the Comprehensive Environmental response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 9601, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6901, et seq.), the Clean Water Act, as amended 
(33 U.S.C. Section 1321, et seq.), the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 
7401, et seq.), and the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. Section 
2601, et seq.), and any state or local similar laws and regulations and any so-called 
local, state or federal "superfund" or "superlien" law. 

8.2.2 "Hazardous Substance" means any substance or material now or 
hereafter defined or designated as hazardous or toxic waste, hazardous or toxic 
material, a hazardous, toxic or radioactive substance, or other similar term, by any 
Environmental Laws. 

9. CONDEMNATION. Truster shall promptly notify Beneficiary of any action 
or proceeding relating to any condemnation or other taking, whether direct or indirect, of 
the Property or any part thereof, and Truster shall appear in and prosecute any such 
action or proceeding unless otherwise directed by Beneficiary in writing. Upon the 
occurrence and continuance of a default under this Deed of Trust, Truster authorizes 
Beneficiary, at Beneficiary's option, as attorney-in-fact for Truster, to commence, appear 
in and prosecute, in Beneficiary's or Truster's name, any action or proceeding relating to 
any condemnation or other taking of the Property whether direct or indirect, and to settle 
or compromise any claim in connection with such condemnation or other taking. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS. 

10.1 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Deed of Trust. 

10.2 Binding Upon Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions of 
applicable law with respect to successor trustees, this Deed of Trust shall be binding on 
and inure to the benefit of the parties, their successors and assigns. 

10.3 Beneficiary's Right to Perform Obligations of Trustors. If Truster fails 
to perform the covenants and agreements contained or incorporated in this Deed of 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
Fo\401777\188\00199478.DOCX 

Page 7 of9 

118



Trust, or if any action or proceeding is commenced which affects the Building or title 
thereto or the interest of Beneficiary therein (including without limitation any bankruptcy, 
insolvency, arrangement, reorganization or other debtor relief proceeding or eminent 
domain proceeding), then Beneficiary, at Beneficiary's option may make such 
appearance, disburse such sums, and take such action as Beneficiary deems 
necessary, in its sole discretion, to protect Beneficiary's interest, including without 
limitation (i) disbursement of attorneys' fees and expenses; (ii) entry upon the Property 
to make repairs; and (iii) procurement of satisfactory insurance. Trustor shall reimburse 
Beneficiary for all reasonable costs incurred by Beneficiary in taking any said action, 
together with interest from the date of expenditure until repaid at two percent per annum 
over the rate of interest announced by the Trustee as its prime rate from time to time, 
but in any event, not greater than the maximum rate of interest permitted by Alaska law. 
Such sums shall become a part of the obligations of Trustor secured by this Deed of 
Trust and be payable by Trustor on demand. Trustor agrees that the amounts 
described in this section constitute necessary expenditures for the preservation of 
Beneficiary's security and, to the extent permitted by law such amounts shall have a lien 
priority date as of the date of recording of this Deed of Trust. 

Such action by Beneficiary shall not constitute a waiver of the default or any 
other right or remedy which Beneficiary may have on account of Trustors' default. 
Nothing in this Section 10.3 shall require Beneficiary to incur any expense or take any 
action. 

10.4 Notices. Notices under this Deed of Trust shall be in writing and shall be 
sufficiently given if addressed and mailed by first-class, certified or registered mail, 
postage prepaid, to a party at the address set forth above, or such other address as a 
party may indicate by written notice to the others. All notices shall be deemed served 
upon deposit of such notice in the United States Postal Service in the manner above 
provided. 

10.5 Captions. All captions used in this Deed of Trust are intended solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not limit, expand or otherwise affect any of the 
provisions of this Deed of Trust. 

10.6 Invalid Provisions to Affect No Others. If any of the provisions 
contained in this Deed of Trust shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, 
the validity of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not be affected thereby. 

10.7 Changes in Writing. This Deed of Trust and any of its terms may only be 
changed, waived, discharged or terminated by a writing signed by Beneficiary. 

10.8 Applicable Law. This Deed of Trust, and the terms and conditions herein 
shall be construed, applied and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Alaska. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401777\ 166\001994 76.DOCX 

Page 8 of9 

119



10.9 Parties Interested Herein. Nothing in this Deed of Trust, express or 
implied, is intended or shall be construed to give to any person, other than Trustors, 
Beneficiary and Trustee any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Deed of 
Trust. The covenants, stipulations and agreements in this Deed of Trust contained are 
and shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Trustors, Beneficiary and Trustee, and 
their successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Truster has executed this Agreement as of the 
date first above written. 

TRUSTOR: 

Brian R. Waldrick 

STATE OF ALASKA ) 
) ss: 

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this.9rYi. day of August, 2011, 
by BRIAN R. WALDRICK. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017771188\00199478.DOCX 

Notary Pile in and for Alaska 
My commission expires: // ·,;; 3 -1¥ 

Page 9 of 9 

120



.. < -: 
t \ "' ""2 ':.... -

.:J - -- --- ,_. 

1 
- -

LI 
I -

f: § - - j 
i I 

J l/i 
- -

~ 
I 
r 

tf9/\0 

,.?-.L" 

121



( 

~ -

r r 
1~ \\1\ \,,\ \ 

~ 

~ 

I 
I 

l 
I I n / 

-

,0, 
-

I 

I 

\- ~ 
~ 1 .... ~ ,.... 

I 
I 

I 

J_t: i 
I 

- ,.... 
I 

\ \ 
_,. p, 
/'. 

,Q 
-
~ 
~ 

I 

In \ i 

122



I 
l 

~ ~ I 
I 
I 

j 

--

t 

OQ 
0 0 
00 

ff' - • "i 
'- • .. t 

-

t 

\;.... 
I "' 

·' . 

J 

,_I --- -

123



--l l:---...J t. _:ii!' I 
4 

~1 ~~ 
t 

\ 
-~ 

u ..l \' 

t ~ 
. -

. ,. i. ~i f ~ " 
~ 

. 6 .£..0 ~ ~ ( t 

J 
1\ ·o 

'1 
~ 

L - ~ 

L 

~ 

124



' :'ii 

., , ~ ; fl 
d 1. 1 

~A l!r H 

125



126



127



128



129



9. Purchaser's Closing Deliveries. At or prior to the Closing, Purchaser 
shall deliver to Escrow Agent the following: 

(a) The balance of the Purchase Price, together with such other sums 
as Escrow Agent shall require to pay Purchaser's share of the Closing costs, prorations, 
reimbursements and adjustments as set forth in Section 10 and Section 12, in 
immediately available funds. 

(b) A Performance Deed of Trust from Purchaser, as trustor, to Title 
Company, as trustee, with Seller as beneficiary, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C, to secure the obligations of Purchaser to develop the Property. 

(c) Any other documents, instruments or agreements reasonably 
necessary to effectuate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

10. Prorations and Adjustments. The following shall be prorated and 
adjusted between Seller and Purchaser as of the day of the Closing, except as 
otherwise specified: 

(a) General real estate, personal property and ad valorem taxes and 
assessments, and any improvement or other bonds encumbering the Property, for the 
current tax year for the Property. Purchaser is not responsible for delinquent real estate 
taxes, personal property taxes, ad valorem taxes, or assessments arising prior to 
Closing. 

(b) Utility charges, if any. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that 
Seller shall be entitled to all refunds of utility deposits with respect to the Property and 
that such amounts are not to be assigned to Purchaser in connection with the sale of 
the Property. However, Purchaser will be responsible for any additional assessments 
effective prior to Closing, of which notice is received after Closing. 

For purposes of calculating prorations, Purchaser shall be deemed to be in title to the 
Property, and, therefore entitled to the income therefrom and responsible for the 
expenses thereof for the entire day upon which the Closing occurs. All such prorations 
shall be made on the basis of the actual number of days of the month which shall have 
elapsed as of the day of the Closing and based upon the actual number of days in the 
month and a three hundred sixty-five (365) day year. In no event will there be any 
proration of insurance premiums under Seller's existing policies of insurance relating to 
the Property, and Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that none of Seller's insurance 
policies (or any proceeds payable thereunder) will be assigned to Purchaser at the 
Closing, and Purchaser shall be solely obligated to obtain any and all insurance that 
they deem necessary or desirable. The provisions of this Section 1 O shall survive the 
Closing. 

11. Closing. The purchase and sale contemplated herein shall close on or 
before sixty (60) days after the Effective Date (the "Closing") or on such other specific 
date and time mutually agreed to by the parties. As used herein, the term "Closing" 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
F:\401777\188\00188133.DOC 

Page 5 of 12 

130

planner
Highlight

planner
Highlight

planner
Highlight



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



CITY OF CORDOVA 
ORDINANCE 1080 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE TO BRIAN R. WILDRICK OF LOT EIGHT (8), 

BLOCK TWO (2), SOUTHFILL DEVELOPMENT PARK 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CMC 5.22.060(A)(l), the City Council directed the City 
Manager to negotiate directly the disposal of Lot Eight (8), Block Two (2), Southfill 
Development Park (the "Property") with Brian R. Wildrick (the "Purchaser"); and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to sell the Property to the Purchaser for 
not less than its appraised fair market value, and the purchase price for the Property is not less 
than its appraised fair market value; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has required the Purchaser to enter into a Performance Deed of 
Trust securing Purchaser's obligation to substantially complete the construction of improvements 
to the Property within three years, provided that upon the Purchaser's request the City may allow 
up to an additional two years for substantial completion if it finds that the Purchaser has made 
satisfactory progress toward substantial completion; and 

WHEREAS, there have been presented to this meeting the forms of a Purchase and Sale 
Agreement, Warranty Deed and Performance Deed of Trust that are to be executed in connection 
with the disposal of the Property by the City, and it appears that such documents are in 
appropriate form and are appropriate instruments for the purposes intended. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, that: 

Section 1. The City Manager is authorized and directed to convey the Property to Brian 
R. Wildrick in accordance with the terms in the Purchase and Sale Agreement. The form and 
content of the Purchase and Sale Agreement, Warranty Deed and Performance Deed of Trust 
now before this meeting hereby are in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the 
City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver such 
documents on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before this meeting 
but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as he shall deem necessary, 
desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of 
any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of 
said documents now before this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said 
documents, the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and 
things and to execute all documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the 
provisions of the documents as executed. 

Section 2. The disposal of the Property authorized by this ordinance is subject to the 
requirements of City Charter Section 5-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with 
signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of this 
ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions are finally found to 

139

planner
Highlight

planner
Highlight

planner
Highlight



140



Memo 
To: City Council 

Date: January 9, 2014 
Re: NVE Performance Deed of Trust 

This agenda item and executive session are now scheduled for the February 5, 2014 
meeting. 

Attached is the Performance Deed of Trust for the purchase of Lot 11 Block 2 South Fill 
Development Park (See Location Map). The Performance Deed of Trust expired on 
10/28/2013, NVE has been provided time to prepare and present a proposal to council, 
which they will do at the January 15th Regular Meeting. There will be an executive 
session with Attorney Cortney Kitchen from Birch Horton Bittner and Cherot to discuss 
the legal and financial ramifications of City Council’s action(s) on the noncompliance of 
the Performance Deed of Trust.  

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



A 2010-00036)-0 
L 
A 
s 
K 
A 

Recording Dist: 306 - Cordova 
10/28/2010 10:49 AM Pages: 1 of 10 

II llll I II llllllllllllllllllllll Ill II I llll llllll llllll Ill lllll II lllllll lllllllll I /1111 

CORDOVA RECORDING DISTRICT 

AFTER RECORDING. RETURN TO: 
Thomas F. Klinkner 
Birch, Horton, Bittner and Cherot 
1127 W. 7th Avenue 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501-3399 

l S l'Ol~OFJ'll\(. PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 

This PEFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST (this "Deed of Trust") is made this io/t,.'/, 
day of october,201(the "Effective Date"), by NATIVE VILLAGE OF EYAK, a federally 
recognized Indian Tribe (the ''Truster"), whose address is P.O. Box 2285, Cordova, 
Alaska 9957 4, to First American Title Company (the ''Trustee"), whose address is 3035 
C Street, Anchorage, Alaska 99503, for the benefit of the City of Cordova (the 
"Beneficiary"), whose address is P.O. Box 1210, Cordova, Alaska 99574. 

1. GRANT. In consideration the acceptance by Trustee of the trust 
hereunder, and of other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, and in order to secure the obligations of Truster 
described herein, Truster hereby grants, bargains, sells and conveys to Trustee, in trust, 
with the power of sale, all of Truster's estate, right, title, and interest in and to the 
following property: 

Lot Eleven (11), Block One (1), SOUTH FILL DEVELOPMENT PARK, according 
to Plat No. 86-2 filed in the Cordova Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of 
Alaska. 

Together with ali improvements now or hereafter erected on the property, and all 
easements, rights, appurtenances and rents, all of which shall be deemed to be and 
remain apart of the property covered by this Deed of Trust (collectively, the "Property"). 

2. COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF 
CONSTRUCTION; OPERATIONAL OBLIGATIONS. On or before the date one (1) 
year after the Effective Date, Truster shall commence construction on the Property of a 
building conforming substantially to the building plans set forth on Exhibit A (the 
"Building"). Truster shall substantially complete the construction of the Building on the 
Property not later than the date three (3) years after the Effective Date. For purposes of 
this Section 2 and Section 7.2 hereof, the term "substantially complete" shall mean the 
stage of progress of construction when the Building, including without limitation its 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401777\179100105947 .DOC 

Page 1 of 9 

151

cityclerk
Highlight



structure, fai;:ade and windows, roof, heating, plumbing and lighting, are sufficiently 
complete so that the Trustor can occupy and use the Building for its intended purposes. 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Trustor shall com.ply with all federal, state. 
and local laws affecting the Property, neither commit nor permit any illegal act thereon 
or waste thereof, and shall keep all improvements on the Property in good working 
condition and repair. 

4. WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF TRUSTOR. Trustor warrants. 
covenants and agrees as follows: 

4.1 Warranties 

4.1.1 Trustor has full power and authority to grant the Property to Trustee. 

4.1.2 Trustor has undertaken its obligations under this Deed of Trust primarily 
for commercia!, industrial or business purposes, and not primarily for persona!, family or 
household purposes. 

4.2 Preservation of Lien. Trustor will preserve and protect the priority of this 
Deed of Trust as a first lien on the Property. 

4.3 Construction. Trustor shall commence and complete construction of the 
Building, and will otherwise fulfill all of Its covenants and obligations to Beneficiary 
relating in any way to such construction, in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Deed of Trust. 

4.4 Right of Inspection. Trustor shall permit Beneficiary or its agents, at all 
reasonable times, to enter upon and inspect the Property for purposes of ensuring 
Trustor's compliance with this Deed of Trust. 

4.5 Further Assurances. Trustor will, at its own expense, from time to time 
execuie and deiiver any and all instruments of further assurance and do any and all 
such acts, or cause the same to be done, as Trustee or Beneficiary deem necessary or 
advisable to grant to Trustee the Property or to carry out more effectively the purposes 
of this Deed of Trust. 

4.6 Legal Actions. Truster will appear in and defend any action or 
proceeding before any court or administrative body purporting to affect the security 
hereof or the rights or powers of Beneficiary or Trustee; and will pay all costs and 
expenses, including cost of evidence of title, title insurance premiums, and any fees of 
attorneys, appraisers, environmental Inspectors, and others, incurred by Beneficiary or 
Trustee, in a reasonable sum, in any such action or proceeding in which Beneficiary or 
Trustee may appear and in any suit brought by Beneficiary or Trustee to foreclose this 
Deed of Trust and in any nonjudicial foreclosure of this Deed of Trust. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401777\ 179\00105947.00C 

Page 2 of 9 

1111111111111111111111111111111111111 
2 of 10 I ! 

2010-009361,;01 

l .. l ~ J 152

cityclerk
Highlight



4. 7 Taxes, Assessments, and Other Liens. Truster will pay with interest, not 
later than the due date, all taxes, assessments, encumbrances, charges and liens on 
the Property or any part thereof which at any time appear to be or are alleged to be prior 
and superior hereto, including without limitation any tax on or measured by rents of the 
Property, this Deed of Trust, or any obligation or part thereof secured hereby. 

4.8 Expenses. Trustor will pay all costs, fees, and expenses reasonably 
incurred by Beneficiary or Trustee in connection with this Deed of Trust. 

4.9 Sale, Transfer. or Encumbrance of Property. Subject to Section 7 
hereof, Truster shall not, without the prior written consent ·of Beneficiary, which consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, sell, transfer or otherwise convey the Property or 
any interest therein, further encumber the Property or any interest therein, cause or 
permit any change in the entity, ownership, or control of Truster or agree to do any of 
the foregoing. Consent .to any one such occurrence shall not be deemed a waiver of 
the right to require consent to any future occurrences. 

5. DEFAULT. In the event Trustor fails to commence or substantially 
complete the construction of the Building within the times set forth in Section 2 hereof, 
or if Trustor violates any other term of this Deed of Trust, Beneficiary may declare 
Trustor to be in default of this Deed of Trust without any notice or demand of any kind, 
both of which are hereby expressed waived. 

6. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT. 

6.1 Foreclosure of Deed of Trust. Upon the occurrence of any event of 
default under this Deed of Trust, all sums secured hereby shall become immediately 
due and payable, without notice or demand at the option of Beneficiary, and Beneficiary 
may cause the Property may to be sold by foreclosing this Deed of Trust in any manner 
then permitted by law. Trustee may act as agent for Beneficiary in conducting any such 
sale. 

6.2 Liquidated Damages. Truster agrees that Beneficiary has sold the 
Property to Trustor for SIXTY ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($61,000.00), and that part 
of the consideration for the sale was Trustor's completion of the Building, which benefits 
the public interest, including without limitation the economy of the City of Cordova. The 
parties understand the impracticality and difficulty of fixing Beneficiary's actual damages 
in the event of Truster's default, and the parties therefore agree that 1WENTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) represents a reasonable estimate of the actual 
damages that Beneficiary would incur. This amount shall be the amount stated in any 
notice of default and sale that Trustee shall record as the amount due and owing to 
Beneficiary for Truster's breach of its obligation under this Deed of Trust. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401777\179\00105947.DOC 

Page 3 of 9 

1111111111111111111111111111111111111 
3 of 10 

2010-000361-0 

153



6.3 No Waiver. By accepting payment of any sum secured hereby after its 
due date, Beneficiary does not waive its right either to require prompt payment when 
due of all other sums so secured or to declare an event of default for failure to do so. 

6.4 Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies accorded by this Deed 
of Trust shall be in addition to, and not in substitution of, any rights or remedies 
available under now existing or hereafter arising under applicable law, in equity, or 
otherwise. All rights and remedies provided for in this Deed of Trust or afforded by law 
or equity are distinct and cumulative and may be exercised concurrently, independently 
or successively. The failure on the part of Beneficiary to promptly enforce any right 
hereunder shall not operate as a waiver of such right and the waiver of any default shall 
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent or other default. 

6.5 Trustor Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. Trustor, as a federally 
recognized Indian Tribe possesses sovereign immunity from suit. For purposes of this 
Deed of Trust only, Trustor grants a limited waiver of its immunity from suit to claims 
brought by Trustee and Beneficiary only, and such waiver is limited to Trustee's and 
Beneficiary's enforcement of their rights under this Deed of Trust. 

7. TRUSTEE. 

7.1 General Powers and Duties of Trustee. At any time or from lime to time, 
upon an event of default, without liability therefor and without notice and without 
affecting the liability of any person for the payment of the indebtedness secured hereby, 
and upon written request of Beneficiary, payment of its own fees and presentation of this 
Deed of Trust, Trustee may: 

7.1.1 Join in any subordination or other agreement affecting this Deed of Trust 
or the lien or charge thereof; or 

7.1.2 Reconvey, without warranty, all or any part of the Property. 

7.2 Reconveyance. Upon the Truster's satisfactory performance of the 
obligations set forth in Section 2 hereof, Beneficiary shall request Trustee to reconvey 
the Property. Trustee shall reconvey the Property without warranty to the person or 
persons legally entitled to it. Such person or persons shall pay any recordation costs. 
Beneficiary may charge such person or persons a fee for reconveying the Property. 

7.3 Powers and Duties on Default. Upon written request therefor by 
Beneficiary specifying the nature of the default, or the nature of the several defaults, 
and the amount or amounts due and owing, Trustee shall execute a written notice of 
default and of Its election to cause the Property to be sold to satisfy the obligation 
secured hereby, and shall cause such notice to be recorded and otherwise given 
according to law. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017771179\00105947. DOC 

Page 4 of 9 

\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\~\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\ \\\ 
4 of 10 

2010-000361.0 

154



Notice of the sale shall have been given as then required by law and not less 
than the time then required by law having elapsed after recordation of such notice of 
default, Trustee, without demand on Truster, shall sell the Property at the time and place 
of sale specified in the notice, as provided by statute, either as a whole or in separate 
parcels and in such order as it may determine, at public auction to the highest and best 
bidder for cash in lawful money of the United States, payable at the time of sale. Trustor 
agrees that such a sale (or a sale pursuant to judicial foreclosure) of all the Property as 
real estate constitutes a commercially reasonable disposition thereof. Trustee may 
postpone the sale of all or any portion of the Property, and from time to time thereafter 
may postpone such sale, as provided by statute. Trustee shall deliver to the purchaser 
its deed and bill of sale conveying the Property so sold, but without any covenant or 
warranty, express or implied. The recital in such deed and bill of sale of any matters or 
facts shall be conclusive proof of the truthfulness thereof. Any person other than 
Trustee, including Truster or Beneficiary, may purchase at such sale. 

After deducting all of the costs, fees and expenses of Trustee and of this trust, 
including the cost of title search and title insurance and reasonable counsel fees in 
connection with the sale, Trustee shall apply the proceeds of sale to payment of all 
sums secured hereby in such order as Beneficiary may determine; and the remainder, if 
any, to the party or parties entitled thereto. 

7.4 Acceptance· of Trust. Trustee accepts this trust when this Deed of Trust, 
duly executed and acknowledged, is made a public record as provided by law. 

7.5 Reliance. Trustee, upon presentation to it of an affidavit signed by 
Beneficiary setting forth facts showing a default by Truster under this Deed of Trust, is 
authorized to accept as true and conclusive all facts and statements therein, and to act 
thereon hereunder. 

7.6 Replacement of Trustee. Beneficiary may, from time to time, as provided 
by statute, appoint another trustee in place and stead of Trustee herein named, and 
thereupon Trustee herein named shall be discharged and the trustee so appointed shall 
be substitute as Trustee hereunder, with the same effect as if originally named Trustee 
herein. 

8. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. 

8.1 Covenants and Agreements. Truster hereby covenants and agrees as 
follows: 

8.1.1 Truster will not cause or permit any Hazardous Substance to be brought 
upon, kept, used or generated by Trustor, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees, 
in the operation of the Property unless the use or generation of the Hazardous 
Substance is necessary for the prudent operation of the Property in the ordinary course 
of Truster's business and operations and in compliance with all Environmental Laws. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401n7\179\00105947 ,DOC 

Page 5 of9 

Ill 11111111111111 lllllllll!!lil/ 11111 
5 Of 10 ' 

2010..000301..() 

155



8.1.2 Truster will at all times and in all respects use its best efforts to comply 
with all Environmental Laws. Truster's duty of compliance with Environmental Laws 
includes without limitation the duty to undertake the following specific actions: (1) 
Truster will, at its own expense, procure, maintain in effect and comply with all 
conditions of any and all permits, licenses and other governmental and regulatory 
approvals required by all Environmental Laws, including without limitation permits 
required for discharge of (appropriately treated) Hazardous Substances into the ambient 
air or any sanitary sewers serving the Property; and (2) except as discharged into the 
ambient air or a sanitary sewer in strict compliance with all applicable Environmental 
Laws. any and all Hazardous Substances to be treated and/or disposed by Truster will 
be removed and transported solely by duly licensed transporters to a duly licensed 
treatment and/or disposal facility for final treatment and/or disposal (except when 
applicable Environmental Laws permit on-site treatment or disposal in a sanitary 
landfill). 

8.1.3 At any time, and from time to time, if Trustee so requests, Truster shall 
have any environmental review, audit, assessment and/or report relating to the Property 
theretofore provided by Truster to Trustee updated, at the sole cost and expense of 
Truster, by an independent environmental consultant selected by Truster and not 
objected to by the Trustee in writing within 30 days after receipt of notification of Truster' 
selection. 

8.1.4 Truster will, at its sole expense, take all actions as may be necessary or 
advisable for the clean-up of Hazardous Substances on or with respect to the Property, 
including without limitation all removal, containment and remedial actions in accordance 
with all applicable laws, and shall further pay or cause to be paid all clean-up, 
administrative and enforcement costs of governmental agencies with respect to 
Hazardous Substances on or with respect to the Property if obligated to do so by 
contract or by law. Truster will immediately notify the Trustee should Truster (1) become 
aware of any actual or potential liability with respect to Hazardous Substances stored, 
disposed or released in, on or about the Property, (2) receive any notice of, or become 
aware of, any actual or alleged violation with respect io the Property of any federal, 
state or local statute, ordinance rule, regulation or other law pertaining to. Hazardous 
Substances, (3) receive any written request for information or for an inspection of the 
Property by any governmental authority with respect to any Hazardous Substances or 
Environmental Laws, or ( 4) become aware of any lien or action with respect to any of 
the foregoing. Trustee may require from Truster assurances that Truster is taking all 
actions as may be reasonably required for the clean-up of Hazardous Substances in or 
with respect to any of the Property; provided, that for all purposes under this Section, 
Truster shall, upon the Trustee's request therefor, provide the Trustee with, and the 
Trustee shall be fully protected in relying upon, without further investigation or further 
duty to determine whether any removal, containment and/or remedial actions are 
satisfactory, either (A) the written approval of such actions by any independent 
environmental consultant selected by Truster and not objected to in writing by Trustee or 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:14017771179100105947.DOC 

Page 6 of 9 

\\\ \\\\\\\\\~\~)11\~l\\\l\l\\\ I \\I I 
2010-000361.0 

156



Beneficiary within 30 days after receipt of notification of Truster's selection; or (B) written 
notice from Truster that it is contesting in good faith any such requirement by 
appropriate legal proceedings. 

8.2 Definitions. As used in this Section 8: 

8.2. 1 "Environmental Laws" means all laws and regulations, now or hereafter in 
effect, with respect to Hazardous Substances, including without limitation the 
Comprehensive Environmental response, Compensation. and Liability Act. as amended 
(42 U.S.C. Section 9601, et seq.). the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6901, et seq.), the Clean Water Act, as amended (33 
U.S.C. Section 1321, et seq.), the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 7401, 
et seq.). and the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. Section 2601, 
et seq.), and any state or local similar laws and regulations and any so-called local, 
state or federal "superfund" or "superlien" law. 

8.2.2 "Hazardous Substance" means any substance or material now or 
hereafter defined or designated as hazardous or toxic waste, hazardous or toxic 
material. a hazardous, toxic or radioactive substance, or other similar term. by any 
Environmental Laws. 

9. CONDEMNATION. Truster shall promptly notify Beneficiary of any action 
or proceeding relating to any condemnation or other taking, whether direct or indirect, of 
the Property or any part thereof, and Trustor shall appear in and prosecute any such 
action or proceeding unless otherwise directed by Beneficiary in writing. Upon the 
occurrence and continuance of a default under this Deed of Trust, Truster authorizes 
Beneficiary. at Beneficiary's option, as attorney-in-fact for Truster, to commence, appear 
in and prosecute, in Beneficiary's or Truster's name, any action or proceeding relating to 
any condemnation or other taking of the Property whether direct or indirect, and to settle 
or compromise any claim in connection with such condemnation or other taking. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS. 

10.1 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Deed of Trust. 

10.2 Binding Upon Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions of 
applicable law with respect to successor trustees, this Deed of Trust shall be binding on 
and inure to the benefit of the parties, their successors and assigns. 

10 .. 3 Beneficiary's Right to Perform Obligations of Truster. lf Truster fails 
to perform the covenants and agreements contained or incorporated in this Deed of 
Trust, or if any action or proceeding is commenced which affects the Project or title 
thereto or the interest of Beneficiary therein (including without limitation any bankruptcy, 
insolvency, arrangement. reorganization or other debtor relief proceeding or eminent 
domain proceeding), then Beneficiary, at Beneficiary's option may make such 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017TT\ 179\00105947 .DOC 

Page 7 of 9 

\\I \\11\\\111\\\\ l\\\\\\l\\\l\1\\ 1\11 
7 of 10 

2010-000361..0 .! 

157



appearance, disburse such sums, and take such action as Beneficiary deems 
necessary, in its sole discretion, to protect Beneficiary's interest, including without 
limitation (i) disbursement of attorneys' fees and expenses; (ii) entry upon the Property 
to make repairs; and (iii) procurement of satisfactory insurance. Trustor shall reimburse 
Beneficiary for all reasonable costs incurred by Beneficiary in taking any said action, 
together with interest from the date of expenditure until repaid at two percent per annum 
over the rate of interest announced by the Trustee as its prime rate from time to time, 
but in any event, not greater than the maximum rate of interest permitted by Alaska law. 
Such sums shall become a part of the obligations of Trustor secured by this Deed of 
Trust and be payable by Truster on demand. Trustor agrees that the amounts described 
in this section constitute necessary expenditures for the preservation of Beneficiary's 
security and, to the extent permitted by law, such amounts shall have a lien priority date 
as of the date of recording of this Deed of Trust. 

Such action by Beneficiary shall not constitute a waiver of the default or any 
other right or remedy which Beneficiary may have on account of Trustor's default. 
Nothing in this Section 10.3 shall require Beneficiary to incur any expense or take any 
action. 

10.4 Notices. Nof1ces under this Deed of Trust shall be in writing and shall be 
sufficiently given if addressed and mailed by first-class, certified or registered mail, 
postage prepaid, to a party at the address set forth above, or such other address as a 
party may indicate by written notice to the others. All notices shall be deemed served 
upon deposit of such notice in the United States Postal Service in the manner above 
provided. 

10.5 Captions. All captions used in this Deed of Trust are intended solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not limit, expand or otherwise affect any of the 
provisions of this Deed of Trust. 

10.6 Invalid Provisions to Affect No Others. If any of the provisions 
contained in this Deed of Trust shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, 
the validity of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not be affected thereby. 

10 .7 Changes in Writing. This Deed of Trust and any of its terms may only be 
changed, waived, discharged or terminated by a writing signed by Beneficiary. 

10.8 Applicable Law. This Deed of Trust, and the terms and conditions herein 
shall be construed, applied and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Alaska. 

10.9 Parties Interested Herein. Nothing in this Deed of Trust, express or 
implied, is intended or shall be construed to give to any person, other than Trustor, 
Beneficiary and Trustee any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Deed of 
Trust. The covenants, stipulations and agreements in this Deed of Trust contained are 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\401m\179\00105947.DOC 

Page 8 of9 

1111111111111111111111111111111111 Ill 
s of 10 

2010-000361-0 

158



and shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Trustor, Beneficiary and Trustee, and 
their successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustor has executed this Agreement as of the 
date first above written. 

TRUSTOR: NATIVE VILLAGE OF EYAK 

STATE OF ALASKA ) 
) ss: 

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 

The ~?ng instrument was acknowledged before me this~ day of 
October, 2010 by:~O. f>«vn;i,i:\ l?!tn&i-ie j;i,reclJ:i< of the NATIVE VILLAGE OF 
EYAK, a federally recognized Indian Tribe, on behalf of the Tribe. 

PERFORMANCE DEED OF TRUST 
F:\4017n\ 179\00105947 .DOC 

v:::::_-'-'"""'-"'"""-=-A'""""'-~_.._,,""'-~~ 
Notary Public in nd for Alaska 
My commission expires: 1.o/"b!'2t>\\ 

Page 9 of 9 

II\ l\ll\\1111 ti\\ l\1\l\1\1\\1\\\\ I Ill 
9 of 10 

2010-000361-0 

159



w 
r-

0 r-

)> 

;:;J z 
m ::"'. 
z )> 

0 
m "" 
;:;J c 

z r-

CJ 0 

z 
CJ 

m 

x 
v 
)> 

z 
(J; 

0 
z 

-

~ 
;;::::i 

< 
)> 

3:: 
;:;J 

n 
'" I '< 
N _, 
<.n 

m 
N n 0 
0 

_, 
"" VO 

L./ 
160



..,.., -
r r 

0 r 
)> 

0 z 
;>\:J 

7' 

v )> 

r 
)> °' 
z c 

r 
N 

0 

z 
G 

0 

)> 
;;o 

3::: n 
._;:: I 
N -
~ --i 
, rn 
N () 
g --i 

"' V> 

t 

r 

161



l 
I 
I 
I 

' , 

~J 

l!!lf'ftl.iu;/> 
CfA"11C tJI((_ 
JtcJPl . 
f"!Olfl<'N\ 

5fN:fi 

c (~16'-J 

,__ 
f 

r~.) \! ,P1'KG5 

... ~,wii, I I t 

~t.··.1l ,._,,Me . ' 
j ~W'VJV._,., ' ] . ' I 

1_. 

r, 
,#J:flf leJ' 

(;!111!6. ~"'!Jj 

7 
~""'-" / 

If~ 
/;;;<,#!Ptr tm> 

.,..,~ /1''!(201 
[O-~ ... ~· -

[111l.41 • fl/l'lf'09& 
~~JI\ 
(~~ C\l'(V!fl?) . 

~. 

Z" 1x 24 ·r 

' I 
' 
I 
I 

r··-··· _..., 
/fie/ AP!> I 

t
lr 650 .:J!>.,PI'. I 
Pl* cvt.:rr.!i<W.. I 
C&.llt:R j' 
---------- _,, ____ _ 

TOTAL AREA FIRST FLOOR 
-= 3360 SQ. FT. 

CCU//{; 
~/.--' 

;r'X:!?' i 

·~ 

~ /bY.lf 

1 -±::-!:~~~· .• t- - - -~ - - "-::/'• 1''~1-.. ,,,~ "'"""'! '" ' --~J 
K, /M) I I /,li!T Al>l> l,;i«:J ~. I 

&:~_J 
I . . · ':.."''1"1f&1 t Vil> t"iJXt<.. -
I : --..1 
..._ - .;.... ..,.- - € 

1 'L-;l'OCF t,,1AJ;i: ~11 ! 
/ 

if'xf' tLor 
f7l6!>. 

ILLANKA BUILDING EXPANSION 
-··-· . ·- ···--·· ··-···· ·-·· --- ····-· '..'__.----
FLOOR PLAN 1 <;' 10' 

MRV ARCHITECTS 

May 21, 2009 

c-.l 

162



i;:. x1 r; tin9 
I::: ,, ,, ' 

Vt l<t iYl£i 
'i 

L/o / ;0,,_o 
e-r? ?-'o 

err;<:? ?;i ~ 

~10 

~ p p p p p µ 10 p 
,_, 

• 

p F' p B 
? p p p p p p p 

1J p p p c!.-,,, i~J 'ft"" 

(i/IJJE. ve 5 $<!' Is I t'C?_c ''I c /, '"3 I 
<-~o , . f d 

~ p J'+ Y'&tlff!. CM"1 'ftJ(t i'it'l"S l',J 

163



Printed by: Kerin Kramer 
Title: Drainage Map.jpg : Eyak 

D-$-
r- (/) 
0 -ur- 0 

.,, 
"' ~ 

0 

IV 

"' u, 
0 

3 
0 
~ 
s· 

~· 
0 
CJ 

gj-,::--

~\'. 
CJ 

:::: 

-A~ "' \(j)J z 

rr: 

Wednesday, July 15, 2009 10:23:13 AM 
Page 1 of 1 

OJ 
0 
0 
;:::i;:-

(j) 
0 
c -:::r ,, 

164



Lot 9 

Lot 1 Lot 12 

Lot 6A 

Lot 
Lot 10A 

Lot 4&8-9

Lot 2 

Lot 4 Lot 3 

Lot 9 

Lot 8 

Lot 7 

Lot 6 

Lot 5 

Lot 11 

Lot 8 

Lot 10 

Lot 2 

Lot 3 

NVE

NVE

AC

NAPA

L o c a t i o n  o f  L o t  1 1 ,   O w n e d  b y  N V E  w i t h  P e r f o r m a n c e  D e e d  o f  T r u s tL o c a t i o n  o f  L o t  1 1 ,   O w n e d  b y  N V E  w i t h  P e r f o r m a n c e  D e e d  o f  T r u s t

Redden Net

165



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK 

DATE:  January 28, 2014 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

SUBJECT:   Bulk Mailer request 

Mayor Kacsh asked that this agenda item be brought before Council at the request of Council 
member Bradford. At a previous Council meeting the topic was broached and at this time, 
Council would need to direct staff if interested in doing so. Mayor Kacsh has mentioned the 
possibility of staff creating a bulk mailer to citizens of Cordova asking for the citizens to write 
letters to legislators asking for Cordova Center funding during this legislative session. Staff 
might also be asked to have sample letters available for the public. Mayor Kacsh hoped for 
Council opinions and discussion on this item and direction to staff if desired. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Direct staff to… (depends on Council’s wishes) 

REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority voice vote. 

166



Randy/Susan: 
Attached is a Legislative Report for review by the Mayor and City Council. 

For the February 5th Council meeting, you have asked me to be available via 
teleconference to discuss this report and also provide recommendations on possible 
advocacy campaign for funding the Cordova Center and other Council priorities. 

Here are some initial comments about a potential advocacy campaign: 
1) The first priority is securing state funding toward the completion of the Cordova
Center. 
2) Given the pressure to reduce spending this session, it is very important to have a
strong, positive, and consistent message to the Legislature about the priorities of the 
community. 
3) We need to be prepared to shift gears toward other priorities of the Council in the
event funding opportunities for other types of project are available. 

In relation to #2 above, here are some recommendations for advocating for funding 
the Cordova Center: 
- Completion of the Cordova Center is the top priority of the community, and the 
community is united in this sentiment. 
- The Cordova Center is an integral part of diversifying the economy of Cordova. 
- The Cordova Center is basic public infrastructure to provide effecient, cost-effective 
public services. 
- Cordova is a major economic contributor to the State of Alaska; providing over $1.3 
million annually to the State in fisheries taxes, over 1,700 seafood processing jobs, 
over $191 million in first wholesale value for seafood, and additional economic 
activity in purchases of fuel, marine servicing, air cargo, shipping, and retail goods & 
services. 
- As the State of Alaska begins to face fiscal impacts from declining oil revenues, now 
is the time to fund the completion of construction projects that are currently 
underway.   

These are just some initial thoughts and suggestions.  I would be more than happy to 
assist in further developing these and other talking points. 

John Bitney 

167



168



169



170



Pending agenda:  
Capital Priorities List Meeting - Mar 5, 2014; June 4, 2014; Sep 3, 2014; Dec 3, 2014 

HSB Quarterly regular meetings Apr 2, 2014; July 2, 2014; Oct 1, 2014; Jan 7, 2015 

Staff quarterly reports in packets: Apr 16, 2014; July 16, 2014; Oct 15, 2014; Jan 21, 2014 

Agenda item regarding budgeting for road maintenance February 19, 2014 

HSB Special Meeting February 19, 2014 

Buck Adams, UBS, City Investments quarterly report via teleconference, February 19, 2014 

Committees: 
Cordova Center Committee: Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, Randy Robertson, Kristin Carpenter, 

Native Village of Eyak Representative, Chamber of Commerce Representative, Business 
Community Representative, PWSSC Representative, Stage of the Tides Representative. 

Fisheries Advisory Committee: David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 
Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; and 
Jeremy Botz, ADF&G  

Cordova Trails Committee: Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, Jim Kallander, Toni Godes, and 
David Zastrow 

Calendars:  
3 months of calendars are attached hereto 
Feb 2014; Mar 2014; Apr 2014 

171



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 
CH-City Hall Confer-
ence Room 
LMR-Library Mtg Rm 
HSL-High School Li-
brary 

     1 

2 
 
 
Superbowl Sunday 

3 4 
 
6:30 P&Z LMR 

5 
 
7:15 pub hrg LMR 
7:30 reg mtg LMR 

6 
 
 
Iceworm Festival 

7 
 
 
Iceworm Festival 

8 
 
 
Iceworm Festival 

9 
 
 
Iceworm Festival 

10 11 
 
 

12 
 
7:00 Sch Bd HSL 
7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

13 14 15 

16 17 
Presidents’ Day  
City Hall 
Offices Closed 

18 
 
 

Absentee voting at 
City Hall  

19  
HSB spec time tba  
7:30 reg mtg LMR 
 
———————— 

20 
 
 

Absentee voting at 
City Hall  

21 
 
 
 
———————— 

22 

23 24 
 
 

Absentee voting at 
City Hall  

25 
 
 
 
———————— 

26 
 
 

Absentee voting at 
City Hall  

27 
 
 
 
———————— 

28 
 
 

Absentee voting at 
City Hall  

Location Legend 
CH-City Hall Confer-
ence Room 
LMR-Library Mtg Rm 
HSL-High School Li-
brary 

February 2014 

172



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 
CH-City Hall Confer-
ence Room 
LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

1 

2 3 

Absentee voting at 
City Hall  

4 Cordova Regular 
Election  
Polls open 7am—8pm 
LMR 

5 
7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 
LMR 
7:30 reg mtg LMR 

6 
District Tournament 
Basketball in Cordova 

7 
District Tournament 
Basketball in Cordova 

8 
District Tournament 
Basketball in Cordova 

9 10 11 
6:30 P&Z LMR 

12 
7:00 Sch Bd HSL 
7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

13 
Spec Mtg to certify 
Election time (tba) 

14 15 

16 17 18 19 
7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 
LMR 
7:30 reg mtg LMR 

20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 

Alaska Shield Exer-
cise 

29 

Alaska Shield Exer-
cise 

30 31 
Seward’s Day  
City Hall 
Offices Closed 

Location Legend 
HSL-High School Li-
brary 

March 2014 

173



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 
CH-City Hall Confer-
ence Room 
LMR-Library Mtg Rm 
HSL-High School Li-
brary 

1 2 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 
LMR 
7:30 reg mtg LMR 

3 4 5 

6 7 8 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

9 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 
7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

10 11 12 

13 14 

CSD—spring break 

15 

CSD—spring break 

16 
CSD—spring break 
7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 
LMR 
7:30 reg mtg LMR 

17 

CSD—spring break 

18 

CSD—spring break 

19 

20 

Easter Sunday 

21 

BOE Hearing 7pm 

22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 Location Legend 
CH-City Hall Confer-
ence Room 
LMR-Library Mtg Rm 
HSL-High School Li-
brary 

April 2014 

174


	RCAC dispersants ltr for 02-05-14
	email from pwssc for ord 1113 02-05-14
	MEMO RE ORD 1113 Lease with PWSSC for 2nd read 02-05-14
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK

	Ordinance 1113 PWSSC Lease w-minor edits on 1-15-14
	att to 1113 for 01-15-14 Lease-Redline PWSSC_Cordova 12-18-13 
	City of Cordova    Prince William Sound Science & Technology Attn: City Manager    Institute, d/b/a Prince William Sound Science
	P.O. Box 1210     Center
	Cordova, Alaska  99574   Attn: President
	Cordova, Alaska 99574

	CITY:      CITY OF CORDOVA

	Memo re RES 02-14-05 CT Scanner
	Resolution 02-14-05 Appropriating to CCMC for Task 200 of CT Scanner Project
	Memo re RES 02-14-06 CT Scanner
	Resolution 02-14-06 Appropriating to CCMC for CT Scanner & Installation
	Memo re RES 02-14-07 Arctic IT sole source
	CITY OF CORDOVA
	Office of City Manager


	Resolution 02-14-07 AIT Sole Source
	02-14-07 TotalCare Statement of Work
	02-14-07 TotalCare brochure
	02-14-07 attach3 5.12.150 sole source procurement
	Memo re RES 02-14-08 FY13 Foreclosures
	A MEMO FROM TINA HAMMER, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

	Resolution 02-14-08 FY13 Foreclosures
	Memo re RES 02-14-09 AC lease 02-05-14
	77 Main Street

	Resolution 02-14-09 AC Lease
	02-14-09 AC Lease
	City of Cordova    The North West Company (International) Inc.
	Attn: City Manager    Attn: Rex Wilhelm, President, COO
	Cordova, Alaska  99574    77 Main Street

	CITY:     CITY OF CORDOVA

	Agenda memo re 2014 election board 02-05-14
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK

	Minutes 01-15-14 Regular Meeting
	2014 Session - Cordova Legis Report 01-30-14
	02-05-14 REPORT
	Library 2013 4Q
	CVFD 4Q 2013
	The final quarter of 2013
	October 2013 Activity Sheet
	Sheet1

	November  2013 Activity Sheet
	Sheet1

	Copy of 2013 December Activity Sheet
	Sheet1


	Harbor 2013 4Q
	Parks & Rec 2013 4Q
	4th Quarter Police
	CITY OF CORDOVA
	Office of Chief of Police

	2012-2013 Citations.pdf
	Fuel Expenses

	2012-2013 Warnings.pdf
	CPD Warnings

	DMV RECONCILATON STATISTICS.pdf
	2013 TOTALS


	Info Svcs 4Q
	4th qtr 13 museum
	4th Q Finance
	Planning 4Q 2013
	01-15-14 DCCED population determination letter
	01-15-14 Letter from school children to Mayor
	01-22-14 Ketchikan Mayor letter re lawsuit challenge local contribution to schools
	Memo re RES 02-14-10 NVE BoF proposal support 02-05-14
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK

	Resolution 02-14-10 Supporting NVE Crab Proposal for BoF
	CCl_memo_extension_request8_7_2013
	01-18-14 Wildrick letter re perf dot extension
	AGENDA MEMO RE Harborside Pizza request 05-04-11
	3Highlighted_DeedOfTrust
	4HighlihgtedHarborsidesignedPurchaseAgrrement
	2signed_ORD1080purchase_wildrick
	memo re NVE Performance Deed Trust for 02-05-14
	01-14 Azure of NVE letter in re PDoT
	HP00002
	HP00003
	HP00004

	NVE_PERFORMANCE_DEED_TRUST for 02-05-14
	map of lot 11 for 01-15-14
	Agenda memo re bulk mailer 02-05-14
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK

	Bitney attach to Agenda memo re bulk mailer 02-05-14
	att to Agenda memo re bulk mailer 02-05-14
	Pending Agenda
	febmarapr



